
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 29 JULY 2020

1.00 PM

VIRTUAL MEETING VIA ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCING SYSTEM

Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum 
Tel: 01354 622285

e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

Comment

Due to the Covid-19 outbreak and the restrictions by the Government on gatherings of 
people, this meeting will be conducted remotely using the Zoom video conferencing system.  
There will be no access to this meeting at the Council offices, but there will be public 
participation in line with the procedure for speaking at Planning Committee. 

The meeting will be available to view on YouTube: URL: https://youtu.be/Toscs6cfCxs

1  To receive apologies for absence. 

2  Previous Minutes (Pages 5 - 20)

To confirm the minutes from the previous meeting of 24 June, 2020.

3  To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by 
virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified 

4  To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct 
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of 
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/Toscs6cfCxs


5  F/YR19/0286F
Land north and south of Grosvenor House, Grosvenor Road, Whittlesey.Erection of 2 
x 2-storey buildings comprising of 1no retail unit, 7 x 1-bed and 2 x 2-bed flats with 
parking involving demolition of outbuilding and boundary wall. (Pages 21 - 36)

To determine the application.

6  F/YR19/0761F
Lattersey Field, Benwick Road, Whittlesey.Erect 4no industrial units (B1, B2, B8 
use), security office and 3.0 metre high acoustic screen with associated parking and 
hardstanding areas including formation of swales, attenuation pond and associated 
drainage infrastructure (part retrospective) (Pages 37 - 68)

To determine the application.

7  F/YR20/0224O
Land West Of 36, Peterborough Road, Whittlesey.Erection of 9no dwellings (outline 
application with matters committed in respect of access and layout) including 
demolition of existing greenhouses (retrospective) (Pages 69 - 84)

To determine the application.

8  F/YR20/0301/F
Land South East Of 70, Fieldside, Coates. Erect 8 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings and 2.0 
metre high brick wall (Pages 85 - 98)

To determine the application.

9  F/YR20/0335/O
Land south and west of 4-5 Mill Hill Lane, March.Erect up to 2x dwellings (outline 
application with matters committed in respect of access) (Pages 99 - 110)

To determine the application.

10  F/YR20/0365/F, F/YR20/0371/F,F/YR20/372/LB
Land East Of 133, High Street, Chatteris.F/YR20/0365/F: Erect 9 x 2-storey dwellings 
comprising of 7 x 3-bed and 2 x 2-bed with garages and erect detached garage and 
2.4 (approx) metre high wall to serve 133 High Street

F/YR20/0371/F: Demolition of a wall within a Conservation Area

F/YR20/0372/LB: Demolition of existing wall and rebuilding of 2.4 (max) metre all to a 
Listed Building 
 (Pages 111 - 130)

To determine the application.

11  F/YR20/0416/O
Land south east of The Poplars, Bevis Lane, Wisbech St Mary.Erect up to 2x 
dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access) (Pages 



131 - 144)

To determine the application.

12  F/YR20/0440/F
22 Colvile Road, Wisbech.Conversion of dwelling to 2 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings 
(Pages 145 - 156)

To determine the application.

13  Appeals Report (Pages 157 - 160)

To consider the appeals report.

14  Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent 

Members:  Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor A Hay (Vice-Chairman), Councillor I Benney, 
Councillor S Clark, Councillor M Cornwell, Councillor A Lynn, Councillor C Marks, Councillor 
Mrs K Mayor, Councillor N Meekins, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor W Sutton and Councillor 
R Skoulding, 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020 - 1.00 PM 

 
PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor A Hay (Vice-Chairman), Councillor 
I Benney, Councillor S Clark, Councillor M Cornwell, Councillor A Lynn, Councillor C Marks, 
Councillor N Meekins, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor W Sutton and Councillor R Skoulding,  
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor Mrs K Mayor  
 
Officers in attendance: Elaine Cooper (Member Services), Stephen Turnbull (Legal Officer), Jo 
Goodrum (Member Services & Governance Officer), Nick Harding (Head of Shared Planning) and 
David Rowen (Development Manager) 
 
P1/20 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020 -2021 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Lynn and resolved that Councillor 
Connor be elected as the Chairman of the Planning Committee for the Municipal Year. 
 
P2/20 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020 - 2021 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Meekins, seconded by Councillor Murphy and resolved that 
Councillor Hay be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee for the Municipal Year. 
 
P3/20 PREVIOUS MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the 13 May 2020 were confirmed. 
 
The minutes of the 3 June were confirmed, subject to the amendment of adding Councillor 
Cornwell to the list of those Members in attendance. 
 
P4/20 F/YR19/0990/F 

LAND SOUTH OF CHRYSANTHEMUM HOUSE, BARTON ROAD, WISBECH, 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE. ERECT A C2 USE CARE HOME FACILITY (3-STOREY, 100-
BED) AND 5 X DWELLINGS (3 X 2-STOREY, 3-BED AND 2 X 2-STOREY, 4-BED) 
WITH INTEGRAL GARAGES AND FORMATION OF 3 X NEW ACCESSES FROM 
BARTON ROAD AND 3 X NEW ACCESSES FROM MAGAZINE LANE INVOLVING 
THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SHED 
 

David Rowen presented the report to members.  
 
Members received a presentation in objection to the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure, from Councillor Nick Meekins. 
 
Councillor Meekins stated that he is not opposed to any development on the site or the proposal of 
a care home but his concern is with regard to the scale of the development. He stated that he has 
been lobbied over the past few months from residents who reside adjacent to the site who have 
been inconvenienced already by the activities of the developer and who have expressed their 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



disappointment about the loss of the orchard which was in place when they purchased their 
homes. Councillor Meekins stated that had a site visit been able to take place, Members would 
have been able to see the immediate problem with regard to vehicular access on Magazine Lane, 
which is a narrow road and has traffic flow problems and although Barton Road is a wider road, it 
can suffer from congestion especially with school traffic. He added that the proposal of a three 
storey building will be out of character with the existing dwellings in the vicinity and stated that this 
site was formally an orchard which was cleared of all vegetation in late 2018 and large bonfires 
were lit without any notification to the local residents. 
 
Councillor Meekins stated that a soakaway drain was filled in without the permission of the Internal 
Drainage Board and although it was only a soakaway it did alleviate run off water. He added that 
retrospective approval was granted and a wooden fence was erected adjacent to the fence 
belonging to the mobile home site which prevented the residents from carrying out any 
maintenance with a metal barrier fence being erected which was too high at the Magazine Lane 
end and water from the proposed site drained into the mobile home site which has never been an 
occurrence before.  
 
Councillor Meekins stated that an agricultural building on the proposed site has now been 
demolished with building materials being stored in anticipation of commencement of works and 
that work has been carried out on site during unsociable hours and all of the points that he has 
raised are having an impact on the existing local residents. He added an additional point of 
concern is whether the proposal of building the additional 5 dwellings on the site to part fund the 
care home is normal and will there be any clause to stipulate that it is to follow the plan and not 
expand into a housing estate? 
 
Councillor Meekins concluded by stating that the major concerns for the existing residents are: the 
impact on their quality of life, water issues, possible anti-social behaviour due to the proposed 
footpath, an increase in traffic resulting in congestion of the surrounding roads including Barton 
Road, Magazine Lane and North Brink, devaluation of their homes and concerns for the healthcare 
infrastructure which is already oversubscribed in Wisbech. 
 
Councillor Meekins stated that he is not against development on the site and is not against a care 
home on the site, but in his opinion the scale of the proposal is not suitable for this area. 
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure, from Mr Tim Slater, the Agent. 
 
Mr Slater stated that that he was worked proactively with officers throughout the pre application 
stage and as and when officers have raised issues they have been addressed. 
 
He expressed the opinion that the application is based on an assessment of the population trends 
of Wisbech and is intended to meet a demographic need for this type of accommodation in the 
town and it is designed to accommodate the existing residents in Wisbech. 
 
Members asked Mr Slater the following questions: 
 

• Councillor Cornwell expressed the view that there will be an increase in residents in the 
town, as new residents will replace those residents who move into the care home. He asked 
whether Mr Slater has engaged with the local GP’s in the area to gauge their views? 

• He further expressed the view that there appears to be no parking provision for ambulances 
or service vehicles in the proposal and also questioned whether the proposed footpath was 
a requirement from the Highways Authority? 

• Mr Slater stated that the footpath was introduced to meet one of the key aims of the Broad 
Concept Plan which is to incorporate accessibility through the new development to join up 
the major roads however, it is not integral to the development and can be removed. He 
added that provision has been included for service vehicles and ambulances within the 

Page 6



proposal. Mr Slater stated he understands the point raised with regard to additional 
residents within the town, however, the proposal is to provide specialist accommodation for 
the existing elderly population within the town. 

• Councillor Sutton expressed the opinion, that the proposal is quite a distance from the town 
centre and residents living in the care facility may have mobility issues. He asked whether 
the management company will incorporate any minibus service for the residents to utilise? 
Mr Slater stated that he anticipates that the management company will offer a care package 
which will include transport services run by the operator. 

 
Members asked Officers the following questions; 
 

• Councillor Cornwell asked whether it was possible to condition the provision of CCTV to 
cover the footpath which is a cause for concern? David Rowen stated that as part of 
condition 15, it includes a scheme for the provision of CCTV to be submitted and will also 
include how the CCTV will be monitored. 

• Councillor Murphy stated that he notes at condition 23 that the refuse strategy has to be 
submitted prior to the first occupancy and asked whether that was too late for it to be 
submitted? David Rowen stated that submission of the strategy before occupancy is not 
uncommon and the trigger point has to be a definable and reasonable moment in time when 
the information is required by. 

 
Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows; 
 

• Councillor Benney stated that in his opinion, this is an excellent use of land and that there is 
a need for this type of development with it freeing up 100 homes which are also needed in 
Wisbech. He expressed the view that he was surprised that the NHS did not come forward 
to request any financial contributions and added that this proposal will be very good for the 
residents and population of Wisbech and will benefit the local economy. 

• Councillor Lynn made the point that he knows the area well.  the proposed footpath will link 
the playing fields at both ends of the development, which will open up footfall and access to 
the play areas and the proposed school and the whole area has been earmarked for 
development so will be changing in years to come. He added that in his view, the proposal 
is a very good one, it will bring jobs to the area and will free up homes for the younger 
families that require housing. 

• Councillor Cornwell stated that he supports this type of development and care of the elderly 
is very important. He added that the position of the site is adequate, albeit slightly out of 
town, he has concerns with the footpath and the Magazine Road end of the development 
which is narrow for traffic. Councillor Cornwell expressed the view that there needs to be 
further communication with the NHS, who need to have an input with regard to their 
thoughts on the proposal. 

• Councillor Hay expressed the opinion that it is a very good use of land and the proposal 
looks modern and there is plenty of space to accommodate the building. She added that 
within the conditions, she had expected to see the stipulation that none of the 5 additional 
dwellings should be occupied until the footings of the care home were above ground level. 
David Rowen stated that condition 24 states that no dwellings should be occupied on site 
until the footings of the care home were above ground level.  

• Councillor Sutton expressed the view that the design will not have a large impact on 
overlooking as the closest part is only single storey. He added that he has concerns with 
regard to the update report which states conditions which could be seen as onerous, 
however overall he believes it is a good scheme and he will support it. David Rowen stated 
that the concerns Councillor Sutton has with regard to the occupancy conditions are 
common when dealing with this type of proposal to ensure that the application can take the 
form that is envisaged and the agent has agreed with the clauses. 

• Councillor Murphy stated that the proposal is right for Wisbech and he will be 
recommending the application for approval. 

Page 7



 
Proposed by Councillor Murphy, seconded by Councillor Lynn and decided that the 
application be APPROVED as per the officers recommendation. 
 
(Councillor Meekins registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on 
Planning matters, that he had been lobbied on this application and that he had also registered to 
speak on the item and therefore would take no part in the discussion or vote) 
 
 
P5/20 F/YR19/1029/F 

LAND WEST OF HEREWARD HALL, COUNTY ROAD, MARCH, 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE.ERECT 19 X 2-STOREY DWELLINGS WITH GARAGES 
PLOTS 13 & 14 ONLY (COMPRISING OF 10 X 2-BED, 7 X 3-BED AND 2 X 4-BED) 
 

David Rowen presented the report to members.  
 
Members received a presentation in objection to the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure from Ruth Johnson, a local resident. 
 
Ms Johnson expressed the opinion that the drainage and sewerage in the area has had various 
issues since the houses were built in All Saints Close, approximately 20 years ago with there being 
issues with the drains/sewers blocking and having to be jet washed regularly to keep issues at bay. 
She stated that by adding further houses to this sewer it will cause huge problems and blight 
resident's lives even further together with All Saints School which also has regular issues with the 
sewers. 
 
Ms Johnson questioned the access to the construction site with regard to- where will the 
construction traffic enter the building site and stated that she has concerns if it is through All Saints 
Close regarding size, weight, and being able to get through as very often there are cars double 
parked. She added that if the construction traffic accesses through All Saints Close are the 
developers aware of restrictions of deliveries because of the children's safety owing to the close 
proximity of All Saints School with deliveries not permitted between 8.30 - 9.30am and between 
2.30 - 3.30 pm. County Road is hazardous at these times and, the last thing residents, children 
and parents want is HGVs trundling through whilst small children are going to/coming home from 
school.  She queried whether the developers would adhere to a speed limit restriction of 10mph 
and commit to no HGVs during school run times?  
 
Ms Johnson stated that the proposed number of dwellings seems high in relation to the size of the 
area and questioned whether it will be overcrowded and whether the current residents of All Saints 
Close will have their view of the park obscured or have their privacy invaded.  
 
She expressed the view as to whether the developers are aware of the admissions criteria for All 
Saints School  as the school is very much oversubscribed and criteria is based on faith, then 
siblings, then children in care.  
 
Ms Johnson added that All Saints School participates in the Junior Travel Ambassador Scheme 
(JTA) run by Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) and has been approached to take part in the 
School Streets Scheme which is a scheme to reduce traffic around schools, improve the health of 
children as parents need to park away from the school and walk. This scheme involves closing the 
road to traffic except for emergency vehicles and it supports the promotion of sustainable travel, 
promotes clean air for children, and boosts health and well-being. She expressed the view that it is 
highly likely All Saints will participate in this scheme, therefore, residents (and construction traffic) 
will not have access to a ring-fenced area in County Road at school drop off times with All Saints 
actively working to reduce traffic around the school.  
 

Page 8



Ms Johnson stated that deer and rabbits are regularly seen on this site as it adjoins the park and 
green spaces are an essential element of neighbourhoods and make a profound contribution to 
people's well-being and quality of life. 
 
  
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure from Kimberley Brown, the Agent. 
 

Ms Brown stated that the Agent has worked closely with Council officers, both through pre-
application discussions and through the consideration of this application, and have made 
revisions in line with officers’ advice to reach the scheme that is before the committee today. She 
added that public consultation took place prior to the submission of the application in order that 
local stakeholders and residents could view the proposals and provide their feedback. 

Ms Brown explained that the application proposes the development of 19 dwellings in the form of 
both detached and semi- detached homes with a mixture of 2 bedroom, 3 bedroom and 4 
bedroom dwellings proposed. She stated that the application site benefits from Reserved Matters 
approval for 22 dwellings, which is extant, as part of the housing development at All Saints Close 
and the site is also located within the built up area of March with the principle of the proposed 
development being acceptable. 

Ms Brown expressed the opinion that the design and layout of the proposed development is of 
high quality and has been informed by the constraints of the site with the proposals ensuring the 
retention of TPO trees along the site’s northern boundary. She stated that, the opportunity has 
been taken to formalise the pedestrian route that currently runs through the site from All Saints 
Close to the public open space and railway station to the north, significantly improving the safety 
and security of this route for pedestrians and cyclists. Ms Brown advised that the proposal also 
include landscaping to the front of all properties, along with good sized gardens, which ensures 
that the proposed development respects surrounding residential development and the proposal 
has been designed to ensure significant distances exist between the proposed dwellings and 
those which already exist at Robingoodfellows Lane and All Saints Close.  She referred to the 
committee report which confirms that the proposal is not considered to give rise to any 
unacceptable overlooking, overbearing impact or overshadowing. 

Ms Brown added that the committee report confirms that the proposed development is 
technically acceptable in all respects and that there has only been one objection to the 
proposal. 

She stated that the application site is located in flood zone 1 and is, therefore, at very low risk 
of flooding with surface water drainage details having been discussed with the Lead Local 
Flood Authority as part of this application and confirmed as acceptable. Ms Brown added that 
the committee report confirms that the application proposal will have no unacceptable impact 
in terms of highways safety and that parking provision is in accordance with policy 
requirements. She added that the proposal includes for biodiversity enhancements through the 
provision of log piles and bat and bird boxes and the committee report confirms that the PCC 
Wildlife Officer considers the proposal to be acceptable. 

Ms Brown added that low level bollard lighting is proposed within the site to ensure that the 
proposal does not result in any unacceptable adverse impact from light pollution and this will, 
ensure the safety and security of residents and of pedestrians and cyclists utilising the 
significantly improved footpath link through the site. 

She expressed the opinion that in order to ensure that impacts associated with the construction 

Page 9



of the proposed development on both neighbouring residential properties and All Saints School 
are appropriately managed, the applicant has confirmed that they are happy to accept a 
condition requiring the submission and agreement of a Construction Method Statement before 
the development is commenced. 

Ms Brown added that as a result of the abnormal costs associated with developing this site, 
including the need for storm and foul water pumping stations, offsite highways costs and 
archaeological investigation, it is not possible for the proposal to make off site contributions or 
deliver affordable housing with the application submission supported by an open book viability 
assessment which has been scrutinised by officers and confirms that the scheme is unviable 
and therefore, in accordance with national planning policy, the scheme should be allowed to 
proceed unencumbered by S106 obligations. 
Ms Brown expressed the view that the scheme will also result in the delivery of a number of 
benefits including 19 new homes; economic benefits associated with the construction phase and 
new residents providing custom for existing services and facilities in March; and improved footpath 
provision through the site.  
 
Members asked officers the following questions; 
 

• Councillor Benney stated there are no Section 106 contributions from this application and 
questioned why the County Council are not making a contribution?. David Rowen stated 
that a bespoke viability assessment has been carried out on this scheme and the County 
Council Section 106 Officer has highlighted that there is no scope to deliver any 
contributions. 

 
Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows; 
 

• Councillor Cornwell stated that the proposed site is infill development and is adjacent to a 
large open recreation space adding he is pleased to see the footpath reinstated which will 
make the train station more accessible. He expressed the view that with regard to the storm 
and foul water issue there are planned pumping station provisions to be included on site 
which are costly according to the report so there is no Section 106 contributions which he 
feels is morally wrong. He expressed the view that he appreciates that there will be issues 
with regard to All Saints School, but there will be traffic management put in place and he will 
support the application. 

• Councillor Connor is also disappointed that there are no Section 106 contributions, but the 
application brings much needed housing to Fenland and he will be supporting the 
application. 

• Councillor Murphy expressed the view that he will be supporting the application and made 
the point that there are no objections from any statutory consultees. 

• Councillor Sutton stated that he will be supporting the application and he would ask officers 
to address the Construction Management Plan to ensure that the timings of any deliveries 
do not conflict with the school starting and finishing times. He expressed his opinion that he 
finds it disgraceful that there are no Section 106 Contributions being provided. 

• Councillor Lynn agreed with the comments raised by both Councillor Benney and Councillor 
Sutton with regard to the lack of Section 106 contributions’ from the County Council. He 
added that he is happy to support the application, but deliveries should be suspended 
during school drop off and collection times. 

• Councillor Murphy stated that the County Council have included pumping station provisions 
within their proposal which are costly. 

• David Rowen added that condition 4 in the report states that the detail of the Construction 
Management Plan including the detail of delivery times should be submitted and agreed 
with officers. 

• Councillor Marks asked how the delivery times are monitored to ensure they are being 

Page 10



adhered to?. David Rowen stated that once it is agreed it is able to be monitored by the 
Enforcement Team. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Murphy, seconded by Councillor Benney and agreed that the 
application be APPROVED as per the officer’s recommendation. 
 
(Councillor Hay declared an interest by virtue of the fact that she is a Cambridgeshire County 
Councillor and until recently was Vice Chairman of the Commercial and Investment Committee 
who act as shareholders for the County Council in ‘This Land’ which is wholly owned company by 
the County Council. The developers for this agenda item are ‘This Land’ and therefore she left the 
meeting for the entirety of this item.) 
 
P6/20 F/YR20/0266/F 

LAND WEST OF MEADOW FARM, HORSEWAY, CHATTERIS, 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE.ERECT A 1.8M (APPROX.) HIGH POST AND WIRE FENCE, A 
HEN HOUSE AND THE FORMATION OF AN ACCESS 
 

David Rowen presented the report to members.  
 
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure, from Mr Ian Gowler, the Agent. 
 

Mr Gowler stated that the applicant is looking to create a small holding using the small parcels of 
agricultural land with the small parcels within the larger field being ideal for starting such a 
venture, whereas normally fields are sold in large areas not allowing for such small scale 
holdings and allotments are also not suitable due to the size and most not allowing animals to be 
kept. He stated that the access is proposed to be improved to allow a car to be parked off the 
road safely, which has been agreed with highways and the rest of the access is planned to 
remain as existing as it is current agricultural use. 

Mr Gowler stated that the proposal is for a small amount of chickens, therefore, many of the 
environmental concerns from nearby neighbours would be based on significantly more than what 
is proposed and the applicant is aware that care must be taken not to cause odour nuisance 
under statutory environmental health requirements. He stated that the chicken house is a 
standard hen house made by a national company for free range chickens, it is designed to be 
able to be moved but it is not intended to be movable for this small holding with this being only a 
small scale small holding, and therefore, the appearance is in keeping with agricultural use. 

Mr Gowler stated that some of the other neighbouring concerns are with regard to loss of wildlife, 
which is not really applicable as the field is and has been farmed and the new small holding is 
more likely to attract wildlife due to the reduction in intensification of farming. He added with regard 
to overlooking and privacy this is likely to be reduced as currently the field is farmed with large high 
tractors. 
Mr Gowler stated that the application is to make use of the small plots of land for agricultural 
use there is no real change in land use and would therefore, not set a precedent for anything 
detrimental to the neighbouring properties. He stated that concern has been raised with regard 
to an increase in traffic with access and parking having been agreed with highways, and the 
increase in traffic is likely to be 2 car visits per day so very minimal and access is not located 
near properties so there would not be any disturbance. With regard to animal welfare, the 
applicant is aware of her duties of care to the animals and will follow the relevant DEFRA 
guidance. 

 

Page 11



Mr Gowler stated that as mentioned in the committee report many of the neighbouring 
concerns are related to the keeping of livestock and poultry on the land which would not 
require permission, and secondly the fencing for keeping the animals secure does not need 
specific permission. 

Members asked Mr Gowler the following questions; 

• Councillor Marks asked Mr Gowler whether the applicant has any plans to further 
develop the land by adding a dwelling or mobile home? Mr Gowler stated that this is 
not the intention and he has made the applicant aware that under no circumstances 
that this type of development could be considered on a piece of land like this. 

• Councillor Meekins asked Mr Gowler  to clarify why his client has chosen to apply for 
planning permission when it was not required if it had been kept as a mobile chicken 
house?. Mr Gowler added that free range chickens normally have a quarter fencing 
around each part of the building, so the chickens can be moved easily. He added that 
to make a substantial fencing arrangement it made it easier to fix the building in the 
middle and then make   separate fencing to divide up each quarter as each area gets 
worn out by the chickens.  

 
Members asked questions, made comments and receive responses as follows; 
 

• Councillor Sutton stated that he cannot find a reason in planning terms for refusal. He 
added that he wishes the applicant well, but he feels there is an ulterior motive. 

• Councillor Connor stated he agrees with Councillor Sutton, and there maybe an ulterior 
motive, but he will support the application. 

• Councillor Benney stated that he wishes the applicant well for all the hard work that keeping 
chickens will entail and he can find no planning reason to refuse the planning application. 

• Councillor Cornwell stated that he cannot understand why anybody would apply for full 
planning permission to house chickens without having an ulterior motive. 

• Councillor Murphy stated he also thinks that there is a hidden agenda but there are no 
reasons to refuse it. 

• Councillor Benney stated that it should be noted that this approval is for the hen house on 
this site and for no further development. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Skoulding, seconded by Councillor Clark and agreed that the 
application be APPROVED as per the officer’s recommendation. 
 
(Councillors Benney, Hay and Murphy stated that they are members of Chatteris Town Council, 
but take no part in planning matters) 
 
(Councillor Connor declared an interest by virtue of the fact that the Agent for this application is a 
Doddington Parish Councillor and Councillor Connor attends Doddington Parish Council in his 
position as an elected member of Fenland District Council) 
 
 
P7/20 F/YR20/0269/F 

LAND WEST OF BRADLEY'S FARM, HONEYHILL ROAD, GOREFIELD.ERECT 1X 
DWELLING (2-STOREY 4-BED), 1.8METRE HIGH STEEL FENCE RAILINGS AND 
GATE, AND EXTENSION TO EXISTING WORKSHOP (B2). 
 

David Rowen presented the report to members.  
 
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure from Councillor Humphrey in support of the application. 

Page 12



 
Councillor Humphrey thanked the committee for allowing him to call the item in making the point 
that it is not often that he finds it necessary to call an item in, however, on this occasion there is 
information contained in the officer’s report to demonstrate that there is justification to support a 
dwelling for this established business in what is described as in elsewhere location. 
 
He added that one of the difficulties with this type of business is that an application with a building 
of a workshop would not be supported in a residential area, however, the applicant has up to now 
been occupying the redundant farm buildings for many years but now wishes to expand his 
business and live there. Councillor Humphrey expressed the opinion that as a local authority we 
should be supporting the expansion of his business and referred to a similar site about a mile away 
where the business owner has expanded his garage business and is now able to live on site. 
 
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure from Mr Swann, the Agent. 
 
Mr Swann stated that the application is before the committee at the request of Councillor 
Humphrey in his capacity as Ward Councillor as, being familiar with the site and the business, he 
is able to verify the need for the proposal. 
He explained that the original application was submitted via a different agent with very little 
justification for the proposal and was refused and Swann Edwards were since engaged to 
address the issues. 
Mr Swann added that the first Swann Edwards application was refused with approximately 12 
hours’ notice from the planning officer on the day the decision was due via an email, stating that 
there was no justification for the proposal and it subsequently came to light that the officer was 
not even aware of the existence of the specialist report that was commissioned by Cruso Wilkin to 
provide the business justification. He stated that he had been trying to communicate with the 
planning officer for 5 weeks without any reply. 
Mr Swann stated that the second application submitted, highlights the previous report and 
provides additional justification. 
He expressed the view there are a number of discrepancies with this application and how it has 
been dealt with and he feels that the planning officer seems to be doing everything in order to 
refuse this application with no positive or proactive engagement from officers throughout the 
process and in his opinion inaccuracies in the committee report.  
Mr Swann stated that Mr and Mrs Bassett are desperate to expand their successful rural 
business, but have been thwarted so far by delay after delay which is significantly affecting the 
future of their business which they have so much demand for. He added that Mr and Mrs Bassett 
operate an engineering business, which serves the farming community and they have machinery 
in the workshop to repair and have a 24 hour a day call out service to visit farms where the 
farmers have breakdowns at their farms, very often in the middle of fields, serving both the arable 
industry and livestock industry, therefore their quick response to problems is absolutely essential. 
Mr Swann expressed the opinion that despite the report, there is not open countryside 
surrounding the site with there being dwellings either side and behind, and only open views to the 
South.  He added that the officer also refers to this building as an existing former agricultural 
building, however this has been operating as an engineering workshop since it was granted 
approval 26 years ago. 
Mr Swann referred to the report stating that this application is for a dwelling which ‘also includes’ a 
workshop extension and expressed the view that this is incorrect as this application is for both 
jointly as the business cannot expand without the workshop extension or the dwelling and it is 
essential for the future of the business. 
He stated that as of Monday, the highways officer had confirmed to both himself and the planning 
officer that they have no objections to the scheme and all previous issues can easily be dealt with 

Page 13



via conditions. 
Mr Swann added that there are no objections from any of the statutory consultees, however, 
there has been strange amount of correspondence from Cambridgeshire Constabulary and 
despite the proposal not changing since the original application in 2019, the Planning Officer felt 
it necessary to consult with the Police in June 2020. On 3 June the Police stated they supported 
the application, on 4 June there is another consultation that states that they only support part of 
the application without further information being provided and he questioned what had happened 
between these responses being a mystery. He referred to the officer’s report stating that the 
dwelling is not supported by Cambridgeshire Constabulary but in his view, nowhere in their 
responses does it state this and he has spoken to the Police yesterday and they have confirmed 
that they do not object and will be willing to assist in the next stage of the project. 
 
Mr Swann referred to the report stating that there are ‘several letters of objection’ from the 
neighbour, however, on the portal there are 2 letters, one from Mr Johnson on 22 April and one 
from Mrs Johnson on 20 April, both of which are from the same address and the way in which 
these objections have been reported to the committee is different from other applications where 
the number of objections from separate addresses is usually reported. 
He apologised for making a presentation of this nature but felt that on this occasion he had been 
left with no choice due to the distress caused to the applicants as a result of the way in which the 
application has been reported to them. 
 
Mr Swann stated that the National Planning Policy Framework and the Core Strategy encourage 
Fenland District Council to support rural businesses and to work proactively with applicants jointly 
to find solutions which mean proposals can be approved where possible. 

He stated that this proposal will ensure the future of this successful rural business it will allow the 
business to expand and remain competitive for years to come and allows the applicant the 
opportunity to continue to support dozens of other small rural businesses that are his clients, 
which without him, would not be able to operate in the manner which they do currently and he 
asked the committee to support this application with the conditions that they deem appropriate. 

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows; 

• Councillor Benney thanked Councillor Humphrey for calling the application in. He added 
that he visited the site and observed an old building on the land and expressed the opinion 
that as farms grow so does the size of the machinery and the buildings to store it with 
smaller buildings getting rented out for engineering works and  Fenland District Council 
should be supporting businesses. He stated that the workshop is intending to double in 
size and the applicant wishes to expand his business which is commendable in these 
times. Councillor Benney stated that the proposal is in a rural area and the Police 
response if required in a rural area will be very poor. He stated that the applicants 
business will be vulnerable and to keep it secure the application should be supported.  

• Councillor Lynn expressed the opinion that the applicant has a business that he wishes to 
develop and improve and for that reason he will be supporting this application. He added 
that the Agent appeared to raise concerns regarding the conduct of the officer, making the 
point that Agents and Developers should be aware and understand that officers have to 
follow guidelines and policies such as the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and the Local Plan (LP) and as far as he is concerned, officers all work extremely hard and 
provide advice and guidance when asked and he does not agree with any attacks on 
officers. 

• Nick Harding highlighted the relevant paragraph of the NPPF when giving consideration to 
this application which states:  ‘Planning policies and decisions should avoid the 
development of isolated homes in the countryside unless one or more of the following 

Page 14



circumstances apply: a) there is an essential need for a rural worker, including those 
taking majority control of a farm business, to live permanently at or near their place of work 
in the countryside’. He added that given that the business has been operational on the site 
for more than 20 years, officers do not see the need for a dwelling to be located on this 
site. 

• Nick Harding added that with regard to the adopted Local Plan policy, this location is not a 
settlement listed in the settlement hierarchy and that is why it is stated as being in an 
‘elsewhere location’ in the countryside which states that ‘development will be restricted to 
that which will be demonstrably essential to the effective operation of local agriculture’ and 
there is nothing that states without a dwelling on that site this business cannot operate.  

• Nick Harding stated that the Police responded by stating that without further specific 
information they could not support the application as it stands but also stated that they will 
support the security fencing.  

• The Legal Officer, Stephen Turnbull advised members that they need to consider that 
there is a legal obligation to look at the development plan and there has to be compelling 
planning reasons to override what the plan states. He added that if any decision were to 
be challenged then the High Court might find a decision to be unlawful. 

• Councillor Connor expressed the opinion that in his capacity as Chairman, he feels that 
the Agent has been over critical of Officers on this application making the point that the 
Planning Department and the Planning Committee have worked tirelessly to keep planning 
applications and decisions moving forward, during the Covid 19 pandemic, which has 
proved to be a challenging time for everybody. 

• Councillor Cornwell expressed the view that he understands the need for farmers to live on 
site with farmers now working 24 hours a day and businesses need to respond to farmers 
in a timely fashion. He can understand the needs of the applicant and he will be supporting 
the application. 

• Councillor Hay stated she cannot see any good planning reason why this application 
should be approved as the business has been operating for 26 years and the applicant 
has had the opportunity to move closer to his business over the years as there have been 
large dwellings for sale over the last 2 or 3 years which he could have purchased to be 
nearer the business. She added that in the report the Highways Authority have stated that 
the northern access has not be approved by highways and needs to be removed or 
upgraded and they have also stated that the southern hedge impacts on visibility and 
amended plans will be required, but these have not been submitted. Councillor Hay added 
that the Police are stating that there is low level of crime in the area and they cannot 
support the application as it stands. She stated that the NPPF and the LP have to be 
adhered to and for that reason she will be supporting the officer’s recommendation. 

• Councillor Marks stated that he understands the need of a workplace home and 24 hour 
access. He added that his vehicle will contain expensive equipment. Councillor Marks 
expressed the opinion that due to Covid 19, many people are now working at home and 
financially it works better for many businesses. He will be supporting this application. 

• Nick Harding stated that where an application is recommended for refusal officers would 
not normally ask for amended plans.  

• Councillor Sutton stated that the application site is slightly built up and the officer has 
adhered to the relevant policies and legislation and, therefore, the recommendation is 
correct. He stated that he would like to hear the views of Councillor Clark who is another 
Ward Councillor for the area. 

• Councillor Clark stated that she is not predetermined on the application and she expressed 
the opinion that she thinks is important to support rural businesses, especially agriculture. 

• Councillor Connor stated that local businesses need to be supported and he will be 

Page 15



supporting this application.  

• Nick Harding stated that he has listened to the discussion and he added that he would like 
to highlight to members that there is no information to support that there is a security issue 
at present and nothing to suggest that the business cannot operate without the applicant 
living on site. He added that if members are minded to approve the application contrary to 
the officers recommendation, then he would ask that that officers are permitted to apply 
reasonable conditions to the application and it is important that the conditions include that 
there is no occupation of the dwelling until the workshop extension is completed and in an 
operational condition and secondly that the occupation of the house is tied to the operation 
of the workshop business.  

• Councillor Sutton stated that having listened to the views of Councillor Clark as one of the 
other Ward Councillors and all of the views of the other members of the committee, his 
view is that although it may not be essential,  it is a desirable dwelling and although crime 
has not be recorded locally, rural crime does exist. 

• Councillor Hay asked whether there will be a condition included to address the concerns 
raised by the Highways Authority. Nick Harding stated that before any consent is issued, 
the agent will be asked for amended plans and Highways will be asked to sign them off. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Lynn and decided that the 
application be APPROVED, against the officer’s recommendation. 
 
Members approved the application against officer’s recommendation for the following 
reasons; They support the extension of a business in a rural location as it is desirable to 
live in close proximity. By living on site there will be no need for the applicant to travel to 
the workplace which in turn is beneficial to the environment.  
 
It was decided that the conditions imposed on the planning permission be agreed in 
conjunction with the Chairman and Councillor Lynn and Councillor Sutton and to include 
the conditions that there will be no occupation of the dwelling until the workshop extension 
is completed and in an operational condition and secondly that the occupation of the house 
is tied to the operation of the workshop business.  
 
P8/20 F/YR20/0271/F 

PESCY, HIGH ROAD, GUYHIRN, WISBECH.ERECT A 2-STOREY 4-BED 
DWELLING WITH GARAGE INCLUDING THE SITING OF 2NO TEMPORARY 
CARAVANS DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 

David Rowen presented the report to members.  
 
Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the public 
Participation Procedure, from Mr Holliday the applicant. 
 
Mr Holliday explained that the 3 acre field on which he lives has been in the family for some 20 
years plus, with his wife inheriting the field from her late mother 8 years ago and they have been 
living here since taking over the plot from their uncle 7 years ago. He added that there is a further 
7 acres with stabling that they own approximately 200 metres down the track that runs alongside 
them where they house their 6 horses and this land has been in the family in excess of 35 years 
and in their direct ownership for 7 years. He added that his wife was brought up in Guyhirn living in 
the house immediately to the left of the drive leading onto High Road where his father in law still 
lives and they have other family very close by.   
 
Mr Holliday stated that in the officer’s report it mentions the issue of flooding and the report is quite 
right to highlight that they currently live in a single storey prefabricated dwelling in a flood zone. He 

Page 16



added that he has submitted a third Flood Risk Assessment which he has been assured addresses 
all of the Environment Agency (EA) recommendations and from his my experience as a National 
lead water rescue officer with the Fire & Rescue Service he has witnessed the devastation that 
flooding can do to property and communities, so he is keen to incorporate a solution that will 
satisfy the EA, with the proposal also scaling down the requirement for 2 caravans being on site 
during construction to 1 at the suggestion of the EA. 
Mr Holliday stated that the officer report explains that it is not policy to replace a temporary 
structure with a permanent dwelling and added that the issuing of a certificate of lawfulness for his 
park home last year provided his family with a permanent status for his existing dwelling 
forevermore. He added that his family have no ambition to move from this site, as they have too 
many ties in the area to move, with the application being to replace a permanently sited park 
home, which is showing its age in both design and wear and tear, with a more modern, efficient, 
environmental friendly, and, in his opinion, better looking two storey property. Mr Holliday 
expressed the view that with regard to the scale and massing of the design they have not tried to 
hide the fact that what they are asking for is larger than they are currently occupying. He 
expressed the view that they have tried to design a family home that is fit for purpose for their 
lifestyle and for the number of likely users at present and for the future and added that their two 
daughters both have long term partners who spend time with him and his mother is 84, living alone 
which is not sustainable long term, so the proposal would allow for him and his wife to care for her 
in their home when necessary. There are properties that have been extended in close proximity to 
them which are now of a similar scale and mass to their design. 
  
Mr Holliday stated that he disagrees with the officers report saying “that the development would 
adversely affect the character and appearance of the area”. and expressed the opinion, that the 
approach to their property is through a bus yard along with a coal merchant to one side. He 
expressed the view that his family want to improve the look and character of their dwelling again by 
replacing a tired old park home with a fresh nice looking property.  and he is not aware of any 
objections to either the size and scale or the character and appearance of the proposal, and there 
has been support from local people on these issues. 
 
Mr Holliday stated that the officers report makes mention of the established bus yard, and clarified 
that he has long standing access rights at all times to his property. He also clarified that the original 
lighting on the yard was upgraded last year to LED and works very well from dusk to dawn, there is 
approximately 5 metres where an area that moves from the bus yard to the boundary is darker 
which can be easily rectified, otherwise once on their property security lighting is activated on their 
drive. 
 
Mr Holliday stated  that, the bus and coal yards did have planning permission for a number of 
houses granted about 15 years ago which would have seen properties up to his boundary 
approximately 10 metres away, and will in all likelihood be put forward again for development in 
the future.  He feels that  his certificate of lawfulness grants him the right to have a residential 
dwelling on site indefinitely, and he stated that they are currently living in a single storey dwelling in 
a flood risk, so a two storey property with flood mitigating arrangements would provide a safer 
place for his family, especially by having the second floor refuge area. 
 
Mr Holliday stated that he has received support from the Parish Council and local residents and he 
is not aware of any objections to the proposal from statutory consultees except from the EA . He  
concluded by stating that they would like to replace an old park home with a modern, 
environmentally friendly fit for purpose dwelling that is safer in terms of flood risk and physical 
security and  is sustainable, giving betterment in terms of health and wellbeing for his family and 
future families a like. 
 
Members asked Mr Holliday the following questions: 
 

• Councillor Connor asked Mr Holliday whether he has known any incidents of flooding over 

Page 17



the last 35 years? Mr Holliday confirmed that there has been none. 
 
Members asked Officers the following questions: 
 

• Councillor Benney asked for clarification with regard to the Certificate of Lawfulness and 
whether when it was issued would a condition have been included to state that a full 
application could not be applied for? David Rowen stated that Certificate of Lawfulness 
demonstrates that the site had been used for the siting of a mobile home for the requisite 
period of time of 10 years, and therefore, the use of the site for a mobile home was lawful 
but it has no bearing of the future use of the site. 

 
Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows: 

• Councillor Sutton raised concern with an application which is described as a temporary 
dwelling but has a Certificate of Lawful use which in reality means that there is full planning 
permission for perpetuity. He added that the (EA) have raised an issue with regard to there 
being 2 caravans on the site during the construction phase, but feels that the application 
should be approved as it improves all the concerns that are in place with regard to flood 
zone 3. He added that within the EA report it states that if flooding occurs on that site it 
could reach a depth of 1.6 metres and if that particular area suffered flooding to that extent, 
then it would have a bearing on many other people and the only way to make people safe 
on that particular plot is to allow a two storey dwelling. 

• David Rowen stated that lawful use of the site is for residential purposes and that has been 
proven with regard to the Certificate of Lawful Development and allowing the mobile home 
on the site for the requisite amount of time. He stated that he appreciates the comments 
raised by Councillor Sutton with regard to adding a first floor which would potentially make 
the site safer from a flooding perspective, but from a policy perspective should effectively 
mobile homes be allowed on site without planning permission for a period of time to 
establish a residential use on site and then to be replaced with substantive dwellings in 
locations where dwellings would not be allowed in the first place.  

• David Rowen stated that with regard to the concerns Councillor Sutton had raised with 
regard to flood zone 3 and different flood depths which differ from site to site, officers are 
guided by what the EA dictate and the modelling work that they have undertaken and they 
provide advice and guidance as one of the statutory consultees with regard to flood risk. 

• Councillor Hay stated that this application goes against Policy LP12 c of the Local Plan, 
which states that a replacement dwelling should be of a similar scale and size of what it is 
replacing as the total floor area would be 353% of the existing floor space. She expressed 
the view that it will be out of keeping for that particular area and she will be supporting the 
officer’s recommendation. 

• Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that to replace a 2 storey dwelling in flood zone 
three will make the family safer than living in a caravan. He added that the Parish Council 
support the application and there are no letters of objection to the proposal. 

• Councillor Cornwell highlighted that any existing properties would also suffer if the flood 
waters rose to 1.6 metres.  He added that the he cannot understand why we would want to 
stop the applicant from creating a better quality of life for his family when he already has 
permission. 

• Councillor Sutton expressed the view that by approving the application it will ensure that the 
family live in a safer environment. He added that the officer’s recommendation has followed 
the guidance and policy apart from the fact that in his opinion, it is now not temporary as the 
mobile home is in place and he expressed the opinion that this application should be 
approve. He added that it does not alter the street scene as it cannot be seen from the 
garage, which is why the mobile home has gone unnoticed because it could not be seen.  

• Nick Harding stated that in the Local Plan there is a clear policy with regard to replacement 
dwellings which states that if the dwelling is to be a mobile structure then development 
should not be allowed. In this particular case, there is no raised floor level, as a mobile 
structure other than the initial step up is still in the floodable area and allowing a permanent 

Page 18



dwelling with a suitable floor level would resolve that issue. He added that consideration 
would then need to be given to the large increase in floor area from the existing to the 
proposed which is contrary to the policy and therefore members need to justify this 
development to go above and beyond the objectives in the Local Plan policy. He added that 
there would be an obligation to add conditions with regard to the settlement floor level 
where the property will be safe from the known depth of flooding which has been reported 
through the flood risk assessment. 

• Councillor Sutton questioned that in the update report it states that the EA has formally 
withdrawn their objection subject to the development being undertaken in accordance with 
the flood risk assessment and the temporary caravan being removed within two years, 
which he believes to be an incorrect statement. Nick Harding stated that the usual condition 
says that the caravan needs to be removed within a couple of months after the approved 
dwelling being occupied. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Benney and agreed that the 
application be APPROVED against the officer’s recommendation. 
 
Members approved the application against officer’s recommendation for the following 
reasons; The dwelling is compliant with all flood risk requirements and the size of the plot 
lends itself to the proposed dwelling as detailed in the application. 
 
Members agreed to delegate authority to officers to apply appropriate conditions.  
 
(Councillor Murphy left the meeting prior to consideration of this item) 
 
P9/20 ADOPTION OF PLANNING VALIDATION REQUIREMENTS 

 
Further to minute P91/19, Nick Harding presented the Adoption of Planning Validation report to 
members. 
 
Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows: 
 

• Councillor Sutton thanked officers for providing this update and expressed the opinion that 
anything that is national policy has to be replicated in the Local Validation List. He added 
that as there have been no comments or queries from the Developer Forum or Agents, then 
members should be in agreement with it. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Lynn, seconded by Councillor Hay and members AGREED to adopt 
the new Local Validation List.   
 
(Councillor Murphy had left the meeting prior to consideration of this item) 
 
 
 
 
4.30 pm                     Chairman 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
F/YR19/0286/F 
 
Applicant:  R J B (East) Ltd 
 

Agent : Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd 

Land north and south of Grosvenor House, Grosvenor Road, Whittlesey 
 
Erection of 2 x 2-storey buildings comprising of 1no retail unit, 7 x 1-bed and 2 x 
2-bed flats with parking involving demolition of outbuilding and boundary wall. 
 
Reason for Committee: Referred by Head of Planning 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

1.1. The proposal is for the construction of 9 new flats and a single retail unit on 
the site, which lies within the town centre boundary of Whittlesey. 
 

1.2. The site lies partly within the boundary of the Whittlesey Conservation Area 
and is close to multiple listed buildings. 

 
1.3. The proposed buildings flank either side of the existing Grosvenor House, and 

amendments have been made to the proposal to ensure a more sympathetic 
design within the street scene.  

 
1.4. The proposal is located in close proximity to Grosvenor House and would 

have a detrimental impact on the light received within some of the rooms 
within that building, which would be detrimental to their future use. 
 

1.5. The parking provision within the application site is below the required levels, 
however the site is centrally located with extremely good links to public 
transport. 

 
1.6. The site is within Flood Zone 1, the zone of lowest flood risk. 

 
1.7. The other concerns regarding the proposal, including servicing of the retail unit 

and refuse collection, can be adequately controlled by means of appropriate 
planning conditions, however the impact on light to the rooms of the adjacent 
building is such that the application is recommended for refusal. 

 
2. SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
2.1. The application site is located within the Town Centre of the settlement of 

Whittlesey, and encompasses land surrounding the former Council Offices 
known as Grosvenor House.  
 

2.2. Grosvenor House itself is a two-storey building with a white rendered frontage 
facing Grosvenor Road, and white painted brick to the remainder of its 
elevations. It has a pantile roof, with black joinery details, which include 
projecting glazed bay windows to the front elevation. 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



2.3. The site contains an area of open land to the north of Grosvenor House, 
enclosed within a 1.8m close boarded fence, beyond which is the access and 
service yard to the Co-op Supermarket that lies to the north of the application 
site. 

 
2.4. To the south of the site lies a mature Wellingtonia tree, beyond which is a range 

of commercial premises at the junction of Grosvenor Road and Eastgate Mews. 
 

2.5. The land to the west comprises the business premises located on High 
Causeway, including the grade II listed building known as 6 High Causeway and 
the grade II* Vinpenta House. 
 

2.6. Grosvenor Road lies to the east of the site, beyond which is a bus stop and town 
centre car park. 
 

2.7. The southern part of the site, comprising the access road, lies within the 
Whittlesey Conservation Area.  

 
3. PROPOSAL 

 
3.1. The proposal is for the construction of two detached two-storey buildings (Units 

A and B) flanking the existing Grosvenor House to both the north and south 
sides. The southern building (Unit B) is proposed to contain four single-bedroom 
residential units, with a further five residential units and a retail space on the 
street frontage at ground floor level in the northern unit (Unit A). 

 
3.2. There are 7 parking spaces proposed as part of the scheme 

 
3.3. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docu
ments&keyVal=PP0TPLHE01U00 
 

 
4. SITE PLANNING HISTORY 

 
F/YR04/3038/F Erection of 2 x 1-bed semi-detached houses Granted 

21/4/2004 
F/0641/80/F Erection of a double garage Permission 

8/8/1980 
F/99/0549/F Erection of a 2-storey rear extension to 

provide ground floor workshop and first floor 
2-bed flat 

Granted 
24/1/2000 

F/0071/84/F Change of use of first floor storerooms to 
retail sales and erection of replacement 
storerooms 

Granted 
15/3/1984 

F/0171/80/F Extension to shop premises Granted 
21/3/1980 

F/0596/80/F Use of land for garden supply and sales 
centre 

Refused 
20/8/1980 

F/YR03/0821 Erection of a 3-storey building for use as a 
veterinary surgery with offices and a 2-bed 
flat over 

Granted 
14/8/2003 

F/1239/88/O Residential development – 3 x 1-bed flats Permission 
6/8/1989 

Page 22

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PP0TPLHE01U00
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PP0TPLHE01U00


 
5. CONSULTATIONS 

 
5.1. Whittlesey Town Council 

Recommend refusal due to over intensification of the site. 
This response implies there are impacts in relation to visual impact, access and 
amenity relationships. (These matters will be addressed under the appropriate 
separate headings in the assessment section of the report below). 
 

5.2. FDC Conservation Officer 
The proposal put forward is acceptable. Condition requested regarding approval 
of materials. 

 
5.3. FDC Environmental Health 

No objections. Recommend a construction management plan to prevent noise 
and dust nuisance during the construction phase, and a noise impact 
assessment and details of any mechanical extraction/ventilation proposed. 

 
5.4. Cambridgeshire County Council Lead Local Flood Authority 

Based on the submission of additional information, the LLFA has removed its 
objection to the proposal, but requests conditions regarding a surface water 
drainage scheme and details for their long term maintenance to be subject to 
conditions. 
 

5.5. Cambridgeshire County Council Historic Environment Team (Archaeology) 
No objections or requirements. 
 

5.6. Cambridgeshire Constabulary Designing Out Crime Officer 
No objections. Recommend parking areas are lit to British Standards, and 
entrance to the flats is controlled to residents only. 
 

5.7. Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority 
Need to consider if the parking is sufficient for the proposal.  
Parking spaces need a 6m forecourt depth (detailed on amended plans). 
Visibility splays should be drawn to back of footway (pedestrian splay detailed 
on amended plans). 
Vehicle to vehicle visibility splays should be shown on plans. 
Access should be 5m wide by 10m sealed and drained away from the highway. 
How are retail units to be serviced. 
 

5.8. FDC Head of Business and Economy 
Supportive of the overall scheme.  
Concerned that overflow parking will place added pressure on the Town Centre 
Car Parks. 
Can’t see how retail units will be served by delivery vehicles – would object to 
deliveries being made directly from Grosvenor Road and as a minimum would 
seek to restrict delivery times to before 7am or after 6pm, Monday to Saturday. 
Concern regarding bin collection proposals. 
 

5.9. FDC Engineering Manager 
Development generally welcomed. Development should where possible limit the 
use of HGV’s.  
Development appears to have insufficient parking.  
Grosvenor Road has a Traffic Regulation Order to prohibit on-street parking, 
and traffic flow along the road should not be impeded.  

Page 23



Consideration should be given to the number of pedestrian movements 
generated due to the lack of a formal crossing over Grosvenor Road. 

 
5.10. Whittlesea Society 

No objection. Proposal should improve the area visually. 
 
5.11. Tree Officer  

Do not consider that the tree will be significantly impacted by the proposal. New 
road surface within the root protection area of the tree will need to utilise a 
permeable wearing surface. There should be an arboricultural presence on site 
during works within the RPA of the tree. 
 

5.12. Local Residents/Interested Parties 
No comments have been received from members of the public in relation to the 
proposal. 

 
6. STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development 
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local 
Plan (2014). 
 

6.2. Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 require Local Planning Authorities when considering development to 
pay special attention to preserving a listed building or its setting and to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
conservation area. 

 
7. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Para 2: NPPF is a material consideration 
Para 8: 3 strands of sustainability 
Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Para 80: Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic 
growth and productivity. 
Para 117: Promote effective use of land 
Para 118: Opportunities and benefits of the reuse of land 
Para 127: Well-designed development 
Para 170: Contribution to and enhancement of the natural and local 
environment. 
Para 175: Harm to habitats and biodiversity. 
Para 189: Applicants should describe the significance of any heritage assets 
affected. 
Para 192: LPAs should take account of desirability of sustaining the significance 
and positive contribution of heritage assets. 
Para 194: Harm to or loss of significance of a heritage asset should require clear 
and convincing justification. 
Para 195: Substantial harm should result in refusal unless substantial public 
benefits outweigh it. 
Para 196: Less than substantial harm should be weighed against public 
benefits. 

Page 24



Para 197: Effect of development on significance of non-designated heritage 
assets should be considered. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
Determining a planning application 
 
Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP6 – Employment, Tourism, Community Facilities and Retail 
LP11 – Whittlesey 
LP14 – Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in 
Fenland 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP18 – The Historic Environment 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 
 

8. KEY ISSUES 
• Principle of Development  
• Flood Risk  
• Heritage, Visual Impact & Character 
• Residential Amenity 
• Impact on Grosvenor House 
• Highway Safety 
• Other Matters 

 
9. BACKGROUND 
 
9.1. The application site forms part of a relatively extensive planning history in the 

area, however the only permission relevant to the current proposal was granted 
in 2003 and was not implemented. That permission related to the construction of 
a three-storey building on the northern part of the site that incorporated 
Grosvenor House within the resulting structure.  

 
9.2. Pre-application advice was sought regarding the current scheme in 2018 for a 

scheme broadly similar to the original submission, incorporating 3-storey 
buildings to either side of Grosvenor House. The response provided to that 
request was that the scheme would not be supported due to its impact on the 
street scene and the setting of the nearby listed buildings. 

 
10. ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development  

10.1. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement hierarchy 
within the District, setting out the scale of development appropriate to each level 
of the hierarchy. 
 

10.2. Whittlesey is a Market Town, one of four settlements within the highest level of 
the hierarchy where the majority of the development within the District is 
expected to take place over the plan period 
 

Page 25



10.3. Policy LP6 of the Fenland Local Plan sets out the strategy in relation to 
employment, tourism, community facilities and retail. Development is 
encouraged that would maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of the 
town centres, subject to it being appropriate of a nature and scale appropriate to 
the role and function of its proposed location. Retail development is directed in 
the first instance to the Primary Shopping Frontages and the Primary Shopping 
Area, and then Town/District centre locations. 
 

10.4. The application site lies within the town centre boundary, however it is not 
designated as a Primary Shopping Frontage. The  Primary Shopping Frontage 
includes the supermarket to the north of the site, Blunt’s Lane to the northwest, 
High Causeway to the west and Eastgate to the south, meaning that the 
application site and Grosvenor House are the only parts of the block on which 
they are located that are not designated as Primary Shopping Frontage. 

 
10.5. The proposal includes the provision of a retail unit within part of the ground floor 

level of Unit A, with the remainder of the development comprising residential 
units. The introduction of a new retail unit into the defined Town Centre is 
acceptable as a matter of principle, and the residential units proposed would not 
fundamentally alter the character of the area as one dominated by retail 
premises. 
 

10.6. On that basis, there are no policies that oppose the type of development 
proposed as a matter of principle, and consideration needs to be given to 
detailed matters. 
 
Flood Risk 

10.7. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and paragraphs 155-165 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework set out the approach to developing land in relation 
to flood risk, with both documents steering development in the first instance 
towards land at a lower risk of flooding. 
 

10.8. The application site lies within flood zone 1, which is the lowest flood risk 
category. The LLFA have confirmed that they have no objection subject to 
conditions requiring submission of the detailed surface water drainage 
proposals and their maintenance arrangements. 
 
Heritage, Visual Impact & Character 

10.9. Policy LP18 addresses matters concerning the historic environment within 
Fenland, noting that development proposals will be required to describe and 
assess the significance of any heritage asset, identify the impact of proposed 
works on its character and provide justification for those works, especially if they 
would harm the setting of the asset. 
 

10.10. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development proposals 
to deliver and protect high quality environments throughout the district. 
Proposals must demonstrate they make a positive contribution to the local 
distinctiveness and character of the area, enhancing their local setting and both 
responding to and improving the character of the local built environment whilst 
not adversely impacting on the street scene, settlement pattern or landscape 
character of the surrounding area. 

 
10.11. In this regard, the proposal has been amended significantly from the initial 

submission details to ensure that the proposed buildings have an acceptable 
impact on their surroundings. The proposed number of retail units has been 

Page 26



reduced in order to reduce the overall height of the proposed buildings and 
reduce the proposed number of storeys within each building from 3 to 2. This 
has resulted in the overall height of the buildings now being of a similar height to 
Grosvenor House rather than being higher than that building. The position of the 
buildings themselves on the site has also been amended to increase the 
separation of Unit B from the public footpath along Grosvenor Road, securing 
the visual primacy of Grosvenor House within the street scene. 

 
10.12. The street scene drawing provided alongside the application demonstrates that 

the proposed buildings do not result in over intensive development through a 
cramped appearance, particularly when taking into consideration the site plan 
and the setting back of their front elevations. There remain gaps in the built 
frontage to both the south and north of the site to provide access and ensure 
retention of the mature Wellingtonia. 

 
10.13. The proposed buildings are indicated as being constructed using cream brick 

under a dark grey roof tile. The immediate vicinity of the application site is 
notable for its use of brick as a construction material, and although Grosvenor 
House is finished in a white painted brick, this building is of particular note 
because the finish is unusual rather than a typical example of construction 
materials within the area. It is also noted that the vast majority of bricks used in 
the vicinity of the application site are of a weathered yellow/cream finish rather 
than a red brick and there are only sporadic examples where that brick finish 
has been painted/rendered.  

 
10.14. The Conservation Officer has confirmed that the proposal put forward is 

acceptable, subject to a condition requiring the approval of detailed materials for 
the construction of the buildings as the bricks are not considered to be 
appropriate. 

 
Residential Amenity 

10.15. Policy LP2 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development proposals to 
promote high levels of residential amenity, and policy LP16 requires 
development proposals to demonstrate that they do not adversely impact on the 
amenity of neighbouring users whilst providing sufficient amenity space for the 
proposal, with the guideline for non-flat development being one third of the plot 
area. 
 

10.16. Given the town centre location of the development, there is not a high proportion 
of residential uses within the area likely to be affected by the scheme although 
several of the buildings nearby do benefit from first floor residential premises. In 
line with the requirements of policy LP2 and LP16, consideration has been given 
to the amenity levels of the proposed dwellings.  
 

10.17. In this regard, the amendments to the scheme address the nature of the 
residential amenity relationships between the proposed flats and the 
surrounding buildings, features and uses (see paragraph 10.20 onwards for 
consideration of the impact on non-residential uses). In particular, the mature 
Wellingtonia tree to the south of the proposed access has had a substantial 
impact on the proposals for Unit B, and amendments have been made to ensure 
that the main windows into habitable rooms within the proposed flats have been 
positioned to ensure they are not overshadowed by the foliage of the tree to 
avoid pressure being created for the tree to be reduced or removed in the future 
by occupants of the unit. 

 

Page 27



10.18. The proposed flats do not benefit from any external amenity areas of their own, 
however given the town centre location and the nature of the units themselves, 
this is considered to be acceptable as such buildings are seldom accompanied 
by external amenity land. 

 
10.19. The amenity levels within the proposed development are acceptable in terms of 

the relevant policies of the development plan. 
 

Impact on Grosvenor House 
10.20. Following concerns raised with the agent with regard to the proximity of Unit B to 

the windows in the side elevation of Grosvenor house, this unit has been moved 
further to the south, leaving a separation of approximately 2m between its side 
elevation and that of Grosvenor House, rather than the 1.2m originally shown. 

 
10.21. This separation distance is not considered to be sufficient to mitigate the harm 

caused to the ingress of natural light into the rooms within Grosvenor House 
served by those windows, last used, as far as can be ascertained, as 
offices/meeting rooms. It is considered that should the development be 
permitted the future use of Grosvenor House could be prejudiced due to this 
lack of natural light,  and that this would therefore be contrary to policy LP16(e) 
of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) which requires development to not adversely 
impact on neighbouring users 

 
10.22. Notwithstanding the planning situation, Members should perhaps be aware that 

offices do have a ‘right to light’ in law. 
 
Highway Safety 

10.23. Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development to provide a 
well-designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving priority to the needs of 
pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired mobility and users of public transport. 
 

10.24. Appendix A of the Fenland Local Plan addresses the matter of parking provision 
as part of development proposal, with parking standards for residential 
development dependent on the number of bedrooms within a property, and 
commercial provision on the basis of floorspace provision within the unit. 

 
10.25. According to those parking standards, the development would require 12 

parking spaces for the residential units, and a further 5 spaces for the retail unit.  
 

10.26. It is noted however that Appendix A also states that “where a site has good 
public transport links, such as in a central area of a market town, a reduction in 
car parking provision may be negotiated and, in special circumstances, nil 
parking provision may be appropriate”. 

 
10.27. The applicant has also provided an analysis of the usage of the public car park 

opposite the site on Grosvenor Road outside normal working hours in the 
morning and evening, when visitors to the properties may be expected. 

 
10.28. The site is, as noted earlier, is located directly adjacent to the main town centre 

and primary shopping area of Whittlesey, and benefits from having a bus stop 
directly opposite adjacent to the car park on Grosvenor Road. Although not 
located in the centre of the town, Whittlesey also has a railway station linking it 
to Peterborough and Cambridge. The site is therefore considered to have 
extremely good public transport connections, and given this and the proximity of 
the public car park, it is considered that the shortfall in this instance (of 10 

Page 28



spaces) is acceptable on that basis, particularly given the benefits that the 
proposal brings to the area in other respects such as bringing into active use the 
currently disused land to either side of Grosvenor House, the investment in retail 
provision within the town centre and the provision of a number of residential 
units in a sustainable location, contributing towards the housing targets for the 
District.  

 
10.29. The proposal uses an existing vehicular access, with the removal of a section of 

wall allowing the scheme to gain access into the turning and parking area for the 
proposal The plans have been amended following the initial comments of the 
Local Highways Authority removing some of the parking spaces that did not 
appear practical, and adding in visibility splays and a sealed and drained 
access. Comments regarding the method of deliveries is addressed separately 
below. 

 
Other Matters 
 
Deliveries. 

10.30. Concerns have been identified with regard to the servicing of the retail unit with 
regard to deliveries and similar concerns regarding the collection of refuse from 
the building. 
 

10.31. The applicant has responded in this regard, stating that deliveries will be limited 
due to the reduction from the original proposal to a single commercial unit, and 
the provision of a rear entrance to the unit allowing delivery vehicles to pull off 
the road. The response also notes that deliveries will only be on certain days, 
but does not specify what those days will be. The response concludes by 
indicating that they would be willing to consider a condition to control such 
matters. 

 
11. CONCLUSIONS 

 
11.1. In conclusion therefore, the principle of the development of the site is in 

accordance with the locational policies of the development plan, the impact of 
the development on flood risk in the area is within acceptable tolerances, and 
the intensification of the access to the site will not result in unacceptable risk to 
highway safety.  
 

11.2. The parking provision associated with the development is below the levels set 
out in the Development Plan, however the sustainability of the location mitigates 
this impact and the parking standards within the plan allow for lesser provision in 
such areas where appropriate. 

 
11.3. The visual impact of the proposal on its immediate setting is acceptable in terms 

of the requirements of the policies of the Local Plan. The development now 
retains the primacy within the street scene of the existing Grosvenor House 
building, with the proposed new buildings utilising aspects of its construction 
and appearance to reinforce the distinctiveness of the area. The proposal will 
have satisfactory residential amenity standards and will not result in harm to 
neighbouring residential amenity. 

 
11.4. Delivery facilities are proposed in relation to the property and can be controlled 

through the use of an appropriately worded planning condition, with FDC 
retaining control over the access to the land as landowner to ensure that access 
to the building is undertaken in an appropriate manner. 

Page 29



 
11.5. Notwithstanding the above matters, the proposed Unit B would be located in 

such a position in relation to Grosvenor House, and would be of a sufficient 
scale, that its presence would have a detrimental impact on the light received by 
multiple rooms within that building that may prejudice their future use for 
currently permitted purposes. This impact is considered to be of sufficient 
significance as to outweigh the beneficial aspects of the scheme and justify its 
refusal. 

 
12. RECOMMENDATION 

 
REFUSAL for the following reason: 
 

1. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan requires development to deliver 
and protect high quality environments within the district, with paragraph 
(e) of that policy noting that development will only be permitted if it can 
demonstrate that it does not adversely impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring users for reasons including loss of light. The proposal is for 
the construction of a two-storey building that is located 2m from the 
windows serving offices/meting rooms within the adjacent commercial 
building, and the scale and proximity of the proposal is such that the 
building would have a detrimental effect on the light received by those 
windows and would potentially prejudice the future use of that building. 
The scheme would therefore be contrary to policy LP16 (e) of the 
Fenland Local Plan (2014). 

 

Page 30



Page 31



6.80

6.31

6.30

6.83

Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0

0
9

 
&

 
2

0
1

1

S

6
.
5
0

6

.

5

0

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

BD

Eaves 12.719

Eaves 11.398

Eaves 11.797

Eaves 11.988

Eaves 8.821

6.82

6.84

GV

6.65

GY

6.76

GY

6.69

GY

6.47

GY

CL 6.698

IC

6.70

6.78

6.65

6.70

6.82

6.77

6.74

6.97

6.77

6.75

6.71

6.60

6.58

6.75

6.71

6.73

6.72

6.62

6.54

6.50

6.50

6.53

6.31

6.33

6.36

6.31

6.32

6.46

6.66

6.58

LP

CL6.698

MH

CL6.820

MH

CL6.752

MH

CL6.763

MH

CL6.808

MH

CL6.412

MH

Ridge 13.869

Ridge 14.064

Ridge 15.078

Ridge 10.915

Ridge 10.331

6.59

6.59

6.57

6.78

6.83

6.69

6.86

6.87

6.72

6.78

6.78

6.83

6.59

6.78

6.80

6.85

6.68

6.74

6.60

6.65

6.73

6.70

6.68

6.76

6.84

6.81

6.82

6.58

6.69

6.68

6.63

6.89

6.85

6.64

6.61

6.31

6.30

6.28

6.64

6.63

6.78

6.78

6.76

6.74

6.84

6.85

6.86

6.88

6.91

6.804

6.626

9.055

12.609

12.001

9.892

8.611

8.550

6.72

6.70

6.71

6.84

6.90

6.81

6.80

6.61

6.55

6.55

6.55

6.52

6.83

6.84

6.63

6.66

6.73

6.85

6.62

6.61

6.57

6.54

6.53

6.39

6.58

ST

ST

ST

ST

CL6.553

TC

S 18.0

G 1.5

H 20.0

TP

TP

6.87

6.87

6.93

6.66

6.75

6.79

6.73

6.64

6.65

6.64

6.63

6.66

P
/
W

M1

M2

ASPHALT

COUNCIL OFFICES

UNMADE

PAVED

C
/
B
 
2
M

CONCRETE

ASPHALT

GRASS

P
age 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SLABS  (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
WASTE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
PROPOSED HEDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
OVERHEAD CABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
INSPECTION CHAMBER 

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
UNIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
RJB (East) Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Grosvenor Road, 

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Whittlesey

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Cambridgeshire 

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
PE7 1PU

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Nov 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
H5179/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
1 to 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Butter Cross

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
11 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
BLUNTS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Lovells

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Vinpenta

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
GROSVENOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Angel

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
The Causeway Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
HIGH CAUSEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
6.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
3 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Whit Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
6.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Lovells Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
2m PEDESTRIAN VISIBILITY SPLAYS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
JULY 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
FIRST 10m OF ROAD TO C.C.C REGULATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
DEC  2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
AMENDED ARRANGEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
JAN  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
AMENDED ARRANGEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
MAR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
PLANNERS COMMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
APR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Eastgate Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
PLANNERS COMMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
APR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
PLANNERS COMMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
JUL  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
PLANNERS COMMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
UNIT A

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
TURNING AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
TARMAC 

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
ENSURE SURFACE  FALL AWAY FROM GROSVENOR ROAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
PLANS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
JUL  2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
SCHEME AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
JUL  2020



Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0

0
9

 
&

 
2

0
1

1

P
age 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
RJB (East) Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Grosvenor Road, 

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
Whittlesey

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Cambridgeshire 

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
PE7 1PU

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Proposed Elevation 

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
& Section 

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Unit A

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Nov 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
H5179/04

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
CAR PARK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
PROPOSED RIGHT HAND SIDE ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
PROPOSED LEFT HAND SIDE ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
JULY 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
DEC  2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
BUILDING ARRANGEMENTS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
MAR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
APR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
JUL  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
JUL  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
DINER

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
PROPOSED SECTION A-A 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
PROPOSED SECTION B-B 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
MATERIALS: WALL : VANDERSANDEN DRAYTON CREAM BRICK  JOINERY : ANTHRACITE  CONSERVATION STYLE UPVC  GUTTER AND DOWN PIPE : BLACK UPVC  ROOF : QUINN WESTERN SLATE PREMIUM GRAPHITE ROOF TILES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
PLANS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
JAN  2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
WINDOWS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
JUL  2020



Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0

0
9

 
&

 
2

0
1

1

P
age 34

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
RJB (East) Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Grosvenor Road, 

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Whittlesey

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
Cambridgeshire 

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
PE7 1PU

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Proposed Floor Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Unit A

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Nov 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
H5179/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
LOUNGE/ DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
BEDROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
BEDROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
BEDROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
BATHROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
BATHROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
BATHROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
PROTECTED CORRIDOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
PROTECTED  HALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
PROTECTED HALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
PROTECTED HALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
BLOCK PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
PROPOSED UNIT A GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
LOUNGE/ DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
JULY 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
FLAT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
FLAT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
FLAT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
FLAT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
FLAT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
DEC  2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
DISABLED  TOILET 

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
PROTECTED  HALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
BEDROOM 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
BUILDING ARRANGEMENTS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
MAR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
APR  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
UTILITIES  CUPBOARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
BEDROOM 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
BEDROOM 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
C 

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
DINER 

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
CUPBOARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
DINER

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
BEDROOM 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
C 

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
C 

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
BIN STORE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
BLOCK PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
PERMEABLE BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
GROSVENOR HOUSE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
(104.4²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
(60.8²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
(49.72²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
(55.54²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
(51.48²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
AUG  2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
PLANS AMENDED  

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
JAN  2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
NO SIDE WINDOWS OR OPENING IN GROSVENOR HOUSE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
AMENDED WINDOWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
JUL  2020



Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0

0
9

 
&

 
2

0
1

1

P
age 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
RJB (East) Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
Grosvenor Road, 

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Whittlesey

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Cambridgeshire 

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
PE7 1PU

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
Proposed Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Arrangements 

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Unit B

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Nov 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
H5179/05

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION / STREET SCENE 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
PROPOSED UNIT B RIGHT HAND SIDE ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
PROPOSED UNIT B REAR ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
PROPOSED UNIT B LEFT HAND SIDE ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
PROPOSED UNIT B FRONT ELEVATION 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
PROPOSED SECTION Y-Y 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
PROPOSED UNIT B GROUND FLOOR PLAN 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
PROPOSED UNIT B FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1:100

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
JUL 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
FLAT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
FLAT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
18m WELLINGTONIA TREE  SEE TREE REPORT FOR MORE INFORMATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
DEC 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
CLIENTS COMMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
JAN 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
APR 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
APR 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
APR 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
JUL 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
FLAT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
FLAT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
PLANNERS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
AUG 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
GROSVENOR HOUSE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
MATERIALS: WALL : VANDERSANDEN DRAYTON CREAM BRICK  JOINERY : ANTHRACITE  CONSERVATION STYLE UPVC  GUTTER AND DOWN PIPE : BLACK UPVC  ROOF : QUINN WESTERN SLATE PREMIUM GRAPHITE ROOF TILES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
(40.87²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
(48.85²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
(47.32²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
(47.32²m)

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
AUG 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
AUG 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
AMENDED WINDOWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
JUL 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
AMENDED SCHEME

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
JUL 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
NEIGHBOURING WINDOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
NEIGHBOURING WINDOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
NEIGHBOURING DOOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
GROSVENOR HOUSE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
NEIGHBOURING WINDOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
BEDROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
BEDROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
SHOWER  ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
SHOWER  ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
PROTECTED  HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
KITCHEN 



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

F/YR19/0761/F 
 
Applicant:  JRL Property (Whittlesey) 
Limited 

 

Agent :  Mr Fraser Hickling 
Phillips Planning Services Limited 

Lattersey Field, Benwick Road, Whittlesey, Cambridgeshire 
 
Erect 4no industrial units (B1, B2, B8 use), security office and 3.0 metre high acoustic 
screen with associated parking and hardstanding areas including formation of 
swales, attenuation pond and associated drainage infrastructure (part retrospective) 
 
Officer recommendation: Grant 
 
Reason for Committee: Town Council comments contrary to Officer recommendation 
 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1   The principle of developing this site for industrial/commercial use has already been 
established by way of hybrid application F/YR15/0997/O (23 industrial and 
commercial units).  The application put forward is for the use of the site as a single 
planning unit which is considered to be less intense and therefore have less of an 
impact than the previously permitted development.  The applicants foresee the site 
employing 100 people including 60 new jobs and an investment of approximately 
£10 million, supporting the Council’s aspirations to create additional job 
opportunities and supporting economic growth. 

 
1.2   The design and impact on visual amenity and character of the area has been 

considered and the application is accompanied by a Landscape and Visual Impact 
Assessment which did not reveal any significant issues.  Soft landscaping and 
enhanced tree and native hedge planting will mitigate the visual impact of the 
proposal.  

 
1.3   The overall impact on residential amenity is not considered to be significantly 

detrimental.  Assessment of the noise, air quality/dust, lighting and land 
contamination has been undertaken and measures proposed to ensure any adverse 
impacts are sufficiently mitigated. 

 
1.4   The access is as previously permitted under F/YR15/0997/O which created a 

significantly higher trip generation and the impact on the highway network at that 
time was considered acceptable.  The proposed development, with significantly 
fewer vehicle movements would have an even smaller impact and as such must be 
considered acceptable. 

 
1.5   Flood risk and drainage have been considered and an acceptable surface water 

attenuation scheme has been put forward. 
 
1.6   The site is in close proximity to locally designated wildlife sites and provides habitats 

for protected species; the impact of the proposal on these has been fully assessed 
and considered acceptable subject to relevant conditions. 

 
1.7   The proposal is considered acceptable and accords with Policies LP1, LP2, LP3, 

LP6, LP11, LP14, LP15, LP16, LP17 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.  As 
such it is recommended to grant the application. 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 

 
2 SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
2.1 The application site is located to the north of Benwick Road, Whittlesey, accessed 

via a private road through Lattersey Hill Trading Estate and consists of 
approximately 9.3ha.  The site is situated beyond the existing industrial estate, 
frontage dwellings and trees/vegetation, extending back some 505m from Benwick 
Road.  Previous uses include a Sunday market, haulage, and subsequently was 
subject to unauthorised tipping of waste materials, however this has since been 
remediated through the granting of F/YR15/0977/O and the discharging of relevant 
conditions in this respect. 
 

2.2 The applicant company have been on site since summer 2018 and some of the 
processes being applied for are already being undertaken.  There is a temporary 
‘tent’ on site in the location of unit 1, hardstanding has been created and there are 
parking areas for cars and HGVs, along with a number of containers, site office 
and outside storage, there are also cranes on site.  There is herras fencing within 
the site, some palisade fencing has been erected to the site boundaries and a 
permanent newt barrier has been created.  To the north of the site is an ecology 
area with ponds and the site is surrounded by a tree belt to the east and south, 
which is covered by two Tree Preservation Orders (TPO 05/1984 and TPO 
06/1984). 
 

2.3 To the west of the site is the Lattersey Hill Trading Estate and to the north of this 
the County Wildlife Site of Railway Lakes, to the north of the site is the railway line 
and associated land beyond which is Lattersey Nature Reserve, to the east is 
agricultural land and to the south Benwick Road where there are a number of 
residential properties, further lakes are to the south of Benwick Road. 
 

3 PROPOSAL 
 

3.1 The application seeks full planning permission for 4 industrial units (B1, B2, B8 
use), security office and 3.0 metre high acoustic screen with associated parking 
and hardstanding areas including of formation swales, attenuation pond and 
associated drainage infrastructure; as detailed below: 
 
Unit 1 
This unit is located approximately 63m north of the residential properties of 77-81 
Benwick Road, to the east of the commercial building of 57 Benwick Road.  This is 
a single-storey fabrication workshop which measures 13.5m x 13.5m and 6m in 
height. 
 
Unit 2 
This unit is located north of the security office which adjoins the access into the 
site, to the east of 43 Benwick Road (Smurfit Kappa) and south of the proposed 
car park.  This is 2-storey unit measures 31m x 31m and 8.2m in height, a total 33 
solar PV panels are to be installed over the 4 roof slopes. 
 
On the ground floor are toilets, changing and drying rooms, a medical room, 
canteen, training room and meeting rooms. 
 
On the first-floor are offices, meeting rooms, kitchenette and toilets. 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

Unit 3 
This unit is located to the far west of the site, south of Railway Lakes and east of 
East Anglian Resources Yard.  This unit is a single-storey, 2 bay unit, to be used 
for shot blasting, high pressure jet washing and painting, this measures 20m x 
40m and 10m in height (extract ducts extend above this). 
 
Unit 4  
This unit is located to the north of the site, with Railway Lakes to the west, the 
ecology area to the north and agricultural fields to the east.  This is a single-storey, 
4 bay unit, to be used for dry weather and storage, measuring 40m x 100m and 
10m in height. 
 
Security office 
This is located to the north of an adjoining the access, south of unit 2, this 
measures 10.9m x 6.1m and 2.8m in height.  
 

3.2 In addition there are: 
 
- Swales, an attenuation pond and drainage infrastructure, which involves 

alterations to site levels by up to approximately 1.4m 
- An ecological area to the north of the site and enhanced planting to site 

boundaries  
- 87 car parking spaces and 50 HGV spaces 
- Concrete service yard and external storage areas at between 3m and 6m 

high 
- 3m high Acoustic fence to the south of the site 
- 2.4m high palisade fence to boundaries 
- External lighting and CCTV 
- Fire hydrants 

 
3.3 The proposed use is two-fold: 

 
Slip structures 
Slip forming is the pouring of concrete to form tall/long structures, usually used in 
the middle of buildings such as lift shafts.   The equipment is delivered, stored, 
made good, reconfigured, partially pre-assembled and sent back out on to site; 
this involves cutting, welding, drilling, bending, shot blasting, cleaning and 
painting.  Forklifts and mobile tower cranes (x 3) are used to load and unload 
trailers.  Waste is dealt with through appointed contractors or in house 
departments. 
 

 Plant and Logistics 
To stock (purchase and store), process, fabricate, clean and repair mechanical 
and non-mechanical construction plant, tools and machinery for use on the groups 
construction sites around the UK.  Waste is dealt with through appointed 
contractors or in house departments. 
 

3.4   The applicants foresee the site employing 100 people including 60 new jobs and an 
investment of approximately £10 million. 
 

3.5   Whilst the site is operational for transport movements 24/7 and is controlled by 
security, operational hours are 06:00 – 18:00 Monday – Friday and 06:00 – 13:00 
Saturdays with Sundays as required.  With the site fully operational, for production 
and deliveries 07:00- 18:00 Monday to Friday. 
 

Page 39



 

3.6 Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 
 
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docume
nts&keyVal=PWXUPPHE01U00 
 

4 SITE PLANNING HISTORY (most recent only) 
 
F/YR19/3062/COND Details reserved by conditions 5 

(Remediation and levelling) and 12 (GCN)of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O  
 

Approved 
01/08/2019 

F/YR18/3061/COND Details reserved by condition 12 (GCN) of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O 
 

Approved 
26/06/2018 

F/YR18/0201/SC Screening Opinion:- Construction Plant and 
Logistics site ( workshop office/welfare 
building car park trailer park and storage 
and drainage areas) 
 

Further 
details not 
required 
14/03/2018 

F/YR16/3128/COND Details reserved by conditions 5 and 10 of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O 
 

Withdrawn 

F/YR16/3122/COND Details reserved by conditions 5 
(Remediation and levelling) and 10 
(Construction Management Plan) of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O 
 

Approved 
02/09/2017 

F/YR16/3090/COND  Details reserved by condition 12 (GCN) of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O 
 

Approved 
14/10/2016 

F/YR16/3086/COND Details reserved by condition 12 (GCN) of 
planning permission F/YR15/0997/O 
 

Approved 
14/10/2016 

F/YR16/0538/F Removal of condition 11 of planning 
permission F/YR15/0997/O in relation to 
provision of a 1.8m footway link 
 

Granted 
23/09/2016 

F/YR15/0997/O Hybrid application: Full planning permission 
for the remediation and levelling of the land 
and Outline planning permission for erection 
of 23no industrial and commercial units (B1 
B2 and B8) (Outline with matters committed 
in respect of access and layout) 
 

Granted 
20/05/2016 

 
4.1 There is further history in relation to the use of the site as a Sunday Market and 

haulage depot. 
 

5 CONSULTATIONS 
 

5.1 Town Council  
The Town Council have recommended refusal due to insufficient highways 
infrastructure and inaccuracies in the travel plan.  They have also written to the 
local MP to raise these issues and the requirement for a bypass or relief road. 
 

Page 40

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PWXUPPHE01U00
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PWXUPPHE01U00


 

The Transport Assessment Team at Cambridgeshire County Council Highways 
have responded to the comments made by the Town Council and rebutted the 
issues raised. 
 

5.2 Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority (24/9/2019) 
F/YR15/0997/O - Outline planning permission for the erection of 23no industrial 
and commercial units (B1, B2 and B8) (Outline with matters committed in respect 
of access and layout) 
 
This is full application for the erection of 4 units mixed used business units. In light 
of the previous consent that exists for this site, I have no highway objections 
subject to the same highway conditions imposed against planning consent 
F/YR15/0997/O. 
 

5.3 Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority (Update 5/11/2019)  
The only conditions I would impose would be a parking and turning condition, 
however I note this was not conditioned for planning consent F/YR15/0997/F. 
 

5.4 Town Planning Technician South East – Network Rail (24/9/2019) 
Thank you for consulting Network Rail regarding the above application. After 
examining the plans I would like to inform you that Network Rail have no 
comments to make. 
 

5.5 Natural England 
Natural England has no comments to make on this application.   
 

5.6 Arboricultural Officer (FDC) (28/10/2019) 
My comments are confined to the landscape proposal and reference the two 
submitted landscape drawings Latt-Land.01 C & Latt-Land.02 B. 
 
Drawing 01 C relates to the larger of the two areas adjacent to the existing 
industrial units Smurfit Kappa and Forterra. There is little screening to these 
existing units whilst the north boundary is screened by existing woodland. The 
east boundary has an existing belt of mature willow that acts as a screen. 
 
Drawing 02.B relates to the southern section of the site bordering Benwick Road 
and some smaller local business premises. Whilst the site has some existing 
screening to the road, there is little vegetation to the rear of these business 
properties. 
 
The proposed landscape plans make good use of native species around the 
boundaries and is acceptable. 
 
The proposed planting is of small stock so it will take a number of years for the 
trees to attain a significant size. 
 
We do require a maintenance plan for the usual 5 year period to cover 
management, replacement of failed plants and watering. 
 

5.7 CCC (Lead Local Flood Authority) 
Objections were received from the LLFA on 13/9/2019, 31/1/2020, 27/2/2020 and 
15/4/2020, due to inadequate surface water drainage schemes. 
 
Their objection was removed on 1/5/2020, advising that: 
 

Page 41



 

 ‘surface water from the proposed development can be managed through the use 
of a series of swales and drainage channels restricting surface water discharge to 
5l/s.  Water quality has been adequately addressed when assessed against the 
Simple Index Approach outlined in the CIRIA SuDS Manual.’ 
 
The following condition/informative requested: 
 
Condition 
 
Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by 
a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that the drainage system has been 
constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations) and provide 
details of the management/maintenance of all drainage features. 
 
Reason 
To prevent an increased risk of flooding and protect water quality 
 
Informative 
 
Pollution Control 
Surface water and groundwater bodies are highly vulnerable to pollution and the 
impact of construction activities. It is essential that the risk of pollution (particularly 
during the construction phase) is considered and mitigated appropriately. It is 
important to remember that flow within the watercourse is likely to vary by season 
and it could be dry at certain times throughout the year. Dry watercourses should 
not be overlooked as these watercourses may flow or even flood following heavy 
rainfall. 
 

5.8 Environment Agency  
We have reviewed the information provided and have no comment to make on this 
application. 
 

5.9 Anglian Water Services Ltd  
Our records show that there are no assets owned by Anglian Water or those 
subject to an adoption agreement within the development site boundary. 
 
The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Whittlesey Water 
Recycling Centre that will have available capacity for these flows 
 
From the details submitted to support the planning application the proposed 
method of surface water management does not relate to Anglian Water operated 
assets. As such, we are unable to provide comments on the suitability of the 
surface water management. 
 
A number of informatives have also been included. 
 

5.10 Environment & Health Services (FDC) (17/9/2019) 
I have made a visit to the vicinity and subsequently spent time studying the 
documentation submitted in support of the application. 
 
I have paid particular attention to the following; 
 
o External light pollution assessment report and associated lighting layout 
plans - Design MEP 

Page 42



 

o Noise impact assessment report - Spectrum Acoustic Consultants 
o Construction dust assessment report - Peter Brett Associates LLP 
o Ground investigations report - Soil Consultants 
o Remediation validation (hotspot removal) - Terragen Environmental 
Consultants Limited 
 
I can confirm that I am satisfied with the content of the aforementioned, and where 
relevant, acknowledge the mitigation measures to be implemented so as to keep 
any potential disturbance to nearby sensitive receptors to an absolute minimum.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, I must advise that this granting of planning consent 
wouldn't indemnify against statutory nuisance action being taken should the 
Environmental Health department receive complaints in respect of noise, dust or 
odour which are subsequently substantiated, which could be a result of lapses in 
mitigation measures outlined in the above reports. 
 
Please let me know if you require any further clarification from an environmental 
health standpoint. 
 
Although the applicants have provided details of the lighting, installation must be in 
accordance with the Institution of Lighting Professionals Guidance Notes for the 
Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011”. This Institution strongly recommends 
that planning authorities adopt obtrusive light limitations for exterior lighting 
installations. 
 
The guidance specifies obtrusive light limitations for sky glow, light into windows, 
source intensity and building luminance. Acceptable limits are specified dependent 
upon location. 
 
An suitable example of a condition for these purposes which can be applied to this 
scenario is as follows: 
 
The use of lighting shall not exceed the obtrusive light limitations for sky glow, light 
into windows, source intensity and building luminance specified in the Institution of 
Lighting Professionals document Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive 
Light GN01:2011. 
 
The applicant is required to demonstrate compliance with the condition, by 
measurement or calculation, in circumstances where the LPA has reasonable 
concern lighting levels on the site. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the amenity of surrounding and local resident 
 
From observing the history associated with the site, I note that the contaminated 
land has been previously addressed on the site, going back to the original 
application F/YR15/0997/O. The only outstanding information I can determine 
which I would expect this to follow without need for condition at this stage 
according to para 3.4 of the Remediation Validation – Hotspot Removal report by 
Terragen Environmental Consultants Limited (ref. TJ3337BR1v1.0) is as follows: 
“in accordance with the remediation strategy, additional records (i.e. gas protection 
measures and barrier pipes) will be gathered on completion of the development to 
compile a final verification report.” 
 
I’m comfortable with the Construction dust assessment report provided by Peter 
Brett Associates LLP, and in the event any complaints are received during the 

Page 43



 

construction phase, we will be able to investigate and have reference to the 
mitigation proposals to determine whether they are operating as stated, and with 
best practicable means. 
 
Concerning noise, according to the Noise impact assessment report by Spectrum 
Acoustic Consultants (AP1253/18123/First Issue) a 3m high acoustic fence will be 
erected on the southern boundary of the site. With operations on the site being 
proposed Monday to Friday, 07:00-17:00, I would suggest the following condition 
in respect of noise: 
 
Between the hours of 07:00-17:00 noise emissions from the site, including any 
corrections for acoustic characteristics, shall be no more than 5db above the 
prevailing background noise level at the nearest residential property. 
Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of surrounding and local residents 
 

5.11 Environment & Health Services (FDC) (23/1/2020) 
I've observed the updated information submitted, paying particular attention to the 
proposed acoustic fencing detail and the amended master plan 
(MDS_M009A_00_03_P13). 
 
I've no adverse comments to make concerning the actual acoustic fence design, 
and I acknowledge as discussed that the positioning has altered by way of 
bringing a section of the fencing closer to the residential properties on Benwick 
Road, essentially moving it from the north of the attenuation pond to the south. 
The altering of position should in no way have a detrimental effect on its 
effectiveness to mitigate noise emanating from activities on site, and I am 
therefore satisfied with the proposals from an environmental health standpoint. 
 

5.12 Environment & Health Services (FDC) (16/7/2020) 
There is a need to condition the evening and night-time periods in order to protect 
residents during these periods as without such a condition, there would be no 
restrictions on present and also on future operators of the site, but also mindful of 
current planning conditions.  With regard to a noise restriction I would suggest the 
following:- 
 
         ‘Monday – Friday       07:00 – 17:00 
          Saturdays                   07:00 – 13:00  
          Sundays and Public Holidays - Nil’ 
 
This is as previously advised by Environmental Health in a consultation response 
dated 24 October 2019.  
 
          ‘At all other times:- 
 
      Noise emanating from the site should not exceed the prevailing background 
noise level by 0dB(A) Leq, when measured at the boundary of the nearest noise 
sensitive building. 
 
       Impact noise should not exceed 5dB(A) above the prevailing background 
noise level when measured at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive building. 
‘  
If these 2 extra items could be added to the response from Russell Watkins, I am 
of the opinion that this would be the most appropriate way to address the issue of 
evening and night-time noise, without being over-burdening on these new 4 units, 
bearing in mind the level of conditioning attached to the existing units on the site. 

Page 44



 

 
5.13 PCC Wildlife Officer (11/9/2019) 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the revised details relating to this 
application which I note is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 
(July 2019) as an update to the previous survey carried out in 2015. I have the 
following observations to make regarding ecology: 
 
Protected Species: 
Great Crested Newts:  
I am aware that a great crested newt mitigation strategy is currently being 
implemented under licence from Natural England, as required under the original 
outline permission. Provided that this continues to be adhered to, I am satisfied 
that GCN are unlikely to be affected by the current application proposal. 
 
Bats:  
As noted during the outline application, there are numerous mature trees at the 
perimeter of the site which have good potential to support bat roosts, as well as 
providing bat foraging/ commuting habitat; I am therefore pleased to note that 
these habitats are proposed to be retained. 
 
However, should any mature trees require felling, I would request that the trees 
are first surveyed or inspected by a suitably experienced ecologist for the 
presence of bats, and should evidence of bat roosts be found that appropriate 
mitigation measures are put in place, following consultation with the LPA. This 
may be secured by condition. 
 
Nesting Birds 
As noted during the outline application, the site is surrounded by hedgerows/ 
woodland which I am pleased to note is proposed to be retained, however the 
report indicates that some pruning/ felling may be required. Where any such 
vegetation is to be removed, these might provide suitable habitat for nesting birds 
during the nesting season (1st March to 31st August). 
 
I would therefore recommend that a suitably worded condition be attached 
requiring the avoidance of such site clearance works during this period, or where 
this is not possible, that a suitably worded condition be attached requiring the 
avoidance of such site clearance works during this period, or where this is not 
possible, that a suitably qualified ecologist first carries out a survey to establish 
that nesting birds are not present or that works would not disturb any nesting birds. 
 
I am concerned that the External Light Pollution Assessment and External Lighting 
LUX Levels Layout Drawing indicate relatively high LUX levels adjacent to 
sensitive habitats, in particular along the northern ecology area and along the 
eastern boundary tree belt. The lighting has the potential to negatively impact on 
protected species including bats and great crested newts. 
 
Whilst it is noted that perimeter lights are proposed to be switched off between 
2200 & 0700, I would nevertheless request that adjustments are sought from the 
proposed lighting layout (particularly around Unit 4) to bring LUX levels to 2 LUX 
or below at the site boundary to the ecology area and tree belt. 
 
Landscaping/ Site layout: 
The proposed site layout and associated Landscape Plan Drawings including 
species mixes appear acceptable. However it is recommended that a landscape 

Page 45



 

management plan is secured by condition to ensure that all new planting is 
successfully established during the first five years following planting. 
 
Designated Sites: 
The application site is located in close proximity to Lattersey Local Nature 
Reserve/ County Wildlife Site and Railway Lakes CWS however I consider that 
this proposal is unlikely to have an impact upon the features for which these sites 
have been designated, provided that all the above recommendations are secured 
as part of the planning decision. 
 
Recommendation: 
I would advise that prior to determination the external lighting details are revised to 
reduce light spillage into the ecology area and eastern tree belt. 
 
Subject to satisfactory resolution of the lighting issue, I would likely have no 
objection to the granting of full planning permission subject to strict adherence to 
the above ecological recommendations. 
 

5.14 PCC Wildlife Officer update 5/12/2019 
Comments as previous except: 
 
External Lighting: 
I am pleased to note that the External Lighting LUX Levels Layout Drawing (Rev 
C3) has been revised as previously advised, and that LUX levels adjacent to 
sensitive habitats, in particular along the northern ecology area and along the 
eastern boundary tree belt are now indicated at an acceptable level. The 
development may therefore be implemented in strict accordance with the updated 
lighting details. 
 
It is also advised that the perimeter lights are switched off between 2200 & 0700 
as proposed by the applicant. This may be secured by condition. 
 
Recommendation: 
I have no objection to the granting of full planning permission subject to strict 
adherence to the ecological recommendations 
 

5.15 Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service (1/10/2019) 
Require adequate provision for fire hydrants which can be secured by way of a 
condition. 
 

5.16 Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service (11/6/2020) 
I can confirm that the proposed hydrant provision as shown on the indicative 
drawing would be suitable to serve the development should the application be 
permitted, however; I am of the opinion that a planning condition should still be 
applied to ensure adequate emergency water supplies are installed & made 
available prior to occupation of the development. 
 

5.17 Designing Out Crime Officers (9/9/2019) 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application, I have viewed the 
documents in relation to community safety, crime, disorder and the fear of crime 
and completed a search of the Constabulary crime and incident systems for this 
location covering the last 12 months. While this is at present a location with a low 
vulnerability to the risk of crime there have been 3 burglaries in this time period.  
 

Page 46



 

There has obviously been some consideration regarding security measures and 
crime prevention. However with the storage of plant used for construction sites the 
security of the storage areas need to be good - this type of equipment is still stolen 
and used in other crime types. While this is to be a 24hr operation with security on 
site, it would be good to see any proposed boundary treatments other than 
landscaping and any proposed CCTV.  
 
This office would be happy to discuss Secured by Design, measures to help 
reduce vulnerability to crime and assist with any Security Needs Assessment 
required for Breeam. 
 
If I can be of further assistance please contact me. 
 

5.18 Designing Out Crime Officers 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application. I have viewed the 
revised proposals in relation to crime, disorder and the fear of crime and noted my 
previous comments and update on boundary treatments. 
 
I have no further comment or objection at this time.   
 

5.19 Environment Agency 
Thank you for your email. We have reviewed the information submitted and have 
no further comment to make on this application. 
 

5.20 Local Residents/Interested Parties  
Four objections have been raised in relation to the following: 
 
- Noise 
- Hours of working 
- Application retrospective 
- Impact on nature reserve and night-time lighting on wildlife 
- Increase in HGV traffic around Inhams Road and Station Road compounded 

by delays at the railway crossing which in turn impacts air quality 
- Proposal does not offer a safe and suitable access and is likely to have a 

negative impact on traffic 
- Private access road being utilised which is not fit for the purpose of the 

proposed development, part of the access road can only accommodate single 
file traffic which may result in an impact on Benwick Road.  Access needs 
improvement. 

- There is no pedestrian footpath, safety concerns 
- There is a separate challenge regarding the right to use the private road to 

access the site. 
- Request a traffic light system and zebra crossing to protect staff for safe 

crossing between Smurfit Kappa sites. 
 

5.21 The issues where they relate to planning matters will be considered in the sections 
below.  It should be noted that civil issues, such as a right to use land or access 
are not planning considerations. 

 
6 STATUTORY DUTY  

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan 
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan 
(2014). 

Page 47



 

 
7 POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
National Design Guide 2019 
Context – C1 
Identity – I1 
Built Form – B2 
Movement – M1 
Nature – N2, N3 
 
Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP6 – Employment, Tourism, Community Facilities and Retail 
LP11 – Whittlesey 
LP14 – Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in 
Fenland 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP17 – Community Safety 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 

 
8 KEY ISSUES 

 
• Principle of Development and Economic Growth 
• Design considerations and visual amenity of area 
• Residential Amenity/Health and wellbeing 
• Parking and Highways 
• Flood Risk/Surface Water Drainage 
• Ecology 

 
9 BACKGROUND 

 
9.1 A hybrid application was submitted and approved in May 2016 (F/YR15/0997/O) 

giving full planning permission for the remediation and levelling of the land and 
outline permission for 23 industrial and commercial units and a 1.8m footway, with 
matters committed in respect of access and layout.  The remediation and levelling 
has been undertaken and a Validation Report to confirm that this has been 
completed has recently been agreed (F/YR19/3062/COND).  
 

9.2 F/YR16/0538/F was granted in September 2016 for the removal of the condition 
requiring the 1.8m footway to be provided.  A number of other conditions have 
since been discharged. 
 

9.3 A screening opinion (F/YR18/0201/SC) was undertaken in March 2018 in relation 
to a construction plant and logistics site which concluded that an Environmental 
Statement was not required.  A further screening assessment was undertaken as 
part of this current application which reached the same conclusion. 

 

Page 48



 

 
10 ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development and Economic Growth 

10.1 The application site is located within the settlement of Whittlesey which is 
identified within the Settlement Hierarchy as a Market Town; Market Towns are 
identified within Policy LP3 as the focus for employment growth, accordingly 
there is a presumption in favour of development within this location.   
 

10.2 Policy LP11 identifies that new business uses are likely to be supported adjacent 
existing businesses in the Station Road/Benwick Road Industrial Area.  The 
application site adjoins the existing industrial estate, has previously been used for 
commercial purposes and is underutilised land and the principle of 
redevelopment has already been established by the granting of F/YR15/0997/O. 
 

10.3 The granting of F/YR15/0997/O gave outline planning permission (with matters 
committed in respect of access and layout) for 23 industrial and commercial units 
with potential for 23 separate uses/businesses to be utilising the site.  The 
application put forward is for a single planning unit (albeit with 2 processes being 
undertaken) which is considered to be less intense and therefore have less of an 
impact than the previously permitted development.  
 

10.4 Policy LP6 and Paragraph 80 of the NPPF seek to support economic growth.  
With LP6 seeking to create additional job opportunities through the delivery of 
85ha of employment land.  The applicants foresee the site employing 100 people 
including 60 new jobs and an investment of approximately £10 million. 
 

10.5 The principle of development is therefore supported by Policies LP3, LP6 and 
LP11 subject to no adverse issues arising relating to visual and residential 
amenity, highways, flood risk/drainage or ecology. 
 
Design considerations (including security) and visual amenity of area 

10.6 The application site forms a natural extension to the existing industrial site and 
has previously been used for commercial purposes.  The scale and design of the 
buildings is considered to be appropriate for the site and comparable with those 
on the surrounding estates.  It is advised that high specification acoustic cladding 
is to be used for the external walls and roof, however full details have not been 
provided hence it would be necessary to impose a condition in this regard. 
 

10.7 The height and scale of the structures vary across the site, with a maximum 
height of 10m, external storage between 3m and 6m in height as detailed on the 
proposed site plan and up to three mobile tower cranes for loading/unloading 
which can typically extend to between 15m – 20m.  The alterations in levels 
across the site are not considered to create a significant impact and height of the 
external storage will be conditioned to ensure this does not exceed the height 
indicated.  The cranes are visible for some distance from the site, in particular 
from the east across the open fields, however these are not solid structures, are 
mobile so would move around the site and may not always be extended to the 
maximum height.  Hence whilst visible above the boundary vegetation, these are 
not considered to have a significant detrimental impact on the visual amenity or 
character of the area. 
 

10.8 A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment has been undertaken which did not 
reveal any significant issues in respect of visual amenity.  The site is surrounded 
by the railway line to the north beyond the ecology area and associated tree belt, 

Page 49



 

with this and the Lattersey Nature Reserve separating the site from New Road.  
To the west are Railway Lakes a County Wildlife Site but also commercial fishing 
lakes and the existing industrial/commercial estate, from where the site would be 
visible though in the context of the existing estate.  This would also be the case 
from the south when travelling along Benwick Road, where the site is in the main 
set behind existing development, there is an area between 81 Benwick Road and 
107 Benwick Road which just comprises of vegetation, hence the proposed 
acoustic fence/development may be visible from this point.  The most open views 
of the site are over the agricultural fields to the east.  However, there is 
substantial tree/hedge screening along the eastern boundary of the site which is 
to be retained.  The trees on site are covered by Tree Preservation Orders, and 
are to be protected in accordance with the tree survey submitted.  As such views 
of the proposed development are mitigated and the semi-rural character of this 
edge of settlement location is maintained  
 

10.9 The application also proposes enhanced planting of native hedges and trees 
which will soften and screen to all boundaries, though particularly the southern 
and eastern boundaries of the site, new 2.4m high palisade fencing is to be 
erected inside this to mitigate its impact and views from outside the site.  
Wildflower seed is to be sown within the ecology area to the north of the site to 
enhance this and swales are to be seeded, providing a verdant buffer around 
much of the site. A landscape management plan is to be secured by condition to 
ensure that all new planting is successfully established during the first five years 
following planting. 
 

10.10 Suitable security measures are proposed including a security office with a 24/7 
presence, palisade fencing, lighting and CCTV; the Designing Out Crime team 
consider this to be acceptable and as such the scheme is considered compliant 
with Policy LP17 in relation to community safety. 
 
Residential Amenity/Health and wellbeing 

10.11 There are five residential properties which adjoin the site to the south and a 
number of others surrounding at a greater distance and separated from the site.  
The proposed use does have the potential to adversely impact these, particularly 
those in very close proximity. 
 

10.12 The proposed development will be visible from the residential properties to the 
south and east, however these are separated (as a minimum)by a belt of 
trees/vegetation and the acoustic fence (southern boundary only).  The external 
storage area closest to these properties is located approximately 15m from the 
rear boundaries and will be restricted to 3m in height, hence would not be visible 
above the acoustic fence.  When in use in the area the cranes will be visible 
above this, however being mobile cranes are unlikely to remain in one area.  It is 
acknowledged that these could create a temporary loss of privacy whilst 
operational, however this is not considered to create a significant detrimental 
impact.  The cranes have already been on site for some time and no comments 
have been received from neighbouring properties in respect of any issues. 
 

10.13 The application is accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment and an extended 
background noise level survey was undertaken and modelled. This predicted 
operating noise levels through undertaking a noise survey at the existing JRL 
Group operation at Biggleswade (as the application site is not yet fully 
operational) as well as some on site activities.  The report recommended that an 
acoustic screen should be installed in the southern part of the site, that the 
proposed unit cladding and jet blasting and painting enclosures (unit 3) are of a 

Page 50



 

satisfactory specification to ensure that the amenity of any neighbouring property 
is not detrimentally harmed.  Environmental Health are content with these 
measures subject to relevant conditions. 
 

10.14 Whilst the site is operational for transport movements 24/7 and is controlled by 
security, operational hours are 06:00 – 18:00 Monday – Friday and 06:00 – 13:00 
Saturdays and Sundays as required.  With the site fully operational, for 
production and deliveries 07:00- 18:00 Monday to Friday.  The previous 
permission (F/YR15/0997/O) for 23 industrial and commercial units did not restrict 
hours of operation, hence it is not felt reasonable to impose a condition relating to 
this for the current submission, particularly as this is for a less intense form of 
development.  However it is considered necessary to ensure that noise created is 
kept to a reasonable level at all times, hence a condition will be imposed in this 
respect. 
 

10.15 A Construction Dust Assessment report has been submitted, which assesses the 
impact of construction activities on air quality, including dust.  The report makes a 
number of recommendations, including requiring the submission of an Air Quality 
and Dust Management Plan for approval, the compliance with which shall be 
conditioned and Environmental Health are comfortable this is sufficient. 
 

10.16 The proposal incorporates a scheme of external lighting and includes the 
submission of an External Light Pollution Assessment and plans detailing lighting 
and LUX levels across the site. Environmental Health have recommended a 
condition in relation to external lighting to ensure that this does not present an 
unacceptable impact on surrounding properties. 
 

10.17 The site has been remediated and levelled in accordance with F/YR15/0997/O 
and a Validation Report to confirm that this has been completed satisfactorily has 
recently been agreed.  The only item outstanding is a final verification report 
which can be conditioned on this application as this is required upon completion 
of the development. 
 

10.18 The proposed development incorporates fire hydrants which are considered 
acceptable by the fire and rescue service, however it is still necessary to 
condition their installation. 
 
Parking and Highways 

10.19 Access to the site is to be taken via the western side from the existing Lattersey 
Trading Estate access road.  This arrangement is as per F/YR15/0997/O which 
was for 23 units.  The access will have a gate set back from the access point to 
allow vehicles to sit off the estate road whilst being given permission to enter the 
site, turning circles are provided to enable HGVs to enter and leave the site in 
forward gear and swept path analysis has been provided to evidence internal 
circulation routes are suitable. 
 

10.20 The application proposes 87 car parking spaces and 50 HGV spaces; the car 
parking provision is in accordance with Policy LP15 and appendix A 
 

10.21 The application has been accompanied by a Transport Statement which advised 
that assessments undertaken for the previous application evidenced significantly 
higher trip generation and impact on the highway network which was considered 
acceptable, and that the proposed development, with significantly fewer vehicle 
movements would have an even smaller impact. Concluding that there were no 
highways or transportation issues for which the Transport Assessment Team at 

Page 51



 

Cambridgeshire County Council concur, subject to conditions as per 
F/YR15/0997/O. 
 

10.22 It is acknowledged that Whittlesey Town Council object to the proposal on the 
basis of inadequate highway infrastructure and the requirement for a bypass or 
relief road to serve Whittlesey.  However, given the traffic generation from the 
development is significantly less than that produced by the previously permitted 
scheme (F/YR15/0997/O),it is not anticipated to generate a safety issue.  In 
addition the size and traffic impact of this development would not warrant a 
bypass and it is accepted this is a strategic issue. 
 

10.23 There is no pedestrian footpath along the section of the access road that leads to 
the site, and it is acknowledged that Smurfit Kappa have sites either side of this 
access with a requirement to cross between sites, including with forklifts.  This 
section of access is relatively short (approximately 80m) before a pedestrian 
footpath is reached. The condition on the previous permission for a footpath link 
was removed, as such it is not considered reasonable or necessary to insist on 
this requirement particularly as the proposed use is less intense.  Given the 
previous permission had significantly higher trip generation it would also be 
unreasonable to request any signalling or crossings for the Smurfit Kappa sites. 
 

10.24 A Travel Plan has been submitted which advises that Travel Information Packs 
and personalised travel planning will be made available to employees, these will 
promote more sustainable transport modes and cycle parking is to be provided.  
It is widely regarded that a shift in the mode of transport used for commuting is 
more successful if promoted when there is a change of employment.  It is 
necessary to condition the provision of cycle storage as details have not been 
provided. 
 
Flood Risk/ Drainage 

10.25 The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 the lowest rick of flooding, the 
application is however accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment due to the 
scale of the site (over 1ha) and it is recommended that the floor level of the 
buildings should be set at a minimum of 150mm higher than ground level.  The 
Environment Agency have no comments to make regarding the proposal. 
 

10.26 Foul drainage has been considered, and discussions held with Anglian Water to 
confirm that there is sufficient capacity with the existing foul drainage network.  
There will be on site pumping systems which will connect to the Anglian Water 
sewer under Benwick Road under a S106 agreement with them. 
 

10.27 The site has very high ground water levels and numerous surface water drainage 
schemes were put forward along with discussions with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority to achieve acceptable surface water attenuation.  The submitted 
scheme is now acceptable subject to a condition requiring the demonstration that 
the drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme and the 
provision of details of future management and maintenance. 
  
Ecology 

10.28 The site is located in close proximity to Lattersey Local Nature Reserve/ County 
Wildlife Site and Railway Lakes County Wildlife Site, however the Wildlife Officer 
considers that this proposal is unlikely to have an impact upon the features for 
which these sites have been designated. 
 

Page 52



 

10.29 The application has been accompanied by an up-to-date Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal which reveals that there are three Priority Habitats as listed under the 
NERC Act 2006 present on the site, the three ponds, the hedgerow and the 
woodland area (all of which are to be retained), opportunities for roosting bats in 
the trees and a medium population of great crested newts in the three ponds 
along the northern part of the site.   
 

10.30 The trees are to be retained and the site enhanced by additional native planting. 
Consent would be required to do works to the trees as these are protected, 
however a condition will be imposed to ensure should works be required, these 
are also surveyed for the presence of bats and any necessary mitigation 
measures secured.  A great crested newt mitigation strategy is currently being 
implemented under licence from Natural England and relates to the ecology area 
to the north of the site. 
 

10.31 Of concern to the Wildlife Officer was the external lighting, the lighting levels have 
been reduced adjacent to sensitive habitats are now considered acceptable by 
the Wildlife Officer subject to adherence with the proposed scheme (which can be 
conditioned.  It is also advised that the perimeter lights are switched off between 
2200 & 0700 as proposed by the applicant, again this can be secured by 
condition. 
 

11  CONCLUSIONS 
 

11.1   The proposal is considered acceptable and accords with Policies LP1, LP2, LP3, 
LP6, LP11, LP14, LP15, LP16, LP17 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 
and the aims of the NPPF 2019 and NDG 2019.  The principle of developing this 
site, albeit for a much more intensive industrial/commercial use has already been 
established by way of F/YR15/0997/O, and the access is as previously permitted.  

  
11.2   Consideration of design and the impact on visual amenity/character and 

residential amenity has been undertaken, including assessment of the noise, air 
quality/dust, lighting and land contamination.  In addition suitable drainage can be 
achieved and the impact of the proposal on surrounding and on site ecology is 
considered acceptable subject to relevant conditions.  As such a favourable 
recommendation may be forthcoming. 
 

12 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Grant subject to the following conditions: 
 

1 Prior to the first use of any building hereby permitted a scheme and 
timetable for the management and maintenance of the ecology area to 
the north of the site, detailing how the area will be managed for the 
benefit of Great Crested Newts and other wildlife, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The works 
shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason – in the interests of protecting the biodiversity on and around 
the site in accordance with Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

2 All hard and soft landscape works including any management and 
maintenance plan details, shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  All planting seeding or turfing and soil preparation 

Page 53



 

comprised in the above details of landscaping shall be carried out in 
the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the 
buildings, the completion of the development, or in agreed phases 
whichever is the sooner, and any plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased (except those contained in 
enclosed rear gardens to individual dwellings) shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the 
local planning authority gives written consent to any variation. All 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the guidance 
contained in British Standards, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason - To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape 
details in the interest of the amenity value of the development in 
accordance with Policies LP16 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

3 Prior to the first use of any building hereby permitted external lighting 
shall be provided as per drawings 19006-E-EX-2002 C4, 19006-ME-
EX-3001 C3, 19006-E-EX-2001 C4 and the External Light Pollution 
Assessment. 
 
The perimeter lights (as indicated on drawing XXXX) shall be switched 
off between the hours of 2200 -0700.  
 
Reason - To ensure that adequate lighting of the development is 
provided during the hours of darkness for security purposes, and to 
ensure the development does not cause harm to ecology or the 
amenity of adjoining occupiers in accordance with Policies LP2, LP16, 
LP17and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 
 

4 Within 1 month of the date of this decision an Air Quality and Dust 
Management Plan should be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The development then be shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason – To ensure the prevention of unacceptable impacts in relation 
to air quality and dust in accordance with Policies LP2 and LP16 of the 
Fenland Local Plan 2014 
 

5 Between the hours of 07:00-18:00 Monday – Friday and 07:00 – 13:00 
Saturday noise emissions from the site, including any corrections for 
acoustic characteristics, shall be no more than 5db above the 
prevailing background noise level at the nearest residential property. 
 
At all other times:- 
 
Noise emanating from the site should not exceed the prevailing 
background noise level by 0dB(A) Leq, when measured at the 
boundary of the nearest noise sensitive building. 
 
Impact noise should not exceed 5dB(A) above the prevailing 
background noise level when measured at the boundary of the nearest 

Page 54



 

noise sensitive building. 
 
Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of surrounding and local 
residents in accordance with Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 

6 Prior to the first use of any building hereby permitted the fire hydrants 
as detailed on drawing 19006-ME-EX-3001 C3 shall be provided and 
retained thereafter in perpetuity. 
 
Reason - In the interests of safety and to ensure there are available 
public water mains in the area to provide for a suitable water supply in 
accordance with infrastructure requirements within Policy LP13 of the 
Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

7 The external storage shall not exceed the height detailed on drawing 
MDS_M009A _00_11_P10. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and residential 
amenity of adjoining dwellings in accordance with Policies LP2 and 
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

8 Prior to the first use of any building hereby permitted, a verification 
report carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This must 
demonstrate that the drainage system has been constructed as per the 
agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations) and provide details of 
the management/maintenance of all drainage features. 
 
Reason 
To prevent an increased risk of flooding and protect water quality in 
accordance with Policies LP14 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

9 Within 2 months from the date of this decision the 3 metre high 
acoustic fence shall be erected in accordance with drawings 
MDS_M009A _00_11_P10 and MDS_M009A _00_14_P3.  The fence 
shall then be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the noise environment of the surrounding 
locality, in accordance with Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local 
Plan 2014. 
 

10 Within 7 days of the date of this decision all trees that are to be 
retained shall be protected in accordance with the Tree Survey Report 
dated June 2019 
 
Reason - To ensure that retained trees are adequately protected in 
accordance with Policies LP16 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan, 
adopted May 2014. 
 

11 Within 6-months of the date of this decision full details of a scheme for 
cycle storage shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented in 
full prior to the first use of the buildings hereby approved and thereafter 

Page 55



 

retained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of security, the convenience of cyclists at the 
premises, and to encourage sustainable forms of transport in 
accordance with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

12 No development above slab level shall take place until full details of the 
materials to be used for the walls and roof of all buildings hereby 
permitted are submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The details submitted for approval shall include the 
name of the manufacturer, the product type, colour and reference 
number.  The development shall then be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance 
with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

13 No development above slab level shall take place until a scheme for 
sound insulation of the buildings has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall 
be implemented prior to first of use of the relevant building, and 
thereafter retained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason - To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring 
occupiers, in accordance with policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 

14 Within 3 months of the completion of the development (or part thereof if 
it is not intended to construct all aspects) hereby permitted a final 
verification report in relation to remediation shall be submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, such a report shall 
include records pertaining to the installation of gas protection measures 
and barrier pipes for potable water supply. 
 
Reason - In the interests of safe and satisfactory development in 
accordance with Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

15 Prior to the felling of any trees on site the trees shall be 
surveyed/inspected by a suitably qualified ecologist for the presence of 
bats. Should evidence of bat roosts be found details of appropriate 
mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and the mitigation measures implemented 
as agreed. 
 
Reason - In the interests of protecting the biodiversity on and around 
the site in accordance with Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014. 
 

16 Within 1 month of the date of this decision, a Construction 
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority for the following: 
 

i) Haul routes to and from the site; 

Page 56



 

ii) Hours of working; 
iii) Parking, turning and loading/unloading areas for all 

construction/contractors details; 
iv) Site compounds/storage areas; 
v) Details of wheel cleaning or road cleaning equipment. 
 

The development shall thereafter take place in accordance with the 
approved Construction Management Plan.  
 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the 
surrounding area in accordance with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the 
Fenland Local Plan 2014.    
 

17 Approved Plans 
 

 
 

Page 57



Byway

TPO05/1984

TPO06/1984

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Created on: 06/09/2019

1:3,000Scale = 

F/YR19/0761/F ±
Page 58



BAY 01 BAY 02 BAY 03 BAY 04

1
6

2
1

2
3

2
4

2
8

3
3

3
7

3
9

4
9

5
4

1
8

5
1

5
5

5
0

ACCESS TO

LATTERSEY FIELD

ESTATE

32

3.0m

MP .5

Tank

4.6m

7

0

 

t

o

 

7

2

E
l S

ub S
ta

79

D

r
a

i
n

77

1
0
7

D
ra

in

El Sub Sta

Weighbridge

Tank

81

SP

MP .25

D
ra

in

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)
C

R

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

Pond

PONDS

B

E

N

W

I
C

K

 
R

O

A

D

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
 
B

E
L
T

 
A

R
E

A

(
W

O
O

D
L
A

N
D

,
 
S

E
M

I
-
N

A
T

U
R

A
L

B
R

O
A

D
-
L
E

A
V

E
D

)

ECOLOGY AREA

PONDS

BERWICK ROAD

INDUSTRIAL

ESTATE

BUNDY'S PIT

LUX TRAVEL

V & G CARAVANS

PA PACKAGING

SOLUTIONS

UK GYM

EQUIPMENT LIMITED

SMURFIT KAPPA

RECYCLING BUSINESS

XL SCAFFOLDING

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
7

2
9

2
6

2
5

2
2

2
7

3
2

3
0

3
5

3
8

3
4

3
6

4
2

4
4

4
1

4
5

3
1

4
6

4
8

4
3

4
7

5
3

1
9

2
0

5
7

5
6

5
2

5
9

5
8

7
0

STAFF/ VISITOR CAR

PARK  - 87 SPACES

PERMEABLE PAVING

6
M

 
W

I
D

E

 
L
A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 
Z

O

N

E

7
1

7
2

7
3

7
4

7
5

7
6

7
7

7
8

7
9

8
0

8
1

8
2

8
3

8
4

8
5

4
0

6
0

6
1

6
2

6
3

6
4

6
5

6
6

6
7

6
8

6
9

HARD STANDING

8
6

8
7

HARD STANDING

HARD STANDING

TURNING CIRCLE 46m

OPEN STORAGE AREA

5
4

6
9

8
1
0

1
1

7
1
2

1
3

1
4

1
2

3

HGV TRAILER PARKING -

50 SPACES

LOAD &

UNLOADING

AREA

1
8

1
7

1
9

2
1

2
3

2
0

2
2

2
4

2
5

2
6

2
7

1
6

LOAD & UNLOADING AREA

4
3

4
4

4
6

4
5

4
7

4
8

4
9

5
0

EXISTING

POND

EXISTING

POND

EXISTING

POND

ATTENUATION

POND

DETAILS BY PTA

E
X

T
E

N
D

E
D

 
T

R
E

E
 
B

E
L
T

 
A

R
E

A

UNIT 1

13.5X13.5X6m

182m2

2
9

3
1

3
0

3
2

3
3

3
4

1
5

2
8

3
5

3
7

3
6

3
8

3
9

4
0

4
1

4
2

GAS TANK

3m HIGH ACOUSTIC SCREEN

(min.10kg/m2)

KITCHEN

CATEEN

STORAGE

CHANGING ROOM

TRAINING ROOM

WHEELCHAIR

ACCESSIBLE

BATHROOM

UNIT 3

40X20X10m

800m2

UNIT 2

OFFICE/

WELFARE

31X31X8.2m

961m2

UNIT 4

100X40X10m

4,000m2

SECURITY

66m2

+4.680 AOD

+4.385 AOD

+5.350 AOD

FFL +4.100 AOD

+ 4.380 AOD

50
00

2500

TURNING CIRCLE 46m

LOAD &

UNLOADING

AREA

0 8040

N

PROJECT

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

DATE CREATED

DRAWN BY

DRAWING NO & REVISION

CHECKED

SCALE

STATUS

CONTRACTOR

DATE AMENDED

AMENDED BY

REV BY DATE DESCRIPTIONCHK

LATTERSEY FIELD, WHITTLESEY

JRL PLANT AND LOGISTICS

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Midgard Ltd

PLANNING

1:1000 @A1

-

DO NOT SCALE DIMENSIONS OF THIS DRAWING.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE BEFORE FABRICATION.

FINAL COORDINATION AND CHECKS ARE RESPONSIBILITY

OF THE SITE TEAM TO SUIT CONDITIONS AND TOLERANCES

BEFORE ANY INSTALLATION.

REPORT ALL ERRORS OR OMISSIONS TO MIDGARD LIMITED.

THIS DRAWING IS PROTECTED UNDER COPYRIGHT AND

SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT

PRIOR EXPRESSED PERMISSION OF MIDGARD LIMITED

NOTES:

- THIS IS A DESIGN INTENT DRAWING AND SERVES

AS A GUIDE.

- THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO FURTHER SITE

INVESTIGATIONS AND SURVEYS, DESIGN

DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING, AND OTHER

STATUTORY APPROVALS.

- OPEN STORAGE AREA ARE PLACED IN INDICATIVE

LOCATION AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE

MDS_M009A _00_11_P10

..\..\..\4. ADMIN ALL PROJECTS\02_LOGOS\MDS logo new.jpg

WL

31.05.19

31.05.19 FIRST ISSUEP1 WL -

TN

29.06.20

03.07.19 UNIT 1 DIMENSIONS AMENDEDP2 WL -

08.07.19 SITE LAYOUT & YARD LANDSCAPE AMENDEDP3 WL -

GREENERY

SWALE

HIGH ACOUSTIC WALL

KEY

SITE BOUNDARY 

BLOCK PAVING

01.08.19 SCALE AMENDEDP4 WL -

15.08.19 HAMMERHEAD INCLUSION NEXT TO UNIT 3P5 WL -

PALISADE WALL

11.10.19 PALISADE WALL INCLUDEDP6 WL -

15.11.19 BOUNDARY TREATMENT & HEIGHT

OF STORAGE AREA

P7 WL -

3 Metres

6 Metres

4 Metres

Height of Storage Area

13.12.19 PROPOSED SITE PLANP8 WL -

P9 TN 29.05.20 -
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

P10 TN

29.06.20 - SWALE, ROAD & GATE POSITION AMENDED

Page 59

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
3.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
3.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
4.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
4.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
4.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
4.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
4.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
4.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
3.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
5.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
4.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
3.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
3.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
3.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
3.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
3.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
3.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
3.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
3.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
3.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
3.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
3.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
3.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
3.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
3.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
3.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
3.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
3.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
3.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
3.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
3.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
3.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
3.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
3.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
3.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
3.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
3.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
3.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
3.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
3.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
3.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
3.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
3.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
3.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
3.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
3.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
3.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
3.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
3.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
3.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
3.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
3.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
3.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
3.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
3.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
3.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
3.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
3.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
3.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
3.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
3.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
3.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
3.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
3.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
3.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
3.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
3.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
3.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
3.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
3.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
3.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
3.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
3.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
3.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
3.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
4.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
4.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
4.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
4.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
3.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
3.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
3.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
4.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
4.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
3.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
3.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
3.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
3.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
3.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
3.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
3.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
3.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
3.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
3.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
3.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
3.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
3.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
3.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
3.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
3.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
3.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
3.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
3.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
3.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
3.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
3.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
3.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
3.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
3.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
3.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
3.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
3.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
4.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
4.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
4.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
4.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
4.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
3.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
4.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
3.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
3.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
4.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
3.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
3.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
4.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
3.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
3.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
3.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
3.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
4.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
4.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
3.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
3.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
3.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
3.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
3.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
3.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
3.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
3.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
3.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
3.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
3.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
3.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
3.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
3.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
3.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
4.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
4.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
3.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
4.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
4.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
3.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
5.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
4.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
4.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
4.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
4.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
4.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
4.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
4.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
4.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
4.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
4.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
4.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
4.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
4.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
5.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
5.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
5.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
5.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
4.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
4.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
4.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
4.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
4.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
4.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
4.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
4.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
4.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
4.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
4.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
5.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
5.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
5.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
5.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
5.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
4.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
4.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
4.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
4.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
4.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
4.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
4.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
4.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
4.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
4.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
4.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
4.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
4.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
4.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
4.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
5.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
5.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
5.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
5.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
5.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
4.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
4.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
4.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
4.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
4.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
4.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
4.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
4.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
4.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
4.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
4.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
4.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
4.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
4.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
4.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
5.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
4.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
4.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
4.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
4.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
4.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
4.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
5.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
4.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
4.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
4.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
4.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
4.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
4.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
5.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
4.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
4.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
4.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
4.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
4.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
4.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
4.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
4.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
4.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
4.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
5.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
4.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
4.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
4.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
4.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
4.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
4.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
4.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
4.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
4.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
4.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
4.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
4.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
4.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
4.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
5.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
4.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
4.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
4.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
4.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
4.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
4.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
4.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
4.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
4.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
4.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
4.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
4.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
4.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
4.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
4.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
4.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
4.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
4.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
5.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
4.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
5.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
4.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
3.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
3.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
3.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
3.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
3.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
4.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
4.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
4.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
4.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
4.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
4.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
4.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
4.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
4.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
5.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
5.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
5.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
6.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
5.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
3.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
3.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
3.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
4.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
4.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
4.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
4.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
4.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
4.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
3.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
3.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
3.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
3.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
3.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
5.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
5.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
5.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
3.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
3.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
4.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
4.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
3.90



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



1st Floor Level

Ground Floor Level

Parapet Level

7
3

7
0

Roof Level

8
2

0
0

+ 4.680

+ 12.880

Dry

Riser

1st Floor Level

Ground Floor Level

Parapet Level

Roof Level

+ 4.680

+ 12.880

1st Floor Level

Ground Floor Level

Parapet Level

Roof Level

+ 4.680

+ 12.880

1st Floor Level

Ground Floor Level

Parapet Level

Roof Level

+ 4.680

+ 12.880

1st Floor Level

Ground Floor Level

Parapet Level

7
3
7
0

Roof Level

8
2
0
0

3
2
5
0

2
5
0
0

+ 4.680

+ 12.880

4925 4495 4505 4505 4515 3255 4340

57
65

25
05

56
55

27
00

45
15

44
95

49
25

1000

16
25

SCALE BAR 1:100

0 10 20 30m

1000

16
25

PROJECT

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

DATE CREATED

DRAWN BY

DRAWING NO & REVISION

CHECKED

SCALE

STATUS

CONTRACTOR

DATE AMENDED

AMENDED BY

REV BY DATE DESCRIPTIONCHK

LATTERSEY FIELD, WHITTLESEY

JRL PLANT AND LOGISTICS

UNIT 2 - ELEVATIONS & SECTION

Midgard Ltd

PLANNING

22.05.19 AS INDICATED @A0

WL -

DO NOT SCALE DIMENSIONS OF THIS DRAWING.

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE BEFORE FABRICATION.

FINAL COORDINATION AND CHECKS ARE RESPONSIBILITY

OF THE SITE TEAM TO SUIT CONDITIONS AND TOLERANCES

BEFORE ANY INSTALLATION.

REPORT ALL ERRORS OR OMISSIONS TO MIDGARD LIMITED.

THIS DRAWING IS PROTECTED UNDER COPYRIGHT AND

SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART OR WHOLE WITHOUT

PRIOR EXPRESSED PERMISSION OF MIDGARD LIMITED

NOTES:

- THIS IS A DESIGN INTENT DRAWING AND SERVES

AS A GUIDE.

- THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO FURTHER SITE

INVESTIGATIONS AND SURVEYS, DESIGN

DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING, AND OTHER

STATUTORY APPROVALS.

22.05.19 FIRST ISSUEP1 WL
-

MDS_M009A _00_05_P8

 1 : 100

SOUTH ELEVATION

2

 1 : 100

NORTH ELEVATION

1

 1 : 100

EAST ELEVATION

4

 1 : 100

WEST ELEVATION

5

25.11.19

IG

06.06.19 PLANT ROOM INCLUSION - WINDOWS AMENDEDP2 WL
-

03.07.19 ROOF SLOPE AMENDEDP3 WL -

08.07.19 WINDOWS AMENDEDP4 WL
-

 1 : 100

SECTION AA

3

A A

Location Plan

09.07.19 ROOF AMENDED AND SECTION INCLUSIONP5 WL
-

30.08.19 PAPER SIZE AND SCALE AMENDEDP6 WL
-

22.11.19 PV ADDEDP7 IG -

PV ARRAY

PROPOSAL OF LOCATION OF 33 SOLAR PANELS

AT THE ROOF.

- SOUTH ELEVATION: 9 UNITS

- NORTH ELEVATION: 8 UNITS

- EAST ELEVATION: 8 UNITS

- WEST ELEVATION: 8 UNITS

EACH PANEL TO MEASURE 1.695m x 1.0m

 

25.11.19 PV POSITION UPDATEDP8 IG
-

P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



        
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29 July 2020 Agenda No: 6 
 
APPLICATION NO:  F/YR19/0761/F 
 
SITE LOCATION: Lattersey Field, Benwick Road, Whittlesey 
 
UPDATE 
 
Condition 3 to be updated with the relevant plan number as follows: 
 
Prior to the first use of any building hereby permitted external lighting shall be provided as per 
drawings 19006-E-EX-2002 C5, 19006-ME-EX-3001 C3, 19006-E-EX-2001 C4 and the 
External Light Pollution Assessment. 
 
The perimeter lights shall be switched off and remaining lighting dimmed between the hours of 
2200 -0700 (as indicated on drawing 19006-E-EX-2002 C5).  
 
Reason - To ensure that adequate lighting of the development is provided during the hours of 
darkness for security purposes, and to ensure the development does not cause harm to 
ecology or the amenity of adjoining occupiers in accordance with Policies LP2, LP16, LP17and 
LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 

 
 
Resolution: No change to the recommendation which is to grant the application as 
per Section 12 of Agenda item 6. 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



¬ 
 
F/YR20/0224/O 
 
Applicant:  Mr Malcolm Barnes 
 
 

Agent :  Mr Basil Samila 
Headley Stokes Associates 

 
Land West Of 36, Peterborough Road, Whittlesey, Cambridgeshire 
 
Erection of 9no dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect 
of access and layout) including demolition of existing greenhouses 
(retrospective) 
 
Officer recommendation: Grant  
 
Reason for Committee: Town Council comments contrary to Officer 
recommendation. 
 
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 The proposal is an outline application with access and layout committed at 

this stage for up to 9 dwellings including the demolition of the existing 
greenhouses on land west of 36 Peterborough Road, Whittlesey. 
 

1.2 The site is located within the settlement of Whittlesey and as such Policy 
LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan supports new residential development. 

 
1.3 The site sits within a predominately residential area and is appropriate in 

terms of its layout.  The details such as scale and appearance have been 
reserved at this stage, and will be required to be carefully considered 
should outline planning permission be granted.  

 
1.4 The issues with regard to drainage have been comprehensively 

addressed in terms of the on-site situation and off-site connections to deal 
with surface water. As required by the LLFA conditions can confirm the 
precise requirements in due course: this is appropriate given the proposal 
seeks outline planning permission. 

 
1.5 The access has been the subject of discussion with the County Council 

who consider that the access is appropriately located having regard to 
other access points to Peterborough Road nearby. The proposal would 
not compromise highway safety.  

 
1.6 Overall the proposal is considered to be acceptable subject to the 

imposition of planning conditions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2 SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



2.1   The site is located within the settlement of Whittlesey to the western side. The site 
is located off the A605 Peterborough Road (an A classified road) in Whittlesey and 
previously accommodated greenhouses associated with a small scale nursery 
business which has been redundant for a number of years.  

 
2.2 The land is bounded on the western and northern sides by residential properties 

fronting Tower Close, Crossway Hand and Peterborough Road. The water tower 
and public play area is located on the eastern side of the site and to the south (on 
the opposite side of the road) occupies a car rental/sale yard and Petrol Filling 
Station.  

 
2.3 The site lies within Flood Zone 1. There are no designated or identified non-

designated heritage assets either within or close to the site.     
 
3 PROPOSAL 

 
3.1    The proposal is in outline for 9 dwellings with access and layout being committed 

at this stage. Appearance, landscaping and scale are ‘Reserved Matters’ to be 
considered at a future date (should outline permission be granted).  

 
3.2 The proposed layout consists of four houses (Plots 1 – 4) designed to a semi-

detached type layout occupying the rear of the site. The remainder of the houses 
Plots 5-9 are designed to a terraced linked type layout occupying the eastern side 
of the site.  The terraced layout is designed in three blocks each of which is 
staggered.  

 
3.3 Each dwelling has its own private rear garden area. It is proposed to provide Plots 

1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9 with separate garage facilities and a designated parking area on 
plot. Plots 5, 6, 7 will be provided with their own designated car parking area 
directly opposite their associated dwelling. Separate visitor parking provision has 
also been allowed within the scheme. 

 
3.4   The proposed access is 5 metres wide with a 2m footpath along the western side 

and will be located closest to No.36 Peterborough Road and will curve round and 
continue to a turning head to cater for refuse and emergency vehicles.  

 
3.5    The following documents have been submitted to support the application: 
 

• Design and Access Statement 
• Preliminary Investigation Report (Desk study and site reconnaissance 

report) 
• Road layout with visibility splays and swept path analysis 
• Drainage Strategy 

 
3.6  Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/ 
 

 
4 SITE PLANNING HISTORY 

 
4.1    There is no pertinent planning history associated with the site.  

 
5 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Page 70

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/


5.1    Whittlesey Town Council: Recommend refusal due to access to the site and 
highways issues, both of which have been highlighted by Cambridgeshire Council 
Council.  The Town Council have concern that there are already 2 established 
businesses opposite with constant car movements, therefore safety is a potential 
issue. Members also expressed concern as the child’s play area is close by. 
 

5.2    CCC Highway Authority: First comments: The proposed A605 access location 
conflicts with the accesses on the opposite side of the road. The applicant should 
apply suitable junction spacing in order to avoid conflict between the accesses. 
The applicant either needs to relocate the access, or provide evidence to 
demonstrate why the proposed access location does not pose an unacceptable 
risk to highway safety.  

 
 Second comments: No highway objection. The lack of junction/access spacing 

between the proposed residential access and the commercial accesses opposite is 
a highway safety concern. I think this application will result in an increased 
likelihood of peak hour vehicle conflicts. That said, the 9 dwelling residential 
development will generate a relatively low volume of vehicle movements during 
peak hours. The car sales/rental business opposite will not be a significant 
generator of vehicle movements especially during peak hours. The garage to the 
east of proposed access is a busy garage. This is likely to be more busy during 
peak hours (same peak hours as the residential development).  
  
The A605 is a busy principal route (high percentage of HGVs) but is subject to a 
30mph speed limit along the development site frontage i.e. MfS guidance 
applicable. Opposing access arrangements are common in urban streets and 
usually operate without any safety problems, this is mainly due to the low vehicle 
speeds and increased driver hazard perception, reactions times etc. MfS provides 
case study evidence that supports this assertion. 
  
There is already some accident history at the garage access, but no trends or 
clusters that would suggest an existing highway safety problem. 
  
The development will result in the existing substandard site access being stopped 
up and replaced with a standard bell mouth access with acceptable visibility. This 
offers some improvement over the existing situation.  
  
The housing estate access layout is not conducive to CCC road adoption 
requirements. CCC require footways to follow the development frontage and a 
different horizontal access road alignment/arrangement. It is not possible for the 
applicant to address these adoption matters without third party land encroachment 
or a reduction in access visibility. The LPA have already confirmed they are 
satisfied with the estate road remaining private. 
  
Having given consideration and balance to the above points, I conclude there will 
be no material harm caused to highway safety as a result of this 
application/development proposal. 
  
I conclude I have no highway objections subject to the following condition 
recommendations; access construction including drainage details and visibility 
splays.  

 
5.3    FDC Environmental Services (Refuse): The plan shows that we would be able to 

access and safely turn with our vehicles. We would require private road to be 
constructed up to a standard suitable for a 26t collection vehicle and indemnity 

Page 71



required against any damage to the road surface caused by waste collection 
operations by landowner/management company. 

 
5.4 Natural England: No comments to make. Generic advice provided.  
 
5.5 FDC Environmental Services: Acknowledge the Preliminary Investigation (Desk 

Study and site reconnaissance report) the findings of which are accepted. Given 
the nature of the site’s previous use, intended use and the identification of 
plausible contamination linkages, the recommendations made in the report that an 
exploratory intrusive ground investigation is undertaken to determine the extent of 
any potential contamination are considered necessary. I am satisfied that the 
remaining works can be conditioned, and request that the relevant parts of the 
contaminated land condition to cover the need for a Phase 2 intrusive investigation 
and any associated remedial strategy and validation/closure report aspects are 
improved in the event permission is granted. Any such reports and certification 
such as that covering the importation of clean soil will need to be approved prior to 
allowing the discharge of the condition. Given the scale of the proposed 
development and its close proximity to existing residential properties, recommend 
that a construction management plan is submitted prior to commencement of 
development which outlines procedures to ensure that any potential disturbance 
will be kept to a minimum.    

 
5.6   North Level IDB: First comments: No objection in principle. Serious concerns 

regarding the method of surface water disposal proposed. Owing to the density of 
the proposed development, I am concerned that a combination of soakaway and 
SUDs (not specified in this application) will not adequately deal with the surface 
water, especially during prolonged wet winter such as that experienced this winder. 
It is imperative that any proposals do not increase flood risk to existing properties 
in the vicinity.  

 
Second comments: Following receipt of the Drainage Strategy. The strategy 
remains unclear as to the final method of surface water disposal. The strategy 
currently suggests surface water may discharge via a rising main to the Anglian 
Water surface water sewer in Glenfields to the north or alternatively it may go 
south via Snoots Road or possibly via infiltration which has already been 
discounted owing to groundwater. If water is ultimately discharged to the north, 
then it will require North Level IDB consent, if it goes south, then it is a matter for 
Middle Level Commissioners to consent. 

 
5.7   Cambs Fire & Rescue: No objection subject to securing a scheme for fire 

hydrants.  
 
5.8 CCC Lead Local Flood Authority: (First comments): Although not a statutory 

consultee for a non-major application attention is drawn to the use of SUDs. The 
application indicates that surface water from the site is proposed to discharge to a 
soakaway, however have highlighted that soakaways are only appropriate in areas 
with sufficiently permeable geology to support certain infiltration rate and that on 
site testing could be undertaken across the site to confirm the rate or an alternative 
strategy could be proposed. 

 
(Second comments):   Following receipt of the Drainage Strategy. The applicant 
now proposes to discharge of surface water into the public sewer network through 
the use of pumping. We request the following conditions: the submission and 
approval of a detailed Drainage Strategy (which includes details of risks associated 
with potential pump failure) and a maintenance plan. 

Page 72



 
5.9   Local Residents/Interested Parties:  3 letters of objection received raising the 

following concerns material to the application: 
 

• Access – very close to a pedestrian crossing, a very busy 24 hour petrol 
station and the access to Snoots Road 

• Environmental concerns – Whittlesey is being overburdened with new 
homes without the relevant infrastructure to cope. Difficult to access doctor 
surgeries etc. 

• Local services/schools – unable to cope 
• Traffic and highways 
• Density/Over development 
• Design/Appearance 
• Loss of view/outlook 
• Noise 
• Overlooking/loss of privacy from the first-floor over looking into rear 

gardens. The plans do not show any type of screen/fences at the rear of 
the new dwellings.   

• Proximity to property 
• Shadowing/loss of light – the 2-storey houses would overshadow garden 

areas. 
 

Matters have also been raised with regard to devaluing property; however these 
matters are not material considerations and as such cannot be taken into account.  
 

 
6 STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan 
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan 
(2014). 

 
7 POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
7.1   National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
        Para 8:   The 3 dimensions of sustainability 
        Para 57:  Viability 
        Para 108-110: Safe and effective access which prioritises pedestrian and   
  cyclists 
        Para 117:  Promote effective use of land. 
        Para 127:  Well-designed development. 
        Para 170:  Contribution to and enhancement of the natural and local   
   environment 

 
 

7.2   National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
7.3   National Design Guide 2019 

C1 - Relationship with local and wider context 
I1 - Respond to existing local character and identity 
I2 - Well-designed, high quality and attractive  
B1 - Compact form of development 
B2 - Appropriate building types and forms 

Page 73



M3 - well-considered parking, servicing and utilities infrastructure  
H1 - Healthy, comfortable and safe internal and external environment 
H3 - Attention to detail; storage, waste, servicing and utilities 
L3 - A sense of ownership 

 
7.4   Fenland Local Plan 2014 

LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4 – Housing 
LP5 – Meeting Housing Need 
LP11 – Whittlesey 
LP13 – Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District 
LP14 – Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in 
Fenland 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP17 – Community Safety 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 
 

7.5 Supplementary Planning Documents/Guidance: 
- Delivering & Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD (2014) 
- Resource Use & Renewable Energy SPD (2014) 
- Cambridgeshire Flood & Water SPD (2016) 
- RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide  SPD (2012) 

 
8 KEY ISSUES 

 
• Principle of Development 
• Design, Layout and Residential Amenity 
• Access and Highway Safety 
• Flood Risk and Drainage 
• Other Considerations 

 
9 ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development 
 

9.1   Policy LP3 of the FLP sets out a focus for growth around the District’s four Market    
Towns.  The site is located within the settlement of Whittlesey, to the western side, 
and therefore the provision of residential development in this location accords with 
Policy LP3. 

 
        Design, Layout and Residential Amenity 
 
9.2   The layout provides adequate sized private garden areas compliant with Policy 

LP16 of the FLP.  Although the proposal is in outline form the layout does show a 
good mix of housing including larger semi-detached and smaller terraced dwellings 
which are considered acceptable and reflects the scale of existing development in 
the surrounding area.  Whilst scale and appearance are reserved details it is likely 
that 2-storey development will occupy the site which will reflect the nearby 
developments of Tower Close, Crossway Hand and Peterborough Road.  
 

Page 74



9.3 Given the location of the proposed development in relation to the existing residents 
within the wider area (Tower Close, Crossway Hand, Peterborough Road), the 
proposal is not considered to give rise to concerns regarding neighbouring 
amenity. There is approximately 62m distance from the rear of the closest property 
(No.4) at Crossway Hand to the front elevations of the new dwellings (at Plots 5-8) 
and approximately 51m distance from the side elevation of Plot 1 to the rear of the 
block of terraced properties at Nos 6 to 20 (even numbers only) Crossway Hand.   

 
9.4 There is a distance of approximately 21.8m from the rear elevations of Nos. 21 & 

19 Tower Close to the rear elevations of Plots 1 and 2.  This level of distance is 
considered acceptable and will not cause any significant issues in relation to 
overshadowing or overlooking.  

 
9.5 The closest relationship between existing and new is that of Plot 4 where the rear 

elevation is approximately 13m from the southern side elevation of No.17B Tower 
Close. A similar relationship occurs with the side elevation of Plot 8 to the rear 
elevation of the host dwelling at No.36 Peterborough Road. However there is still 
considered to be sufficient distance between these dwellings as to not cause any 
significant issues in relation to overshadowing or overlooking.   

 
9.6 The layout of the dwellings is not considered to give rise to unacceptable 

overlooking, overbearing impact or overshadowing of each other.  
 
9.7    The proposed dwellings (subject to detailed design) would achieve good levels of 

surveillance and where necessary it will be important that windows to the ground 
floor can achieve appropriate surveillance over their respective/neighbouring 
parking areas. 

 
9.8    A Construction Method Statement will be required to be submitted and agreed 

before development can commence and then adhered to during the construction 
period to ensure that any potential disturbance will be kept to a minimum.  

 
9.9 Whilst it is noted that the scheme does not provide any direct connectivity to the 

public footpath to the north and to the play area to the east, it does have direct 
access onto the main Peterborough Road where there is only a short distance to 
the main access into the play area which then connects to the public footpath.  

 
9.10 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development layout is acceptable and 

subject to the detailed design would not have a detrimental impact upon the 
amenities of existing properties adjacent to the site and would achieve appropriate 
standards of amenity within the scheme itself. The proposal therefore complies 
with Policy LP16 of the FLP. 

 
        Access and Highway Safety 
 
9.11 The concerns of Whittlesey Town Council are duly noted and reflect the initial 

concerns of the Highway Authority in respect of the proposed location of the 
access to the site.  Following further discussions between the applicants Highway 
Consultant and the Highway Authority in relation to the location of the site access 
and the junction/access spacing between the proposed access and the commercial 
accesses opposite, the Highway Authority has determined that the proposed 
location of the vehicular access is acceptable and they therefore do not object and 
recommend conditions in relation to visibility splays and access construction.  

 

Page 75



9.12 As part of their response the Highway Authority have confirmed that the proposed 
scheme will generate a relatively low volume of vehicle movements during peak 
hours. The car sales/rental business opposite the site (on the southern side of 
Peterborough Road) will not be a significant generator of vehicle movements 
especially during peak hours. The BP garage ( also on the southern) to the east of 
the proposed access is a busy garage and this is likely to be busier during peak 
hours compared to the proposed residential development but no unacceptable 
conflicts are raised by the Highway Authority in their response.   

 
9.13 The A605 is a principal route but is subject to a 30mph speed limit along the site 

frontage. The Highway Authority notes that there is already some accident history 
at the garage access but no trends or clusters that would suggest an existing 
highway safety problem.   

 
9.14 The proposed development will result in the existing substandard site access being 

stopped up and replaced with a standard bell mouth access with acceptable 
visibility in both directions and this offers some improvement in terms of the 
existing situation.  

 
9.15  Whilst the access layout is not conducive to CCC road adoption requirements it is 

considered that the road can remain private subject to securing details of the 
ongoing management and maintenance arrangements for the estate road and 
such details can be secured via a prior to occupation condition. 

 
9.16 The Highway Authority has concluded that there will be no material harm caused to 

highway safety as a result of the proposed development and therefore does not 
object subject to highway conditions.  

 
9.17 Parking provision is shown to serve each dwelling in accordance with the adopted 

standards contained within the FLP. It will be necessary to secure this via a 
planning condition.  

 
9.18 The scheme demonstrates that the access road is of sufficient dimension and 

alignment to enable a refuse collection vehicle to enter, turn and leave in forward 
motion. The layout is such that refuse bins will be collected from the front of each 
plot, however to ensure that this remains the case a refuse collection scheme will 
be secured via a planning condition.  

 
9.19 Overall therefore the initial concerns of the Highway Authority have been 

considered by the applicant and it has been agreed that the proposed location of 
the vehicular access is appropriate and that it will not create unacceptable highway 
safety concerns. All other impacts are considered to be acceptable. The proposal 
therefore complies with Policy LP15 of the FLP.  

 
        Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
9.20 The site is located within Flood Zone 1, within an area with a low probability of 

flooding. Given the scale of the development and the size of the site a site specific 
Flood Risk Assessment is not required. 

 
9.21 Following the initial comments provided by the North Level IDB and CCC as Lead 

Local Flood Authority, a Drainage Strategy has been submitted. This strategy 
identifies (after infiltration testing at the site) that the use of soakaways will not be 
possible and therefore the only viable option is to connect the site to a surface 
water public sewer, the nearest is located to the north of the site. Due to the level 

Page 76



differences from the site to the sewer a pumped system is proposed. The outfall 
from this sewer is to an IDB area.  

 
9.22 The IDB raise concerns over the Strategy but their comments appear only to relate 

to the route of the sewer and where it connects to the Anglian Water system. The 
applicant has confirmed that the route of the new sewer consists of a combination 
of the application site and the public highway (for which an agreement with the 
County Council will be required) to the connection to the Anglian Water system to 
the north. 

 
9.23 In terms of the on-site surface water drainage this is proposed to comprise of lined 

permeable paving (located under the proposed access road) from where the water 
will be pumped off site at an appropriate rate.  

 
9.24 The proposed method of foul water disposal will be covered under Part H of the 

Building Regulations. It is proposed that the site foul discharge will be subject to 
Anglian Water consent, however in this instance it is considered appropriate to 
secure the details of the scheme through a planning condition.  

 
9.25 It is considered that the risk of flooding to the site has been adequately considered 

through the submission of the Drainage Strategy. The LLFA have recommended 
conditions in relation to the detailed drainage design for the site and the 
maintenance of this. Accordingly the development of the site with the proposed 
drainage system does not pose an unacceptable flood risk either to occupants of 
the site or to others off site, and therefore compliance with Policy LP14 of the FLP 
is achieved subject to the conditions.  

 
 Other Considerations 
 
9.26 Local residents have raised concerns about local infrastructure such as schools. 

The proposal is though below the threshold for requiring any contributions towards 
such facilities.  

 
10 CONCLUSIONS 

 
10.1 Overall, the proposal creates a development which responds to the opportunities 

and constraints of the site and to relevant planning policies. The development is 
not considered to have a detrimental impact upon the neighbouring dwellings and 
is acceptable in terms of highway safety and flood risk/drainage matters and will 
provide a good quality residential environment.  The proposal does not conflict with 
any policies of the Local Plan or to the NPPF. There are no other material planning 
considerations which would lead to the conclusion that the proposal is 
unacceptable. It is therefore recommended that outline permission is granted 
subject to conditions. 

 
11 RECOMMENDATION 

 
Grant subject to conditions 
 
 
 

Proposed Conditions: 
 
1 Approval of the details of: 

Page 77



i. the scale of the building(s); 

ii. the external appearance of the building(s); 

iii. the landscaping 

(hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters" shall be obtained from the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development). 

Reason - To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the details of the 
development hereby permitted. 
 

2 Application for approval of the Reserved Matters shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this 
permission. 

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of 2 
years from the date of approval of the last of the Reserved Matters to be 
approved. 

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

4 No development approved by this permission shall be occupied until the 
completion of the remedial works as detailed within the Preliminary 
Investigation Report (Desk study and site reconnaisance) (reference: 
STR4940-P01 by Soiltechnics has been carried out on site. Prior to first 
occupation of the development hereby approved the validation/closure 
report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority this includes the following: 

(a)  Approved remediation works shall be carried out in full on site under a 
quality assurance scheme to demonstrate compliance with the proposed 
methodology and best practice guidance.   

(b)   The validation/closure report shall include details of the proposed 
remediation works and quality assurance certificates to show that the works 
have been carried out in full in accordance with the approved methodology.  
Details of any post-remedial sampling and analysis to show the site has 
reached the required clean-up criteria shall be included in the closure report 
together with the necessary documentation detailing what waste materials 
have been removed from site, and what has been brought on to site. 

Reason - To control pollution of land and controlled waters in the interests 
of the environment and public safety in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, in particular paragraphs 178 and 179, and 
Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

5 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide 

Page 78



for: 

i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
ii. site compound & storage areas. 
iii. loading and unloading of plant and materials  
iv. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  
v. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate  

vi. wheel washing facilities  
vii. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction  
viii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and construction works 

Reason: To prevent harm being caused to the amenity of the area in 
accordance with the provisions of Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland 
Local Plan (Adopted May 2014). 
 

6 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a scheme 
for the provision of fire hydrants or equivalent emergency water supply shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved details shall be implemented and made available for use prior 
to the occupation of the first dwelling. 
 
Reason - In the interests of the safety of the occupiers and to ensure there 
are available public water mains in the area to provide for a suitable water 
supply in accordance with infrastructure requirements within Policy LP13 of 
the Fenland Local Plan 2014.  
 

7 No above ground works shall commence until a detailed surface water 
drainage scheme for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an assessment 
of the residual risk of flooding associated with potential pump failure. The 
assessment should investigate the following conditions:  
 

• The pumps were to fail; and  
• The attenuation storage was 50% full; and  
• A design storm occurred  

 
The floor levels of the affected properties must be raised above this level 
and all flooding must be safely stored onsite. The scheme shall 
subsequently be implemented in full accordance with the approved details 
prior to occupation of the first dwelling. 
 
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect 
water quality, and improve habitat and amenity and in accordance with 
Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

8 Details for the long term maintenance arrangements for the surface water 
drainage system (including all SuDS features) to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first 
occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted. The submitted details 
should identify runoff sub-catchments, SuDS components, control 
structures, flow routes and outfalls. In addition, the plan must clarify the 

Page 79



access that is required to each surface water management component for 
maintenance purposes. The maintenance plan shall be carried out in full 
thereafter.  
 
Reason - To ensure the satisfactory maintenance of drainage systems that 
are not publically adopted, in accordance with the requirements of 
paragraphs 163 and 165 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

9 Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling hereby approved, full details of 
the proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of the 
proposed streets within the development shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (The streets shall 
thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management 
and maintenance details until such time as an Agreement has been entered 
into unto Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a Private Management 
and Maintenance Company has been established). 
 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory development of the site and to ensure 
estate roads are managed and maintained thereafter to a suitable and safe 
standard, in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan, 
adopted May 2014. 
 

10 Prior to occupation of each dwelling on the site the vehicular access road 
and footways shall be made up to base course level from that dwelling to 
the adjoining Peterborough Road. 
 
To ensure that the vehicular access is constructed to an appropriate 
standard in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). 
 

11 Prior to the occupation of any dwelling on the site, the approved vehicular 
access where it meets Peterborough Road shall be laid out and constructed 
in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter maintained as such in 
perpetuity. The approved access shall be constructed with adequate 
drainage measures to prevent surface water run-off onto the adjacent public 
highway, in accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority, 
and retained as such in perpetuity. 
 
Reason - In order to ensure that adequate vehicular and pedestrian access 
is provided in the interests of highway safety and to prevent surface water 
discharging to the highway in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 

12 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, visibility 
splays shall be provided as shown on approved drawing number: 
298/2019/02 P1 and shall be maintained thereafter free from any 
obstruction exceeding 0.6m above the level of the adjacent highway 
carriageway. 
 
Reason – In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policy 
LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

13 Vehicle turning and parking spaces as shown on approved drawing number 
1787/3/04B shall be provided prior to the occupation of its related dwelling 
and shall be retained thereafter. 

Page 80



 
Reason: To ensure the permanent availability of the parking / manoeuvring 
area, in the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance with 
Policies LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

14 As part of the Reserved Matters submission a scheme for on-site foul water 
drainage works, including connection point and discharge rate, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Prior 
to the occupation of any dwelling, the foul water drainage works relating to 
that dwelling must have been carried out in complete accordance with the 
approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from 
flooding in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

15 As part of the Reserved Matters submission details of existing ground 
levels (in relation to an existing datum point), proposed finished floor levels 
and floor slab levels of the development shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
carried out and thereafter retained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason - To ensure that the precise height of the development can be 
considered in relation to adjoining dwellings and to reduce the risk of 
flooding to the proposed development and future occupants and in 
accordance with Policies LP14 and LP16 of the Local Plan 2014. 
 

16 Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling hereby approved a refuse 
collection scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the details approved thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure that suitable means of waste collection is provided in 
accordance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014 
 

17 Approved Plans 
 

 
 
 

Page 81



LB TCB

TOWERCLOSE

STONALDROAD
CR

OS
SW

AY
HA

ND

El

Sta
Sub

Nursery

Play Area

7.5m

9

21

2

4

7

2

6

21

24

11

13

14

31

22

20

34
20

19
23

15

25

34

14

17

29
19

40

4252

66

36

62

28

27

199

198

10
2

12
9

183

17b

17a

185

181

Water
Tower

Shelter

Garage

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Created on: 17/03/2020

1:1,250Scale = 

F/YR20/0224/O ±
Page 82



Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 
F/YR20/0301/F 
 
Applicant:  Mr L Klimczuk 
 
 

Agent :  Mr Chris Walford 
Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd 

Land South East Of 70, Fieldside, Coates, Cambridgeshire   
 
Erect 8 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings and 2.0 metre high brick wall 
 
Officer recommendation: Approve 
 
Reason for Committee: Town Council comments contrary to Officer 
recommendation. 
 
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 8 semi-detached 
 dwellings. The site lies in the settlement of Coates and benefits from planning 
 permission for 4 larger properties granted in 2018. 
 
1.2 The proposal is considered to accord with the relevant policies of the 
 development plan and the sustainability aims of the NPPF. Whilst it is 
 acknowledged that the scheme will result in a two-fold increase in housing 
 numbers previously approved for this site, there are no technical matters that 
 would indicate that the development would result in unacceptable harm.  
 
1.3 Furthermore, the introduction of more, smaller units would enable a wider 
 scope of future occupiers which would assist with maintaining the viability and 
 vitality of this rural community which has both economic and social benefits. 
 
1.4 The recommendation is to approve the application. 
 

 
 

2 SITE DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The site is located to the south west of Coates and on the western side of 

Fieldside, where it meets with Lake Drove. The site was formerly garden land 
associated with No.70 Fieldside, however a high brick wall has recently been 
erected following the grant of planning permission for 4 dwellings at the application 
site in 2018 (F/YR17/1062/F), thereby separating the sites. 
 

2.2 Properties opposite the site comprise a mixture of single and 2-storey with their 
back gardens backing on to Fieldside. At the rear (west) of the site is an area of 
open paddock land which has recently gained planning permission for 2 large 
dwellings (F/YR19/1070/F & F/YR19/1085/F). 
 

2.3 The site lies in flood zone 1. 
 
 
 

 
 

3 PROPOSAL 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



3.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 8 dwellings 
comprising 4 pairs of semi-detached properties arranged in a linear formation 
fronting Fieldside. 
 

3.2 The dwellings all follow the same principle design, measuring 7.9m to ridge and 
finished in locally sourced limestone facing brick on the front elevation, Farmhouse 
multi facing brickwork with lime mortar for the remainder, arched brick soldier 
details over the windows and pantiles across the roofs. The end dwellings will also 
incorporate brick quoins to act as bookends for the scheme. The dwellings will be 
glazed with grey uPVC fenestration in the end pairs and cream uPVC in the centre 
pairs. The southern-most dwelling (plot 8) also incorporates brick castling detail 
along the eaves and through the centre and patress plates to add interest to this 
gable end which faces out onto Lake Drove. 
 

3.3 A number of existing trees along the rear boundary and hedgerow along the 
southern boundary are proposed to be retained, with new native hedgerow 
introduced to the south east corner of the site and Laurel hedge along the 
frontages.  
 

3.4 The development is proposed to be served by 2 main points of access along 
Fieldside, with a tarmacked surface leading to gravel driveways. Each dwelling 
provides 3 bedrooms and the layout enables parking for 2 cars per dwelling with 
minimum 3m wide parking spaces located either at the front or down the side of 
the properties. Bin collection points are located at each access, adjacent to the 
highway verge. 
 

3.5 The applicant has liaised with the Local Highways Authority and has agreed to 
deliver some improvements to the existing highway which includes a slight 
widening of the road through the removal of part of the existing verge to improve 
the sweep of the road at the Lake Drove/ Fieldside corner and also the extension 
of the footway opposite leading to South Green to enable a DDA compliant 
crossing point. 
 

3.6 Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/ 
 
 

4 SITE PLANNING HISTORY 
 
Reference Description Decision 
F/YR17/1062/F Erection of 4 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings with attached garages 

and erection of a 2.0m (max height) boundary wall involving 
the demolition of existing outbuildings 

Granted 15.03.2018 

F/YR16/0593/F Erection of 4 x 2-storey dwellings comprising of 1 x 3-bed, 2 x 
3-bed with attached garages and 1 x 4-bed with detached 
garage and erection of a 2.0m (max height) boundary wall 
involving the demolition of existing outbuildings 

Granted 31.08.2016 

F/YR15/0540/F Erection of 4 x 2-storey dwellings comprising of 2 x 3-bed with 
attached garages, 1 x 3-bed with and 1 x 4-bed with detached 
garage and erection of a 2.0m (max height) boundary wall 
involving the demolition of existing outbuildings 

Refused 24.07.2015 
Dismissed at appeal 
06.05.2016 

 
 
 
 

5 CONSULTATIONS 
 

Page 86

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/


5.1 Whittlesey Town Council 
“Whittlesey Town Council recommend refusal - over intensification of the site, 
original application was for 4 detached dwellings; understand comments about 
larger dwellings being built in the village and not enough 3 bed properties to keep 
younger population in the village, few properties, e.g. 6 x 3 bed semi's with 
garages. WTC also have concerns about the access from Fieldside which is not 
desirable for this development onto South Green” 
 

5.2 Cllr Mrs Mayor 
Recommends Refusal - over intensification of the site – original application for 4 
detached dwellings; understand comments about larger dwellings being built in the 
village and not enough 3bed properties to keep younger population in the village.  
Fewer properties i.e. 6 x 3 bed semis with garages    
 

5.3 Cllr Whitwell (Ward Councillor) 
Recommends Refusal – over intensification of the site – No garages and 
inadequate space for parking and turning of vehicles. 
 

5.4 Environment & Health Services (FDC) 
The Environmental Health Team note and accept the submitted information, and 
have No Objections to the proposals as they are unlikely to have a detrimental 
effect on local air quality or the noise climate. I note that this service had no 
objections to a previous application for the site which was subsequently granted 
planning consent, and given the site history, as with previous comments from this 
service, the [unsuspected contaminated land] condition should again be imposed 
in the event that planning consent is granted. 

 
Additionally, due to the proposed scale of the development and its close proximity 
to existing residential properties, it would be prudent to submit a construction 
management plan to show how noise and dust will be controlled during the 
construction phase. 
 

5.5 The Ramblers Association 
No comments received 
 

5.6 CCC Definitive Map Team (Rights of Way) 
The proposed access to the site runs along the legal line of Public Byway No.26, 
Whittlesey from the end of the public road.  To view the location of the Byway 
please view our interactive mapping online. 
 
Whilst the Definitive Map Team has no objection to this proposal, the applicant 
should be aware of the presence of the pubic byway, its legal alignment and width 
which may differ from what is available on the ground.  If you require a copy of the 
Definitive Map & Statement, this can be viewed at the County Council's offices in 
person or requested online for a fee.  
 
The County Council does not own the byway. The highway rights over the byway 
are simply vested in the County Council as the Highway Authority. The County 
Council does not know who the owner of the subsoil is. You will need to satisfy 
yourself as to this.  
 
There is no legally defined and recorded width for this byway, and we are not able 
to advise what it would be. As the dimensions are not known, we cannot 
guarantee that you would be able to improve the byway to secure a road and 
footway to an adoptable standard that may be required by the Local Planning 

Page 87



Authority (LPA). An applicant therefore would proceed with any development that 
might affect the highway at their own risk.  
 
It may be necessary to undertake minor works just to improve the surface of the 
track of the byway, but it would remain a byway. I note that you have already 
discussed this matter with the Highway Authority but I want to reiterate that should 
you wish to improve the surface in the future permission would need to be 
obtained from the highway authority first.    
 
I would also like to echo my colleague's comments [Cambridgeshire Highways] 
regarding removal of the bin collection points from the Byway.   
 
The byway must remain open and unobstructed at all times. Building materials 
must not be stored on the Public Right of Way 
 

5.7 Middle Level Commissioners 
No comments received 
 

5.8 Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority 
Initial comments received 20.04.2020: 
The bin collections points should be removed from the PROW verge. 
A tapper or radius should be applied to both sides of the access serving Plots 5-8. 
The private footpath 1.2m wide (min), levelled, sealed and drained (if necessary) 
to make it suitable for vulnerable user groups. 
Defer for amended plans. 
 
Comments received following amendments 11.06.2020: 

 I have no highway objections subject to the following conditions; 
 
1.) Prior to first occupation, the parking and turning arrangement will be laid out 
and constructed in accordance with the approved plans and retained in perpetuity  
Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 
 
2.) Prior to first occupation, the Fieldside carriageway and footway arrangement 
will be set out in accordance with the approved plan. 
Reason: In the interest of satisfactory access. 
 
3.) Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the vehicular accesses 
from Fieldside shall be hard surfaced, sealed and drained away from the highway 
for a minimum length of 5m from the immediate edge of the existing carriageway, 
in accordance with a detailed scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the LPA. 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4.) Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, visibility splays 
shall be provided as shown on the approved plan and shall be maintained 
thereafter free from any obstruction exceeding 0.6m above the level of the 
adjacent highway carriageway. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 

5.9 Local Residents/Interested Parties  
5 separate letters of objection received from 3 households raising the following 
concerns (summarised); 

• Out of character/ visual harm 

Page 88



• Fieldside is not suitable for the volume of traffic 
• No room for visitors 
• Known foul drainage issues 
• Overdevelopment 
• Road safety issues for pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders 
• Concerns over refuse collection 
• Loss of wildlife 
• Would set a precedent 
• Loss of hedgerow 
• Development in a conservation area 
• Overlooking/ loss of privacy 

 
  2 letters of support received on the following points (summarised)  

• Good to see smaller, more affordable houses in Coates 
• The village has been over-run with large developments lately 
• There is a lack of smaller 2/3 bedroom properties in the village 

 
 

6 STATUTORY DUTY  
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan 
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan 
(2014). 
 
 

7 POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

7.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Paragraph 8: The three dimensions to sustainable development. 
Paragraph 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
Paragraph 127: Seek to ensure high quality design and a good standard of 
amenity for all existing and future occupants. 
Paragraph 102-107: Promoting sustainable transport 
Chapter 5: Housing land supply 
Paragraphs 124-132: Requiring good design 
Paragraphs 170, 175-177: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 

7.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.3 National Design Guide 2019 
Context 
Identity 
Built Form 
Nature 
 

7.4 Fenland Local Plan, 2014 (FLP) 
LP1:   A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2:  Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3:  Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4:  Housing 
LP5:  Meeting Housing Need 
LP12: Rural development 
LP13: Supporting and Mitigating the Impact of a Growing District 

Page 89



LP14: Responding to Climate Change and managing the risk of flooding in   
   Fenland 
LP15: Facilitating the creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in  
  Fenland 
LP16: Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP17: Community Safety 
LP19: The Natural Environment 
 

7.5 Supplementary Planning Documents/ Guidance 
- Delivering & Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD (2014) 
- Cambridgeshire Flood & Water SPD (2016) 
- The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Core Strategy 
 (2011) which includes the RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide 
 SPD (2012) 
 

  
8 KEY ISSUES 

• Principle of Development 
• Impact on the character of the area/ visual impact 
• Highways & Transport 
• Biodiversity 
• Archaeology 
• Residential amenity 
• Other matters 
 
 

9 BACKGROUND 
9.1 The site has benefitted from planning permission for the residential development of 

the site for 4 dwellings since August 2016. The proposal was originally refused in 
2015 due to a lack of understanding of the biodiversity impacts of the development. 
This refusal reason was overcome through the 2016 permission which was further 
amended in 2017 (approved in 2018) for a slightly different scheme (see section 4: 
planning history)  
 

9.2 The most recent permission in 2018 remains extant and Officers feel that this is a 
key material consideration in the assessment of this latest proposal. 

 
 
10 ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development 

10.1 The principle of residential development of the site was established under the 
previous planning permission for 4 dwellings which remains extant and therefore 
capable of implementing. Notwithstanding this fall-back, Coates is identified as a 
limited growth village under Policy LP3 thereby accepting the principle of 
development within this settlement. 

 
 
Village Threshold 

10.2 FLP Policy LP12 advises that for villages; new development will be supported 
where it contributes to the sustainability of that settlement and does not harm the 
wide open character of the countryside. The site is considered to be within the 
existing developed footprint of the village. This policy also advises that if a 
proposal within or on the edge of a village, in conjunction with other development 
built since 2011 and committed to be built (i.e. with planning permission) 

Page 90



increases the number of dwellings in a ‘limited growth’ village by 10% or more 
then the proposal should have demonstrable evidence of clear local community 
support for the scheme, Coates has already exceeded its 10% threshold thereby 
activating this policy requirement. The scheme comes forward with no evidence 
of community consultation having been undertaken in respect of this proposal.  
 

10.3 It is clear that the scheme fails to address the requirements of LP12 in so far as 
they relate to community engagement and this is disappointing. However, the 
LPA is mindful of the 2017 appeal decision (APP/D0515/W/17/3182366) where 
the Planning Inspector in considering an appeal which was solely based on the 
failure of a scheme to achieve support under LP12, found that the failure to 
achieve community support in accordance with Policy LP12 should not render an 
otherwise acceptable scheme unacceptable.  
 

10.4 Against this backdrop it is not considered that the scheme could be refused 
purely on the grounds of LP12 threshold considerations. As such, the principle of 
development is acceptable. 

 
Impact on the character of the area/ visual impact 

10.5 Fieldside is considered to be semi-rural in nature with the rural feel increasing as 
one moves southwards along Lake Drove, where development becomes more 
sporadic into the open countryside. The side lies immediately opposite South 
Green highway and the rear curtilages of houses which stretch northwards along 
the eastern side of Fieldside. Dwellings in the area vary in scale, design and age 
but are primarily 2-storey in nature, with the exception of the single storey 
dwellings around the South Green junction. Notwithstanding the extant permitted 
scheme, it is also acknowledged that planning permission was recently granted 
for 2 larger detached custom-build dwellings to the rear of the site which would 
introduce a substantially different type of dwelling to this area and change to its 
character.   
 

10.6 Having regard to the character of the area, the introduction of 2-storey dwellings 
in this location would therefore not be out of character. Furthermore, whilst it is 
acknowledged that dwellings in the area are predominantly detached, the 
massing of the 8 dwellings arranged in 4 pairs is not dissimilar to that of the 
permitted scheme which comprises 4 large detached dwellings. In fact, the 
footprint and overall scale of the pairs of dwellings is less than that of the single 
dwellings of the permitted scheme and with a far simpler design, arguably more 
in-keeping with the semi-rural character of the area. As such, the visual impact of 
the development is considered to be less profound that that permitted.  

 
10.7 Furthermore, Officers consider that the introduction of 8 smaller, more affordable 

dwellings would constitute a more effective use of the land, meeting the housing 
needs of the settlement helping to enhance or maintain the vitality of rural 
communities as well as meeting wider district housing need. 
 

10.8 The design of the dwellings is considered to be satisfactory and incorporates high 
quality materials and design features, thereby improving the overall quality of the 
built environment and would make a positive contribution to the local 
distinctiveness and character of the area in line with the design aims of policies 
LP12 and LP16 and the National Design Guide, 2019. 
 
Highways & Transport 

10.9 Several concerns have been raised by residents over the transport impacts of the 
development with a development which would accommodate up to 16 cars. 

Page 91



Concerns in respect of capacity, traffic flow and highway safety have therefore 
been considered.  
 

10.10 It is understood that the applicant has liaised directly with the Local Highways 
Authority prior to submission for the application and the LHA has raised no 
objection to the proposed scheme, subject to standard conditions. Improvements 
to the existing highway have also been agreed in respect of slight widening at the 
bend to the south (as previously agreed under the permitted scheme) and 
improvement to the kerb edge opposite to comply with DDA requirements.  
 

10.11 The scheme also accords with the parking standards as set out under Appendix 
A of the FLP. The standards do not set a requirement to include visitor parking 
and it is noted that the location of the site might yield limited provision for this. 
However, it is noted that informal parking areas have been formed along 
Fieldside on the verges and parking along South Green on the highway is 
possible if required, with a short walk to the application site. Refuse collection 
could also be undertaken immediately outside and deliveries on the driveways 
serving the properties. Given the temporary nature of visitors, deliveries etc. it is 
not anticipated that a lack of visitor parking on the site would result in a severe 
harm in highways terms, noting the test set out under paragraph 109 of the 
NPPF.  
 

10.12 It is also noted that the permitted scheme for 4 large properties whilst indicating 
on plan that they are 3-bedroom properties could achieve a 4th in the playroom 
over the garage and was not restricted on this basis through planning condition, 
with up to 4 cars per property achievable. It is difficult therefore to accurately 
assess the implications for additional highway impacts of the proposed scheme 
against the permitted development, notwithstanding that no objections were 
raised by the LHA. As such, whilst concerns raised in terms of highway impacts 
are noted, Officers have no evidence to warrant a refusal on this basis. It is 
concluded therefore that the proposal accords with the aims of FLP policy LP15. 
 
Biodiversity 

10.13 The previous scheme was supported by an ecology survey which identified that 
the development was unlikely to result in significant impacts on the nearest SSSI 
of the Nene Washes, or any significant impacts on local biodiversity – with only 
minor negative impacts on breeding birds through partial hedge and tree removal. 
It is considered having regard to the current site conditions with some further 
clearance works that has been undertaken since that time, that the findings of the 
ecology survey are still relevant. 
 

10.14 Mitigation and enhancement was previously proposed by way of additional hedge 
and tree planting, sensitive lighting and boundary treatment, erection of bird and 
bat boxes and construction methods to ensure animals do not get trapped or 
unnecessarily disturbed. This was secured via a planning condition requiring a 
scheme to demonstrate that these elements would be delivered through the 
development. This latest submission is supported by a site layout plan which 
provides the necessary details to ensure that the mitigation and enhancement 
recommendations outlined in the ecology report would be secured and a planning 
condition is therefore not deemed necessary, other than one requiring that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the details submitted as is 
standard. 
 

10.15 In this regard, the development is anticipated to have as a minimum a neutral 
impact on biodiversity, with enhancements anticipated to gradually increase 

Page 92



biodiversity as it matures through the lifetime of the development. It is however 
prudent to ensure that all planting and soft landscaping is retained, or replaced if 
it becomes uprooted or dies with in a 5 year period which is a standard 
requirement and can be reasonably secured through a planning condition. 
Subject to this, it is considered that the proposal would accord with FLP policies 
LP16 and LP19. 
 
Archaeology 

10.16 The County Council’s Archaeology team previously requested a planning 
condition requiring investigative work to be undertaken prior to the development 
commencing. This work has since been undertaken and The County Council’s 
Archaeology team has confirmed that it will no longer be necessary to secure the 
same condition with tis application. 
 
Drainage 

10.17 The applicant is proposing a SuDS approach to surface water drainage with the 
inclusion of soakaways. Whilst it is not certain that ground conditions are 
conducive to this drainage method, the development would need to accord with 
the latest Building Regulations - Part H, which would require the development to 
follow a sustainable drainage hierarchy achieving the most sustainable method of 
drainage based on the ground conditions of the site. In this regard it is considered 
that the proposal is satisfactory in principle but ultimately to be determined 
through Building Regulations. 
 

10.18 Likewise, the applicant has proposed to utilise the existing mains foul sewer. This 
would be the preferred approach under Building Regulations which would need to 
be satisfied in any case. In view of the limited scale of the development and that 
ultimately the adequacy of foul drainage method will be determined via Building 
Regulations, it is not considered reasonable to in this instance to require further 
details.  
 

10.19 Concerns have been raised regarding the conditions and issues associated with 
the existing foul sewer infrastructure, with at least one resident asserting that the 
sewer has collapsed in the past, the concerns are that the proposal would 
exacerbate this issue.  
 

10.20 Anglian Water is the statutory authority for the management of mains drainage in 
Coates and it is their responsibility to ensure that their infrastructure is capable of 
accommodating the needs of the community. Whilst it may be that some of the 
existing infrastructure may require upgrading, given the statutory duty placed on 
Anglian Water to manage foul drainage from new development where this is 
proposed to use their public network, it would not be reasonable to refuse the 
application on this basis. Notwithstanding this, it is also acknowledged that a 
scheme for 4 dwellings has already been permitted at the site and there is no 
evidence to establish that a further 4 dwellings would cause significant issues in 
this regard.  
 

10.21 It is considered therefore that the proposed method of foul and surface water is 
acceptable in principle but would ultimately be determined via the Building 
Control. The development does not therefore demonstrate any conflict with 
policies LP14 and LP16 of the FLP. 
 
Residential amenity 

10.22 The garden depths of the properties range from 8m at the northern plot (plot 1) to 
12m at the south (plot 8) which is therefore considered acceptable and would not 

Page 93



give rise to severe overlooking into the rear gardens or properties of the 
proposed development to the west, or unacceptable overshadowing or 
overbearing impacts.  
 

10.23 Concerns have been raised by a resident opposite the site whose property backs 
onto Fieldside. Rear boundaries of properties directly opposite the site are 
between 12 to 15m from the front windows of the proposed development and 
again would not therefore result in any unacceptable levels of overlooking, 
overshadowing or visual dominance. Whilst it is accepted that the outlook from 
the rear of these existing properties will change somewhat through the 
development, the actual impacts are within acceptable limits based on general 
development practices. 
 

10.24 The Council’s Environmental Protection Team has recommended that a 
Construction Management plan to deal with dust and noise pollution is secured 
with the proposal. Whilst all development is capable of causing nuisance in terms 
of noise and other pollutants, developers are generally expected to follow best 
practice with their development. Schemes of this scale are not usually required to 
be controlled through management plans imposed via planning conditions as it is 
not deemed proportionate to the scale of the development, where it is usual for 
only a small workforce to operate - limited by the small site area. Instead, 
schemes of this scale are generally controlled, where necessary to do so, via the 
Council’s Environmental Protection Team using their enforcement powers under 
the Environmental Protection Act should a nuisance arise as well as general HSE 
requirements. It is noted that the permitted schemes did not incur such a 
condition and it is considered disproportionate to do so with this latest proposal. 
 
Other matters 

10.25 Whilst most concerns raised by the Town Council and residents have already 
been addressed above, the following matters are considered as follows; 
 
Would set a precedent 

10.26 All applications are to be considered against the development plan as required by 
law (unless material considerations indicate otherwise). As such, should any 
future development proposals come forward, these would be dealt with on a case 
by case basis in accordance with the development plan having regard to the 
overall sustainability of the proposal. 
 
Development in a Conservation Area 

10.27 The site is not located with any designated area, of heritage or nature/ habitat. It 
is acknowledged that the Conservation Area (CA) boundary is located c.58m 
north along Fieldside and the CA contains a grade II listed building, ‘Thatchers 
Cottage’ 55 Fieldside which is located c.145m from the application site. Given the 
mixture of development between the site and the CA and the listed building, it is 
considered that the development would not have any effect on the character of 
the conservation area or the setting and significance of the listed building. 

 
           
11 CONCLUSIONS 
11.1 The proposal is considered to accord with the relevant policies of the development 

plan and the sustainability aims of the NPPF. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
scheme will result in a two-fold increase in housing numbers previously approved 
for this site, there are no technical matters that would indicate that the 
development would result in unacceptable harm.  

 

Page 94



11.2 Furthermore, the introduction of more, smaller units would enable a wider scope of 
future occupiers which would assist with maintaining the viability and vitality of this 
rural community which has both economic and social benefits.  

 
 

12 RECOMMENDATION 
Grant subject to the following conditions; 
 
1. The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years 

from the date of this permission. 
  
Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted the 
Fieldside/ South Green footway enhancement and street lighting relocation 
as indicated on drawing No 5758/02/01Z shall be provided and retained 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: In order to provide suitable pedestrian access to the dwellings, for 
the avoidance of doubt and in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland 
Local Plan adopted 2014. 
 

3. The development shall be completed externally in the details as set out on 
the elevational plans on plan reference 5758/02/01 revision Z. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to safeguard the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014. 
 

4. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling to which they relate, the parking 
and turning arrangements will be laid out and constructed in accordance with 
the details on plan reference 5758/02/01Z and thereafter retained in 
perpetuity  
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 
 

5. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the vehicular accesses 
from Fieldside shall be hard surfaced, sealed and drained away from the 
highway for a minimum length of 5m from the immediate edge of the existing 
carriageway, in accordance with a detailed scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 

6. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, visibility splays 
shall be provided as shown on the approved plan and shall be maintained 
thereafter free from any obstruction exceeding 0.6m above the level of the 
adjacent highway carriageway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

7. All hedge and tree planting as indicated on plan ref: 5758/02/01Z shall accord 
with the selection of specimens as detailed in section 8 of the ecology report 
submitted under F/YR16/0593/F (Wild Frontier Ecology dated June 2016). All 
hedgerow and trees detailed to be retained shall be protected during the 

Page 95



course of construction in accordance with BS: 5837:2012. 
 
Reason: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policies LP16 and LP19 
of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

8. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  All planting seeding or turfing and soil preparation 
comprised in the above details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first 
planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings, the 
completion of the development,  and any plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of similar size and species, unless the local planning authority 
gives written consent to any variation. All landscape works shall be carried 
out in accordance with the guidance contained in British Standards, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
  
Reason - To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape details in 
the interest of the amenity value of the development in accordance with 
Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014. 
 

9. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site: 
(i) it shall be reported to the local planning authority within 1 working day; 
(ii) no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority) shall be carried out until site investigations have been 
carried out and a remediation strategy has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected 
contamination will be dealt with; 
(iii) the remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved; 
(iv) no occupation of any part of the development identified in the remediation 
strategy as being affected by the previously unidentified contamination shall 
take place until: 
a. the approved scheme has been implemented in full and any verification 
report required by the scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority; 
b. if required by the local planning authority, any proposals for long-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for 
contingency action have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. 
(v) the long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as 
approved. 
 
Reason: To control pollution of land or water in the interests of the 
environment and public safety in accordance with LP2 and LP16 of the 
Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

10. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans and documents. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 96



Drain

FIE
LD

SID
E

(TR
ACK)

El Sub Sta

7

2

5

6

81
68

8170

31

45

47

42

75

81

85

74

70

17
90

69

63

72

20

91

18

41

51

59

76

71

89

68a

81a

LB

Fo
otp

ath

Byway

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Created on: 07/04/2020

1:1,250Scale = 

F/YR20/0301/F

±
Page 97



70

68

70
71

74

75

81

81

FIE
LD

SID
E

Re-located 5m wide tarmac

access. Bound material for

min. 5m from highway

Existing

Access

Parking, Turning

& Garden for

No.70

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

New 1.2m wide private footpath within

site (Levelled, sealed surface, surface

water to drain onto gravel drives)

G

r

a

s

s

 

v

e

r

g

e

Existing

street light

N

e

w

 

2

m

 

h

i

g

h

 

b

r

i

c

k

 

w

a

l

l

light (existing)

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

h

i

g

h

 

f

e

n

c

e

New 1.8m high

cb timber fence

2.4m x 43m

visibilty splay

2.4m x 43m

visibilty splay

Existing drop

kerb

Garden

Garden

Garden

New 1.8m high

cb timber fence

Bin

collection

point

Retain

tree

2.4m x 43m

visibilty splay

Garden

Relocate existing

street light to rear

of footpath

Former verge to be

included as part of

carriageway (tarmac)

22x2.4m visibility

splay

New tree/hedge chosen from

section 8 of ecology report

(600mm high) (B-C)

Garden

Garden

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Garden

Garden

68
88

6000

6000

84
45

Grass verge

G

r

a

s

s

 

v

e

r

g

e

Grass verge

New 5m wide tarmac access.

Bound material for

min. 5m from highway

Extend footway around

corner to create DDA

pram crossing to new

access on opposite side

(to highways spec)

Extended grass verge

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

r

o

a

d

S

h

a

r

e

d

g

r

a

v

e

l

 

d

r

i

v

e

s

S

h

a

r

e

d

g

r

a

v

e

l

 

d

r

i

v

e

s

Approved dwelling - F/YR19/1085/F

Approved dwelling - F/YR19/1070/F

Retain section of

dense native

hedge (A-B)

New laurel hedge to

frontage to replace

existing (1800mm high)

(C-D)

G

r

a

s

s

 

v

e

r

g

e

H

i

g

h

w

a

y

 

b

o

u

n

d

a

r

y

A

B

C

D

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

New planting

chosen from

section 8 of

ecology report

New planting

chosen from

section 8 of

ecology report

70

76

68

70

71

74

75

81

81

Drain

45

81
a

69

82

G
RO

UN
DS W

AY1

LB

FIE
LD

SID
E

KEY:

= Existing trees

= Trees to be

    removed

=Proposed trees

LANDSCAPING:

= Wall mounted up/down

light (dusk to dawn)

L

= Bird box, should cater for Sparrow, Swift and Starling
species and face north or east and out of direct
sunlight set as high as possible on each dwelling.

= Bat box,  should be surface mounted on the south to
south west face of each dwelling at least 3m above
ground.

Timetable:
Boxes to be installed in accordance with site plan prior
to the occupation of each dwelling.

Access holes (12cm x 10cm) in fence locations to
enable ground mammals (hedgehogs) to commute

LOUNGE

WCUTILITY

KITCHEN & DINING
BED 1

BED 3

BED 2

BATHROOM

WC

LOBBY

LOUNGE

WC

KITCHEN & DINING

UTILITY

LOBBY

BED 1

BED 3

BED 2

BATHROOM

WC

33
00

16
92

30
27

2531 2427

33
00

16
92

30
27

25312427

33
00

16
82

30
37

5058

33
00

16
82

30
37

5058

Plots 1, 2, 7 & 8 =
Grey double
pantiles

Plots 3, 4, 5 & 6 =
Terracotta
farmhouse double
pantiles

Locally sourced natural
limestone walling to front
elevation only

Brick quoin detail
returning around to
front from gable end

Plots 1, 2, 7 & 8 =
Grey UPVC
casement windows

Plots 3, 4, 5 & 6 =
Cream UPVC
casement windows

Brick soldier detail
(arches on front
and flat to side/rear)

Frosted Frosted

F.F.L to match No.81
(opposite site)

Farmhouse multi
facing

brickwork with
lime mortar

Farmhouse multi
facing

brickwork with
lime mortar

Farmhouse multi
facing

brickwork with
lime mortar

Frosted

Farmhouse multi
facing

brickwork with
lime mortar

Castle brick detail
band

Patress plates
to gable end

Castle brick detail
to gable end

Wall
light

Wall
light

A R C H I T E C T U R A L  D E S I G N  A N D  B U I L D I N G

TELEPHONE 01945 466 966

FAX 01945 466 433

E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk

31 OLD MARKET  WISBECH  CAMBS  PE13 1NB

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

COPYRIGHT: THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE ISSUED, LOANED OR COPIED

WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF PETER HUMPHREY ASSOCIATES

CLIENT

DATE FEB 2020 AS SHOWNSCALE JOB No.

A R C H I T E C T U R A L  D E S I G N  A N D  B U I L D I N G

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

PROPOSED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

FIELDSIDE

COATES

PROJECT

MR & MRS KLIMCZUK

5758/02/01Z

N

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:500

LOCATION PLAN 1:1250
DRAWING

PROPOSED SITE / DWELLING PLANS

GROUND PLAN 1:50 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1:50

FRONT ELEVATION 1:100 SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 REAR ELEVATION 1:100 SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 (PLOTS 1-7) SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 (PLOT 8)

P
age 98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
6 PLANTS PER METRE SQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
BUDDLEIA DAVIDII,FORSYTHIA X INTERMEDIA LYNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
PLANTED AT 750mm cts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
PLANTING SIZE 40-60cm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
C3 POT SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
HEDERA HELIX,LAVANDULA SPICA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
SP   SHRUB PLANTING TO INCLUDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
GC   GROUND COVER PLANTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
MOCK ORANGE(PHILADELPHUS)SNOWY MESPILUS(AMELANCHIER)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
BARBERRY(BERBERRIS) GUELDER ROSE(VIBURNUM)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
COTONEASTER HORIZONTALIS,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
NOTE: Undertake soft landscape works generally in open weather conditions, typically mild, dull and moist. Do not undertake planting seeding or turfing when the temperature is below 4ºC and falling, when the ground is covered in snow, in frozen or waterlogged ground or in drought conditions.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
Planting should be undertaken between November and March when the plants are dormant and planted at centres shown above. Plants should be set at the same root depth as they were at the nursery and should be well firmed in and guards fitted. Remove any damaged shoots during planting. A 75mm layer of bark mulch (Landscape Bark Madingley Mulch or equivalent) should be applied over the planting bed to reduce weed competition.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
If within a period of 5 years from the date of the planting of any tree or shrub, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes, in the opinion of the Local Authority, seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the same place unless the Local Authority gives written consent to any variation.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
British Institute of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
Architectural Technologists



 
 
 
F/YR20/0335/O 
 
Applicant:  Mr Michael Topping 
 

Agent : Morton and Hall Ltd 

Land south and west of 4-5 Mill Hill Lane, March 
 
Erect up to 2x dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of 
access) 
 
Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to the 
Officer recommendation. 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

1.1. The application is an amended scheme following a previous refusal of outline 
permission for three dwellings on the site. The current scheme is also made in 
outline but proposes the construction of two dwellings. 
 

1.2. The application site is a backland location at the rear of two recently 
constructed dwellings on Mill Hill Lane, and is proposed to be accessed 
between those dwellings. 

 
1.3. Mill Hill Lane is only partially adopted with the adopted section stopping some 

distance to the north of the access to the proposed dwellings 
 

1.4. The proposed access driveway to the properties would be 3.6m wide for much 
of its length, and would adjoin the rear gardens of the dwellings flanking it, 
which would be separated by a 1.8m close boarded fence from the new 
driveway. 
 

1.5. The scheme has failed to address previous refusal reasons for development 
on the site relating to amenity levels within the dwellings flanking the access, 
and the amendments to the access driveway have resulted in additional 
issues relating to the safety of the access driveway and its enclosure and lack 
of places to pass. 

 
 

2. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

2.1. The application site is an existing piece of open land to the rear of the dwellings 
on Mill Hill Lane, and forms approximately one half of the land surrounded by 
the existing gardens located to the rear of the dwellings on Mill Hill Lane, and 
Knight’s End Road.  

 
2.2. The land is flanked to the south by an existing dyke, beyond which are a group 

of trees protected by a tree preservation order. These trees overhang the 
southern part of the site when in full leaf. 

 
2.3. The site is enclosed by existing post and rail fencing on three sides, and at the 

western end is overlooked by the rear elevation of a single-storey dwelling. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



Similarly the existing dwelling to the eastern end of the site to the south of the 
access is located in close proximity and looks west over the proposed driveway.  

 
2.4. The site is located in flood zone 1; however it is noted on the Environment 

Agency Flood Risk Mapping website as being at high risk of surface water 
flooding. 

 
2.5. Mill Hill Lane provides access to the site, and is also the route of a public right of 

way. 
 

3. PROPOSAL 
 

3.1. The proposal is made in outline for the construction of 2 new dwellings on the 
site. All matters are reserved for later approval with the exception of access, 
which shown as being located between the two dwellings to the east of the site, 
numbers 6 and 7 Mill Hill Lane.  

 
3.2. Indicative plans are provided showing a potential site layout, floor plans and 

elevations. These indicative details show a private driveway running between 6 
and 7 Mill Hill Lane and then turning north to run parallel the southern boundary 
of the site with the adjacent dyke. One of the proposed plots flanks this driveway 
to the north, and the second is located at the western end of the site. Each 
dwelling is shown with detached garaging, and a turning head is provided at the 
western extent of the site to allow refuse and emergency vehicles to access the 
development when required. 

 
3.3. The application site is accessed via Mill Hill Lane, and the adopted highway 

ends approximately 15 metres to the north of the driveway access between 6 
and 7 Mill Hill Lane.  

 
3.4. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docu
ments&keyVal=Q8XNS4HE03000  

 
4. SITE PLANNING HISTORY 

 
F/YR19/0146/O Erection of up to 3no dwellings (outline application with 

matters committed in respect of access) 
Refused 
25/4/19 

F/YR15/0311/F Erection of 1 x 4-bed 3-storey detached dwelling with 
detached double garage and 1 x 2-bed single-storey 
dwelling with detached single garage 

Granted 
28/8/15 

F/YR13/0561/F Erection of 1 x 3-bed 2-storey dwelling and 1 x 4-bed 
2-storey dwelling with integral double garages 

Granted 
11/5/13 

F/YR12/0448/F Erection of 1 x 3-bed 2-storey dwelling and 1 x 4-bed 
2-storey dwelling with integral double garages 

Refused 
8/7/12 

F/YR11/0785 Erection of 1no x 3-storey 5/7-bed with integral garage 
and 2no x 4-bed dwellings with integral garages 

Withdrawn 
25/11/11 

F/0364/75/O The erection of a dwelling Refused 
18/7/75 

M/72/187/O The erection of two agricultural bungalows and 
garages 

Refused 
20/11/72 

M/72/188/O Residential development Refused 
10/2/72 

M/67/92/O The erection of dwellings Refused 
7/8/67 

Page 100

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q8XNS4HE03000
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q8XNS4HE03000


 
5. CONSULTATIONS 

 
5.1. March Town Council 

Recommend refusal due to over-development 
 
5.2. FDC Environmental Health 

No objections 
 

5.3. Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority  
No highway objections. Conditions requested regarding laying out of the access 
and provision of vehicle turning and parking 

 
5.4. Cambridgeshire County Council Definitive Map Team (Public Rights of Way) 

“No objection. The applicant should be aware of the presence of the byway, 
however there is no legally defined and recorded width for it. There is no 
guarantee that it would be possible to improve the byway to secure a road and 
footway to an adoptable standard. Permission would be required to improve the 
surface of the byway in the future, which should remain open and unobstructed at 
all times.” Request informatives are attached if planning permission is granted. 
 

5.5. Local Residents/Interested Parties 16 responses have been received from 
separate sources in support for the proposal and 9 responses from separate 
sources are noted in opposition to the scheme. 
 
The matters raised are as follows. 
 
Support 
• Sympathetic to the neighbouring properties, will enhance the neighbourhood 
• Fulfils a need for bungalows as March has a shortage of these 
• Shows there is no desire to overdevelop the infill land 
• Will likely increase the value of the neighbouring properties 
• Other infill sites granted in the area 
• Developer demonstrates a high standard of workmanship 
• Opportunity for young people or retirees to live in a modern, energy efficient 

home 
• Scale reduced from the previous scheme 
• Drainage design will deal with any surface water issues there may be 
• Bungalows would not be overbearing nor result in privacy issues 
• Driveway and access are suitable and turning/bin collection has been 

provided for. 
• Ample parking provision for the dwellings 
• National housing shortage 
• Sites are in flood zone 1 
• Previous report stated the site was suitable for residential development 

 
Objection 
• Mill Hill Lane will not support additional traffic, and currently floods 
• Mill Hill Lane doesn’t allow two-way vehicle flow 
• Increased congestion 
• There are no segregated footways on Mill Hill Lane 
• Tree preservation orders are not being adhered to 
• Ecological impacts 
• The land floods and is noted by the EA as being susceptible to flooding 

Page 101



• The land is infill development on agricultural land 
• The access road to the plots has been built for some time 
• Bin collections 
• Sewerage disposal 
• Will result in a loss of quality and living conditions in the local environment 
• Negative impact on safety of children walking along the lane 
• Conditions have changed since the ecology survey was undertaken 
• Still no tree survey undertaken 
• No flood risk assessment provided 
• Soakaways not suitable for the site 
• Backland development that will result in unacceptable amenity impacts on 

the neighbouring properties 
• Overdevelopment of the lane 

 
 

6. STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development 
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local 
Plan (2014). 

 
7. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Para 2: NPPF is a material consideration 
Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Para 78: Housing should be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality 
of rural communities. 
Para 130: Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails 
to take opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area. 
Para 155: Development should be directed away from areas at highest risk of 
flooding. 
Para 158: Development should not be permitted if there are reasonably available 
sites in areas at lower risk of flooding. 
Para 163: Thresholds for allowing development in areas at risk of flooding. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
Determining a planning application  
 
National Design Guide 2019 
Context 
Built Form 
Movement 
Homes and Buildings 
 
Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4 – Housing 
LP9 – March 
LP12 – Rural Areas Development Policy 

Page 102



LP14 – Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 
 
March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 
Policy H2 – Windfall Development 
 

8. KEY ISSUES 
• Principle of Development  
• Access and Highway Safety 
• Access and Amenity Impacts 
• Flood Risk  
• Biodiversity 
• Other Matters 

 
9. BACKGROUND 

 
9.1. Development in relation to the land in question began with the granting of consent 

for the two dwellings flanking the now proposed access to the current site. 
Consent for the properties as built was granted in 2015. 

 
9.2. Permission was then sought for the construction of three dwellings on the current 

site in 2019, with that application being refused by the Planning Committee in 
April of that year. The reason given for that refusal is as follows: 
 
1. The proposal is a backland development scheme that results in 

unacceptable amenity impacts to the neighbouring properties at 6 Mill Hill 
Lane and the host dwelling 7 Mill Hill Lane. In particular, the access, its 
length and the volume of traffic required to pass along it to access the new 
dwellings would result in unacceptable amenity impacts on the specified 
properties and substandard facilities for the collection of waste contrary to 
paragraphs e) and f) of policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and 
policy DM4 of the Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in 
Fenland supplementary planning document 2014. 

 
9.3. Following that refusal, the agent sought pre-application advice with regard to 

revisions to the scheme, including reduction in the number of proposed units to 2, 
the relocation of the access road further from the dwelling to the north of the 
entrance to the site, along with internal alterations to the scheme to facilitate bin 
collections. The response to the enquiry indicated that the concerns regarding 
impact on neighbouring amenity with regard to the access remained.  

 
10. ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development  

10.1. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement hierarchy 
within the District, setting out the scale of development appropriate to each level 
of the hierarchy. March is a Primary Market Town, one of two settlements within 
the highest level of the hierarchy where the majority of the development within the 
District is expected to take place over the plan period 
 

10.2. The application site is located on the southern side of March, near to the built up 
section of land along the south side of Knight’s End Road. The application site is 
located within flood zone 1 and there are no ecological or heritage designations 

Page 103



on the land that would indicate a presumption against development as a matter of 
principle.  

 
Access and Highway Safety 

10.3. Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development to provide a 
well-designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving priority to the needs of 
pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired mobility and users of public transport. 

 
10.4. The proposed access into the site is located to the south of the existing adopted 

highway, and runs between 6 and 7 Mill Hill Lane. The access currently serves 7 
Mill Hill Lane as a driveway. It is proposed to alter the existing access to provide 
a 5m wide by 10m long section at the junction with Mill Hill Lane with the new, 
narrower driveway joining it at its western end. 
 

10.5. The Byway Open to All traffic (BOAT) that runs along Mill Hill Lane allows for 
travel by both pedestrians and vehicles as well as other methods of travel, 
however no segregation is in place to improve the safety of relationships between 
vehicular and other traffic. Notwithstanding that, there are 18 existing dwellings 
(including dwellings granted consent and dwellings under construction) along Mill 
Hill Lane that use the road to access their property in addition to the farm 
businesses further to the south, and as a result there is a limited additional 
burden placed on it by the proposal for two new units compared to the existing 
load.  
 

10.6. Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority and the Definitive Map Team 
have both assessed the proposal and have not raised objections on highway 
safety grounds and therefore whilst the comments of the residents are noted, 
there is no specific identified harm that will arise in relation to highway safety as a 
result of the proposal and on that basis it is not justified to refuse permission on 
those grounds. 
 

10.7. Within the application site, the proposed two new dwellings are served by a single 
shared private drive, approximately 90m in length. The driveway is indicated as 
being 5m wide for the first 10 metres into the site, however it then narrows to 
3.6m wide as it passes the two dwellings flanking it (6 and 7 Mill Hill Lane). This 
has been narrowed from 4m in the previous application in an attempt to 
overcome the reason for refusal. From this point, the driveway is flanked on either 
side by 1.8m high closeboard fencing for a distance of approximately 45m, which 
includes a bend in the driveway to align the road to the site. This is not wide 
enough to allow two vehicles to pass each other and that narrowness is 
exacerbated by the enclosure of the driveway by the proposed fencing, and 
would therefore require vehicles to reverse either back up to the hammerhead 
section at the western end of the driveway, or out to the wider entrance point with 
Mill Hill Lane. Neither would be conducive to the provision of a safe and 
convenient access as required by policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) 
and would result in a scheme of lesser quality in this respect than the previous 
refused application.  
 
Access and Amenity Impacts 

10.8. In addition to the highway safety issues identified above, the access proposed to 
be used in relation to the scheme passes between numbers 6 and 7 Mill Hill 
Lane, with separation of 1.7 metres and 1 metre respectively between the side 
elevations of those dwellings.  

 

Page 104



10.9. 6 Mill Hill Lane benefits from 5 existing windows along its southern elevation 
flanking the proposed access, with a 1.8 metre high closeboard fence alongside 
the vehicular route. 7 Mill Hill Lane only has a single window facing this driveway, 
however there is currently no boundary treatment separating the driveway from 
the window in question, with a 1.8m close boarded fence proposed. 

 
10.10. Although the access driveway is in existence at the time of the application, it is 

currently only used by 7 Mill Hill Lane to access the land beyond the site, and 
their parking provision is located to the front of the site thus ensuring that use of 
the access is extremely low level in intensity. The proposal would result in 2 
family homes being accessed along this route with a likely parking requirement of 
6 spaces and a proportionate level of vehicular movements.  

 
10.11. Should the application be approved both the existing properties flanking the 

access would have limited amenity space associated with them. The proposed 
scheme results in those private amenity spaces being located directly adjacent to 
the access to the proposed new dwellings and therefore subject to the 
detrimental impact on those areas of vehicular and pedestrian traffic passing by 
on a regular basis with all the associated negative impacts that will bring.  

 
10.12. The proposal is an improvement in amenity terms in relation to the previously 

refused scheme for three dwellings, however the impacts arising from narrowing 
the access by 0.4m are still considered to be unacceptable and it is considered 
that the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity 
standards of the neighbouring properties, contrary to the provisions of policy 
LP16 (e) of a sufficient scale to justify refusal of the scheme. 
 
Flood Risk 

10.13. The application site is located within flood zone 1, the zone of least flood risk and 
the preferred location for residential development in flood risk terms. The site 
adjoins an existing dyke and in principle therefore there is no objection to the 
proposal on flood risk grounds, however the site is also identified by the 
Environment Agency on their website as being at high risk of flooding from 
surface water, and photographic evidence provided by representations received 
in relation to the application supports this, albeit the photograph is not dated and 
does not provide any evidence as to the regularity of such flooding/waterlogging.  

 
10.14. It is noted that despite this evidence, there is no statutory basis for opposition to 

the principle of consent on the basis of the surface water flooding of the site, 
although it would be reasonable in that case to require that the applicant 
demonstrate that an acceptable solution to the surface water drainage of the site 
is available. If the application were to be granted it would be appropriate to 
require demonstration that the surface water drainage proposed is satisfactory 
given the risk of surface water flooding on the site. 

 
10.15. Given the issues identified above however it is considered that it would be 

unreasonable to require the applicant to undertake to provide such evidence at 
this time when other matters in relation to the proposal would justify refusal of the 
scheme regardless. The applicant therefore has not been requested to undertake 
to provide a scheme demonstrating acceptable drainage of the site. 
 
Biodiversity 

10.16. A biodiversity report has been produced and submitted alongside the application 
by Hillier Ecology Limited. This survey and report concludes that although 
enhancements to the site should be provided as part of any development, there 

Page 105



were no protected species likely to be affected by the proposal at the time of the 
survey. 
 
Other Matters 

10.17. Several other matters have been raised in relation to the proposed scheme 
however the majority of concerns have been addressed in the above 
consideration of the scheme, and the remainder, such as impacts on property 
values, works to other preserved trees in the vicinity, the existence of part of the 
access road, the infill nature of the plot and the amount of other development 
undertaken along Mill Hill Lane recently are not material to the consideration of 
the current application, which must be assessed on its own merits. 
 

11. CONCLUSIONS 
 

11.1. The broad principle of development of the site is not at odds with the relevant 
policies of the development plan, however the specific details submitted with 
regard to access arrangements to the site have failed to overcome concerns 
identified previously regarding unacceptable impacts on the amenity of the 
neighbouring dwellings and the proposed dwellings, and although attempts have 
been made to reduce these impacts, they will result in further harm to the 
amenities and safety of the use of the proposed access to serve the dwellings 
within the site, contrary to the relevant policies of the development plan. 

 
12. RECOMMENDATION 

 
12.1. Refuse, for the following reason 

 
1. The proposal is a backland development scheme that results in 

unacceptable amenity impacts to the neighbouring properties at 6 Mill 
Hill Lane and the host dwelling 7 Mill Hill Lane. In particular, the access 
and its width combined with the number of properties it is intended to 
serve would result in unacceptable amenity impacts to the specified 
properties and would fail to provide a safe and convenient access to the 
proposed dwellings. The scheme would therefore be contrary to policies 
LP16 (e) and LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). 

 
 
 

 

Page 106



Page 107



Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0
0
9
 
&

 
2
0
1
1

P
age 108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
Mr and Mrs Topping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
Site Off Mill Hill Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
Cambs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
PE15 9QB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
Proposed Location

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
M. Halmshaw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
January 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
H3848/101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
PROPOSED LOCATION PLAN (1:500)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
KNIGHT'S END ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
The Toft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
Linwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
Westward Ho

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
4.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
Westdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
MILL HILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
SCHEME REVISED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
JAN 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
P U B L I C  F O O T P A T H 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
F/YR18/0210/O OUTLINE PERMISSION FOR 2No DWELLINGS GRANTED: 22ND JUNE 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
F/YR18/0233/F PERMISSION FOR 2No FOUR BED DWELLINGS GRANTED: 19th JULY 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
No.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
E X I S T I N G  D Y K E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
AREA IDENTIFIED IN FENLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL`S PLAN FOR GROWTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
FEB 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
I N D I C A T I V E   D R A W I N G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
FEB 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
DRIVEWAY UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
FEB 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
SCHEME REDUCED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
APR 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
No.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
No.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
E X I S T I N G  D Y K E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
PLOT ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
3.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
P R I V A T E  D R I V E W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
PLOT TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
LOCATION FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
BIN COLLECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
LINE INDICATES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
TURNING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
FOR BIN LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
ACCESS AMENDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
MAY 2020



Building

Design Awards

Fenland District Council

Building Excellence in Fenland

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 
W

I
N

N
E

R

2
0
0
9
 
&

 
2
0
1
1

P
age 109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
Mr and Mrs Topping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
Site Off Mill Hill Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
Cambs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
PE15 9QB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
M. Halmshaw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
January 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
H3848/102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
SITE PLAN KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
SITE ENVELOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
EXISTING DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
HEDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
WASTE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
FOUL DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
CONCRETE SLABS  (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
WATER COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
LAND CLIENT OWNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
SCHEME REVISED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
JAN 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
No.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
No.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
No.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
No.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
No.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
E X I S T I N G  D Y K E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
GATE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
0.6m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
1.8M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
PLOT ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
TO ENTIRE LENGTH OF DRAIN, SET MIXED LAUREL HEDGE TO 2m HIGH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
SB: 2m HIGH SILVER BIRCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
CH: 2m HIGH CHERRY TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
FIRST 10m TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE  COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS REQUIREMENTS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
FEB 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
I N D I C A T I V E   D R A W I N G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
FEB 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
DRIVEWAY UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
MAR 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
P R I V A T E  D R I V E W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
PLOT TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
SCHEME REVISED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
JUL 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
LOCATION FOR BIN COLLECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
LOCATION FOR BIN COLLECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
EXISTING CHERRY TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
LINE INDICATES TURNING AREA FOR BIN LORRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
DRIVEWAY AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
NOV 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
DRIVEWAY AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
MAR 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
BIN COLLECTION POINT ON REQUIRED DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
DRIVEWAY AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
MAY 2020



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
F/YR20/0365/F, F/YR20/0371/F & F/YR20/0372/LB  
 
Applicant:  Mr S Howard 
 
 

Agent :  Mr Lee Bevens 
L Bevens Associates Ltd 

 
Land East Of 133, High Street, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire 
 
F/YR20/0365/F: Erect 9 x 2-storey dwellings comprising of 7 x 3-bed and 2 x 2-bed 
with garages and erect detached garage and 2.4 (approx) metre high wall to serve 
133 High Street 
 
F/YR20/0371/F: Demolition of a wall within a Conservation Area 
 
F/YR20/0372/LB: Demolition of existing wall and rebuilding of 2.4 (max) metre all 
to a Listed Building  
 
Officer recommendation: F/YR20/0365/F: Refuse 
    F/YR20/0371/F: Approve 
    F/YR20/0372/LB: Refuse 
 
Reason for Committee: Town Council comments and number of representations 
received are contrary to the Officer recommendation for F/YR20/0365/F. The other 
two applications are reported to as they are intrinsically linked.   
 
 
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
1.1 The three applications are all linked together and cumulatively comprise of the 

demolition of a modern boundary wall and the erection of a new boundary wall, 
together with full planning permission for 9 dwellings on land to the rear of 
No.133 High Street, Chatteris. 
 

1.2 The erection of three dwellings on this land was previously considered, on 
balance, to be acceptable in order to allow for the Listed Building at No.133 High 
Street to be renovated. That judgement was formed despite highway objections 
to that proposal. Contrary to the conditions of that permission the applicant 
restored 133 High Street first and has yet to develop the remaining land. This 
proposal cannot therefore be determined on the basis of it being enabling 
development in relation to the Listed Building. 

 
1.3 The applicant now proposes nine dwellings rather than the three which were 

previously permitted. Nine dwellings inevitably create greater impacts upon the 
setting of the Listed Building and the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. In relation to the Listed Building this would be left with a very 
limited amount of garden space and its curtilage would be irreversibly detached. 
The previously approved scheme retained a portion of land and consequently a 
sense of space which continued to relate to the Listed Building.  

 
1.4 The harm created in respect of heritage impacts would be less than substantial 

(but harm nonetheless) in terms of the NPPF tests, and would be significant in 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10



the context of Local Plan Policies LP16 and LP18. The harm would be 
permanent and irreversible.  

 
1.5 This level of harm is to be weighed against the public benefits arising from the 

proposal. Those benefits are considered to be the delivery of new market 
housing (albeit these are not required for enabling purposes and the Council has 
a sufficient supply of housing) and the temporary construction impacts. Those 
benefits are not capable of outweighing the harm caused.  

 
1.6 In highway terms the LPA previously considered that the development of 3 

dwellings at the site was acceptable as an enabling form of development such 
that this outweighed the highways objection. The proposal continues to utilise 
the sub-standard junction of Black Horse Lane and High Street. The proposal 
seeks nine dwellings which would result in even more vehicles using this junction 
than the approved scheme and with consequent implications for highway safety. 

 
1.7 The development would also adversely impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers through overshadowing and overbearing, as well as affording 
inadequate amenity for future residents.   

 
1.8 The demolition of the wall is appropriate in the context of the listed building and 

has no implications for the character of the conservation area or the building. 
Accordingly that scheme achieves full compliance with planning policy and is 
therefore favourably recommended. However the replacement wall would harm 
the setting of the listed building and is therefore recommended for refusal. 

 
1.9 The overall recommendations are therefore to refuse the full application for the 

nine dwellings and the listed building application for the new brick wall 
(F/YR20/0365/F and F/YR20/0372/LB). The application for the demolition of the 
wall is recommended for approval (F/YR20/0371/F). 

 
 
 

2 SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

2.1   The site consists of an area of undeveloped land to the rear of the frontage 
properties at No.133 (Grade II Listed), 129, 127, 125, 123 and 121 High Street, 
Chatteris. To the north are two properties fronting Black Horse Lane and to the 
east is Budgies Lane which separates the more modern development of Gull Way 
from the site. To the south are older properties fronting Dobbs Yard.  
 

2.2   The area surrounding the site is mainly in residential use, with various architectural 
styles including terraced, semi-detached houses, detached houses and 
bungalows. The site is located within the Chatteris Conservation Area and forms 
part of the curtilage of 133 High Street.  

 
3 PROPOSAL 

 
3.1   The proposals are all linked together and cumulatively comprise as follows:  

 
        The demolition of the modern boundary wall located to the rear of 133 High Street 

to facilitate a shared surface access into the site, with the existing boundary wall 
being re-built; 

 

Page 112



        Full planning permission for 9 dwellings in the form of both detached and semi-
detached units. The dwellings are laid out to the southern and eastern side of a 
shared private access road running into the site from Black Horse Lane. The 
scheme includes single and double garages to serve the new dwellings as well as 
a detached double garage to serve the applicant’s property at No.133: and 

 
        The erection of a new wall (to replace that to be demolished as discussed above) is 

also proposed in order to enclose the proposed rear garden of 133 High Street.  
 

3.2   The proposed dwellings are all 2-storey and the mix is as follows: 
 

• 2 x 2-bed  
• 7 x 3-bed 

 
3.3   The following documents have been submitted to support the application: 
 

• Design & Access Statement including Heritage Statement 
• Traffic Report – August 2019 
• Extended Phase 1 Ecological Survey 

 
3.4   Full plans and associated documents for these applications can be found at: 

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess 
 

Page 113

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess


4 SITE PLANNING HISTORY 
 
F/YR17/3066/COND Details reserved by conditions 2, 

3, 4, 5, 9, 10 ,16, 17 and 18 
relating to planning permission 
F/YR14/0240/F (Erection of 3 x 
2-storey 4-bed dwellings with 
garages, 2.0 metre high brick 
wall and associated parking to 
serve existing dwelling (133 High 
Street), involving demolition of 
outbuildings (in conjunction with 
Listed Building Consent 
reference F/YR14/0241/LB) 
 

Approved 22/06/2020 

F/YR16/0587/LB Internal and external works to 
Listed Building involving 
demolition of attached lean-to 
and outbuilding and erection of a 
2.0 metre high brick wall 
 

Granted 13/09/2016 

F/YR14/0241/LB Internal and external works to 
existing Listed Building involving 
demolition of existing attached 
lean-to and outbuilding and 
erection of 2.0 metres high brick 
wall (in conjunction with Full 
Planning reference 
F/YR14/0240/F) 
 

Granted 25/07/2014 
 

F/YR14/0240/F Erection of 3 x 2-storey 4-bed 
dwellings with garages 2.0 metre 
high brick wall and associated 
parking to serve existing dwelling 
(133 High Street) involving 
demolition of outbuildings (in 
conjunction with Listed Building 
Consent reference 
F/YR14/0241/LB 
 

Granted 28/07/2014 

F/YR13/0370/CA Demolition of outbuildings (in 
conjunction with Full Planning 
reference F/YR13/0368/F and 
Listed Building Consent 
reference F/YR13/0369/LB) 
 

Withdrawn 09/09/2013 

F/YR13/0369/LB Internal and external works to 
existing Listed Building involving 
demolition of existing attached 
lean-to (in conjunction with Full 
Planning reference 
F/YR13/0368/F and Listed 
Building Consent 
F/YR13/0369/LB) 
 

Withdrawn 09/09/2013 

Page 114



F/YR13/0368/F Erection of 7 x 3-bed and 1 x 4-
bed 2-storey dwellings with 
associated parking and erection 
of garage to serve existing 
dwelling (133 High Street), 
involving demolition of 
outbuildings (in conjunction with 
Listed Building Consent 
reference F/YR13/0369/LB and 
Conservation Area Consent 
reference F/YR13/0370/CA) 

Withdrawn 09/09/2013 

 
 

5 CONSULTATIONS 
 
5.1    Chatteris Town Council: Support but request footpath is widened. 

 
5.2    CCC Highways: No highway objections to the applications relating to the 

replacement walls. Recommend refusal of the application for 9 dwellings. The 
previous planning permission for 3 dwellings was approved against highway 
recommendation for refusal. This application is to erect 9 dwellings. The impact of 
6 additional dwellings therefore needs to be considered along with associated 
increase in vehicle movements.  

 
Consented Trips 
4.668 x 4 = 18 daily trips or 1.8 trips in peak hour 

 
Proposed Trips 
4.668 x 9 = 42 daily trips or 4.2 trips in peak hour 

 
We objected to the original scheme due to visibility concerns at the Black Horse 
Lane junction with the High Street.   
 

5.3    FDC Conservation Officer: Recommend refusal for the redevelopment proposal 
of 9 dwellings due to the adverse impact on the setting of the listed building and 
Chatteris Conservation Area. No objections to the demolition of the existing wall.  

           
        Further comments provided to recommend, on review, the refusal of the application 

to erect the new wall due to its impact on the setting of the listed building through 
the loss of its curtilage.   
 

5.4    FDC Environmental Services: No objections. A Desk Study and Remediation 
Strategy for the site has been received and approved under F/YR17/3066/COND – 
a validation report must be submitted and approved by the LPA following 
implementation of a remediation strategy and this can be secured through planning 
condition. Given the scale of the proposed development and its close proximity to 
existing nearby residential properties, a construction management plan which 
outlines procedures to ensure that any potential disturbance caused to existing 
nearby residencies will be to a minimum.  
 

5.5    Environment Agency: No Agency related issues in respect of this application and 
therefore we have no comment to make. 

 
5.6 CCC Historic Environment Team: The site has previously been subject to an 

archaeological evaluation carried out against a condition of a previous planning 

Page 115



permission, for which has been received and approved by us. No objections or 
requirements for this latest scheme as proposed.   

 
5.7 Cambs Fire and Rescue: No objection. Adequate provision should be made for 

fire hydrants which can be secured through planning condition.  
 
5.6    Local Residents/Interested Parties:  

Objectors 
10 letters of objection received raising the following concerns material to the 
application: 
 

• The impact the development will have on Black Horse Lane. The road 
surface and condition of the pavements are already in a terrible state. 

• The application states that there have been no reported accidents at the 
road junction. In the 4 years living here there have been several near 
misses and confrontations due to traffic parking on the yellow lines at the 
junction restricting view. 

• Black Horse Lane is a narrow road and is used as a general parking area 
which is made worse when in the evening when the Boxing Club is in use. 
The proposal development will make this situation worse.  

• Parking arrangements 
• Traffic / Highways. Black House Lane is dangerous; the proposal will mean 

more accidents bound to happen. There will be a further 18 or more 
vehicles accessing Black Horse Lane onto High Street. 

• Access 
• Anti-Social Behaviour 
• Density/Overdevelopment – the field is too small for 9 dwellings. 
• Devaluing property 
• Drainage 
• Design/Appearance 
• Environmental Concerns 
• Light pollution 
• Local services/schools – unable to cope 
• Loss of view/Outlook 
• Out of character/not in keeping with area 
• Overlooking – Plots 1 – 4 would overlook properties at Gull Way 
• Overshadowing / Loss of light  
• Proximity to property 
• Smell 
• Visual Impact 
• Waste/Litter 
• Would set a precedent 
• Wildlife Concerns  
• Responsibility of boundary walls once the build is complete. 
• No provision for any street lighting. 
• Are the solar panels for Plots 1-4 on the correct side?  
• The bats haven’t returned to the site since the renovations on No.133 were 

completed just over a year ago.  
• The proposal will put the sewage system under higher pressure – there is 

already drains smelling and some points of flooding as the drains are 
blocked on the roads. 

• No 122 High Street has had to deal with Japanese knot weed – this needs 
addressing and sorting out by the land owner.  

Page 116



• Noise and disruption during building construction as well as from future 
residents. 

 
Supporters 
18 proforma type letters of support received. The comments can be summarised 
as follows:  
 

• 9 dwellings on the site will be more suitable than the 3 dwellings previously 
approved. 

• Chatteris is in need for smaller affordable units for first time buyers and small 
families. 

• Never had any issues with the junction of Black Horse Lane and High Street 
• There used to be a bus depot and farmyard that used the junction on a 

regular basis – if it was sufficient for them then, it will certainly be able to 
accommodate the level of development proposed.  

 
6 STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan 
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan 
(2014). 
 

6.2 Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 require Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay 
special attention to preserving a listed building or its setting and to the desirability 
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area. 

 
6.3 Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

requires Local Planning Authorities in considering whether to grant listed building 
consent for any works to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses. 

 
7 POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
7.1    National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

Para 8:   The 3 dimensions of sustainability 
Para 57:  Viability 
Para 108-110: Safe and suitable access should be achieved for all users 
Para 117:  Promote effective use of land. 
Para 127:  Well-designed development. 
Para 170:  Contribution to and enhancement of the natural and local   
   environment 
Para 189:  Need to describe the significant of affected heritage assets 
Para 192:  Desirability of new development making a positive contribution to 

local character and distinctiveness 
Para 193: Weight should be given to the significance of the heritage asset, the 

more important the asset the greater the weight 
 
Para 196: Where a development proposal causes less than substantial harm 

to a heritage asset this harm should be weighed against the public 
benefits, including securing its optimum viable use 

Page 117



Para 202: Local planning authorities should assess whether the benefits of a 
proposal for enabling development, which would otherwise conflict 
with planning policies but which would secure the future 
conservation of a heritage asset, outweigh the disbenefits of 
departing from those policies. 

 
 

7.2    National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.3    National Design Guide 2019 
C1 - Relationship with local and wider context 
C2 - Value heritage, local history and culture 
I1 - Respond to existing local character and identity 
I2 - Well-designed, high quality and attractive  
B1 - Compact form of development 
B2 - Appropriate building types and forms 
M3 - well-considered parking, servicing and utilities infrastructure  
H1 - Healthy, comfortable and safe internal and external environment 
H3 - Attention to detail; storage, waste, servicing and utilities 
L3 - A sense of ownership 
 

7.4   Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4 – Housing 
LP5 – Meeting Housing Need 
LP10 – Chatteris 
LP13 – Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District 
LP14 – Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in 
Fenland 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP17 – Community Safety 
LP18 – The Historic Environment 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 
 

7.5   Supplementary Planning Documents/Guidance: 
- Delivering & Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD (2014) 
- FDC Developer Contributions SPD (2015) 
- Resource Use & Renewable Energy SPD (2014) 
- Cambridgeshire Flood & Water SPD (2016) 
- RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide  SPD (2012) 

 
8 KEY ISSUES 

 
• Principle of Development 
• Impact on Listed Building and Character of Conservation Area 
• Access and Highway Safety 
• Impact on Residential Amenity 
• Landscaping and Biodiversity 
• Proposed Boundary Details for 133 High Street 
• Other considerations 

 

Page 118



 
9 BACKGROUND 
 
9.1   The site has planning permission for three large dwelling units (LPA reference: 

F/YR14/0240/F). The justification for the LPA approving these dwellings was to 
enable the Listed Building at No.133 to be restored and this was weighed against 
the negative impacts of the scheme which included an objection from the Local 
Highway Authority. Despite planning permission F/YR14/0240/F including a 
condition requiring the phasing of the development to take place in an order such 
that the new dwellings would be built before the Listed Building was restored (i.e. 
in accordance with the request for the new dwellings to fund the Listed Building 
works) the works to the Listed Building have taken place and no dwellings have 
been completed. The agent asserts that work has commenced on site to 
implement permission F/YR14/0240/F and it is accepted that this is the case.  

 
9.2 Paragraph 202 of the NPPF considers such situations where enabling works are 

required. It states:  
 
 Local planning authorities should assess whether the benefits of a proposal for 

enabling development, which would otherwise conflict with planning policies but 
which would secure the future conservation of a heritage asset, outweigh the 
disbenefits of departing from those policies. 

 
9.3 Owing to the works to 133 High Street having been undertaken there is now no 

justification for the development of the application site as there is no enabling 
development required to improve the Listed Building. The previous justification for 
the scheme has therefore fallen away in full and so the application is to be 
assessed such that no weight can be given to the previous benefit.  

 
10 ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development 

 
10.1    Policy LP3 of the FLP sets out a focus for growth around the District’s four 

Market Towns.  The site is located within the settlement of Chatteris and 
therefore the provision of residential development in this location accords broadly 
with Policy LP3. All other relevant Local Plan Policies (in this case particularly 
Policies LP15, LP16 and LP18) require consideration as does relevant statute as 
referenced above.  

 
 Impact on Listed Building and Character of Conservation Area 

 
   10.2 The Conservation Officer’s comments include the following description of the 

Conservation Area followed by the application site:  
 

Chatteris Conservation Area derives its character from its layout, originating from 
ancient routes and junctions, developing gradually over centuries with a rich 
mixture of mainly domestic buildings in local materials, with a linear street layout, 
with narrow alleys that run off these arteries, and a survival along the high street 
of readable mediaeval burgage plots, in which development has been largely 
resisted.  Once a small market town, surrounded by open, agricultural 
countryside, it has increased in size, and unsympathetic development throughout 
the later 20th century and beginning of the 21st century has threatened this 
fragile authenticity.  
 

Page 119



Historic Maps including the Chatteris Enclosure Map of 1830 and from 1886 
show that the plot of land has remained undeveloped (and therefore in use for 
grazing, subsistence, or orchards, or possibly as curtilage of the listed building 
(formerly a public house) for 190 years and therefore very probably for several 
hundred years before detailed maps were made of the area. 

 
10.3    It is evident from that analysis that the application site plays an important role in 

relation to both the setting of the Listed Building and the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. It is considered that the current 
application, in principle, would result in the almost complete loss of the historic 
curtilage to the listed building and is therefore of significant detriment to its 
setting, and consequently would also adversely affect the Conservation Area. It is 
accepted that the site was granted planning permission previously, but for a lower 
number of dwellings, and the reasons for accepting that development (see the 
comments in relation to paragraph 202 of the NPPF above) no longer exist in 
light of the works to the Listed Building being completed.  

 
10.4 There is therefore no reason to allow further development at the site in the 

interests of enabling heritage assets to be restored. The proposal is therefore to 
be considered against Policies LP16 and LP18 without any heritage benefits 
being able to be given to the proposed housing to off-set any harm. The main 
justification for the proposal, which is advanced by the agent, relates to the 
previous permission not being viable due to the size of those properties against 
the perceived housing needs.  

 
10.5    To consider the actual form of the proposal, the application proposes a 

reasonably dense development (equivalent to approximately 31 dwellings per 
hectare) with a typical layout around a cul-de-sac and typical house types, 
although perhaps with more design features than is usual. It is considered, in its 
own right, a reasonable housing scheme which would be appropriate in a number 
of locations across the District. However, in the context of its location within the 
Conservation Area and within the setting of the Listed Building, the overall scale 
of the proposal with maximum ridge heights of 8.8m (relative to the highest ridge 
of the Listed Building which is estimated as being between 6.5 to 7m), its layout 
and the design of the dwellings is not considered to reflect the predominant 
historic character and form of development in the vicinity.  

 
10.5 Policies LP16 and LP18 require that new development protects and enhances 

heritage assets and their setting and that the assessment of impact be carried out 
in accordance with the NPPF.  

 
10.6  In the context of the NPPF the proposal is considered to generate “less than 

substantial harm” to the setting of the Listed Building and the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. Less than substantial harm is still a level 
of impact which can be of detriment to a heritage asset and which needs to be 
weighed against public benefit as set out in the NPPF. This is consistent with the 
requirement of Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which requires LPAs when considering whether to 
grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its 
setting and within a conservation area to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or 
historic interest which it possesses and the preservation or enhancement of the 
area. 

 

Page 120



10.7  The harm to the heritage assets arising from the proposal has to be weighed 
against the public benefits of the scheme and this exercise is undertaken in the 
conclusion section of the report, below.  

 
10.9  In pure heritage terms though, the proposal is considered, for the reasons 

identified above, to significantly conflict with Local Plan Policies LP16 and LP18, 
and to create less than substantial (but still significant) harm for the purposes of 
applying Paragraph 196 of the NPPF.  

 
Access and Highway Safety 

 
10.10 CCC Highways objected to the previous consented scheme for 3 dwellings on the 

basis of inadequate visibility splays at the junction of Black Horse Lane and High 
Street. The visibility is substandard to the south with the achievable splay being 
2.4m x 10.7m against a requirement of 2.4m x 43m. The visibility is constrained 
by the position of the Listed Building (133 High Street). Nonetheless the LPA 
approved the application for three dwellings having regard to the benefits of 
restoring the Listed Building.   

 
10.11 The junction of Black Horse Lane is constrained geometrically in terms of junction 

radii and footway provision, however the main deficiency relates to that of vehicle 
to vehicle inter-visibility.  

 
10.12 This scheme significantly increases the number of proposed dwellings from 3 to 

9. The application includes a Traffic Report (dated August 2019) which includes 
the results of a speed survey. The results show that vehicles are travelling at 
around 26 mph along the 30 mph road. This does not justify a reduction in the 
visibility splays and indeed the Traffic Report does not suggest such a situation.   

 
10.13 CCC Highways recommend the application for refusal on the same basis as 

before. The previous scheme as discussed above was an enabling development, 
however those benefits no longer apply and in any event the proposal would 
increase the usage of a junction which is unsafe due to the sub-standard visibility 
splays.  

 
10.14 Accordingly the proposal is contrary to Policy LP15 (C) of the Fenland Local Plan 

as it would not provide a safe access. 
 
10.15 The Town Council’s comments relate to the path width being increased. This 

could only be achieved by widening the path along High Street or Black Horse 
Lane in to the road. This is not proposed by the Applicant.  
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 

10.16 Policy LP16(e) considers the impact upon neighbouring amenity. The proposal 
would create significant adverse impacts in respect of 6a Black Horse Lane as a 
result of the following.  

 
10.17 Firstly the siting of Plot 1 introduces a 8.75m high gable wall within 7.9m of the 

rear of the bungalow at 6a Horse Lane. The bungalow has a very limited garden 
to its southern boundary and the proposed dwelling would introduce a bulk and 
scale which would create substantial overbearing and overshadowing impacts. 
The agent refers to the previously approved scheme and notes that the dwelling 
in that case was closer to the site boundary but that scheme involved a single-

Page 121



storey element to the relevant dwelling which would not have created such 
overbearing and overshadowing impacts.  

 
10.18 Secondly Plot 1 has car parking located to the north which is adjacent to the 

boundary with the bungalow. This would create noise and disturbance impacts 
which add to the unacceptable impacts identified above.  

 
10.19 Policy LP16 (h) also requires that sufficient private amenity space is provided. 

Plot 1’s amenity space is compromised by the location of existing trees which 
would create a rear amenity space which would inevitably be dark due to the 
overbearing nature of the trees. The agent confirms that the trees are not owned 
by the applicant and considers that work could be undertaken to them to improve 
this relationship. Those works are not though proposed in this application and 
given that the trees are within the Conservation Area an assessment would need 
to be made as to whether any works to the trees were acceptable or not. Plot 1’s 
amenity space is therefore not considered to be sufficient.  

 
10.20 Policy LP16 (h) refers to a guide as to the extent of private amenity space: it 

states as a guide that a minimum of the third of the plot curtilage should be set 
aside as private amenity space. The proposal involves the use of land associated 
with 133 High Street. The previous proposal retained a large area of the 
application site as garden for this property and did not result in the garden area 
being constrained in the manner now proposed. Whilst the amenity space is 
around a third of the plot and therefore policy compliant it is considered to be 
disproportionate to the extent of the building. The proposed siting of a new 
garage to serve 133 High Street (which was not proposed on the previous 
application) also encloses the garden space further. However on balance it is not 
considered that, from an amenity perspective, the garden area to the existing 
dwelling would be so unacceptable as to refuse planning permission on this 
basis. 

  
10.21 In terms of other neighbouring relationships with the proposed development to 

existing residents, the proposal is not considered to give rise to issues of amenity 
to the existing dwellings at Gull Way, Dobbs Yard and High Street which border 
the site. There is approximately 27m between the rear elevations of Plots 1 – 4 to 
the rear elevations of those properties in Gull Way. Similarly there is 
approximately 21m distance between Plots 5 -9 to the existing dwellings in Dobbs 
Yard.  In terms of the High Street properties there is a distance of approximately 
15.4m from the side elevation of Plot 9 to the rear elevation of No.125 High 
Street.  These distances together with the orientation of the proposed dwellings 
are considered sufficient in order that no adverse impacts to residential amenity 
will arise.  

 
10.22 The layout of the dwellings and their design are not considered to give rise to 

unacceptable overlooking, overbearing impact or overshadowing of each other. 
However it is noted that the parking for Plot 9 is far from ideal as it is 
disconnected by virtue of the position of Plot 8. Similarly there will be vehicular 
conflicts between parking for Plots 8 and 9 and the garage to serve No.133 High 
Street due to their positions in relation to each other.  

 
10.23 It should also be noted that all of the garages proposed do not conform to the 

minimum sizes set out in Appendix A of the Fenland Local Plan, but do though 
provide sufficient space to be able to accommodate a vehicle.  

 
Landscaping and Biodiversity 

Page 122



 
10.24 An Extended Phase 1 Ecological Survey has been submitted during the course of 

the application.  The report concludes that the site has low ecological value, 
however would benefit from the opportunity for enhancement offered by 
development. The report recommends bird nest and bat boxes positioned on 
dwellings, external lighting kept to the minimum and hedgehog friendly fencing. 
These measures could be secured through planning conditions and as such the 
proposal complies with Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan.  

 
10.25 A Landscape Plan for the site indicates areas of soft landscaping including tree 

planting within the rear garden areas of all of the new dwellings and shrub 
planting to the front gardens and along the sides of dwellings. The 
implementation of the landscaping could be secured through planning condition. 

 
10.26 With regards to the hard landscaping the materials proposed to the surfaces of 

the shared surface and private drives and boundary treatments of timber palisade 
fencing and estate rail fencing do create an urban characteristic for the 
development.  It is considered that alternative material choices could be sought to 
retain a rural rather than an urban characteristic for the site.  

 
Proposed Boundary Details for 133 High Street 

 
10.27 Application F/YR20/0371/F involves the demolition of a modern wall which 

currently encloses part of the existing garden for the Listed Building. The wall is 
of no historic importance and its removal is considered to be acceptable. 

 
10.28 Application F/YR20/0372/LB also seeks to demolish the modern wall but then 

also seeks consent to build a new wall to enclose the garden of the Listed 
Building. The demolition of the modern wall is acceptable however the proposed 
new wall would harm the setting of the Listed Building by enclosing its rear 
garden and enforce the loss of curtilage which is referenced above. This harm 
would again be less than substantial in the context of the NPPF but again 
significant. The works would harm the setting of the Listed Building contrary to 
Local Plan Policies LP16 (a) and LP18.  

 
10.29 A timber close boarded fence has been erected at the rear of 133 High Street 

without consent. The agent suggests this will be temporary but nonetheless the 
works are unauthorised.  

 
Other Considerations 

 
10.30 The site is within Flood Zone 1 an area at lowest risk of flooding. Given the scale 

of the development and the size of the site a site specific Flood Risk Assessment 
is not required. The proposal accords with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan. 

 
10.31 Local residents have raised concerns about local infrastructure such as schools. 

The proposal is though below the threshold for requiring any contributions 
towards such facilities. 

 
10.32 Matters have also been raised with regard to devaluing property; however these 

matters are not material considerations and as such cannot be taken into 
account.  

 
11 CONCLUSIONS 

 

Page 123



11.1 The erection of three dwellings on this land was previously considered to be 
acceptable in order to allow for the Listed Building at 133 High Street to be 
renovated. That judgement was formed despite highway objections to that 
proposal. Contrary to the conditions of that permission the applicant restored 133 
High Street first and has yet to develop the remaining land, although the 
permission remains extant. This proposal cannot therefore be determined on the 
basis of it being enabling development in connection to the Listed Building.  
 

11.2 The applicant now proposes nine dwellings rather than the three which were 
previously permitted. The nine dwellings inevitably create significant and greater 
impacts upon the setting of the Listed Building and the character and appearance 
of the Conservation Area. In relation to the Listed Building this would be left with a 
very limited amount of garden space and its curtilage would be irreversibly 
detached from the Listed Building. The previously approved scheme retained a 
sense of space and also land which continued to relate to the Listed Building.  
 

11.3 Whilst the harm created in respect of heritage impacts would be less than 
substantial in terms of the NPPF tests it would be significant in the context of Local 
Plan Policies LP16 and LP18. The harm would be permanent and irreversible.  
 

11.4 The less than substantial harm is to be weighed against the public benefits arising 
from the proposal. Those benefits are considered to be the delivery of new market 
housing (albeit these are not required for enabling purposes and the Council has a 
sufficient supply of housing) and the temporary construction impacts. Those 
benefits are not considered capable of outweighing the harm caused.  
 

11.5 In highway terms the LPA previously considered that the development of three 
dwellings at the site was acceptable as an enabling form of development such that 
this outweighed the highways objection. The development would continue to rely 
on sub-standard visibility at the junction of Black Horse Lane and High Street. The 
proposal now seeks nine dwellings, which would result in more movements at this 
sub-standard junction, and without the enabling argument, as set out above.  
 

11.6 The demolition of the wall is appropriate in the context of the listed building and has 
no implications for the character of the conservation area or the building. 
Accordingly that scheme achieves full compliance with planning policy and is 
therefore favourably recommended.  

 
11.7 However the proposed new wall would restrict the curtilage of the listed building 

and not respect its historic setting and is therefore recommended for refusal.  
 
12 RECOMMENDATION 

 
F/YR20/0365/F – Refuse 
 
F/YR20/0371/F – Approve 
 
F/YR20/0372/LB - Refuse 
 

Reasons for refusal for F/YR20/0365/F 
 
1 The proposed development by virtue of external appearance, layout and 

scale would represent a cumulative detrimental impact to the setting of the 
Listed Building at No.133 High Street and to the character and appearance 
of the Chatteris Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore considered to 

Page 124



be contrary to chapter 16 of NPPF (2019) in particular paragraph 196, as 
this “less than substantial harm” to the heritage assets would not be 
outweighed by any public benefit and Policies LP16(a) and LP18 of the 
Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

2 Policies LP16 (a) and LP18 of the Local Plan require all new development to 
protect and enhance any affected heritage asset and their setting. The 
application, if permitted, would result in the elimination of any curtilage to the 
Listed Building and the unacceptable loss of its historic setting contrary to 
Policies LP16 (a) and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 and also 
conflicting with Paragraph 196 of the NPPF, as this “less than substantial 
harm” to the heritage assets would not be outweighed by any public benefit.   
 

3 Policy LP15 Part C of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 requires that new 
development should, amongst other things, provide safe access for all. The 
NPPF states (at paragraphs 108 and 110) that developments should ensure 
that safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users and 
development should create places that are safe, secure and attractive which 
minimise the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles. 
The visibility at the junction of Black Horse Lane with High Street is 
considered to be inadequate to serve the development proposed such that 
this would result in unsafe vehicular movements at that junction. The 
proposal would conflict with Policy LP15 Part C of the Fenland Local Plan 
2014, and paragraphs 108 and 110 of NPPF. 
 

4 Policy LP16 (e) of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 requires all new 
development to not adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring users. 
The proposal would create an unacceptable impact on the amenity of 6a 
Black Horse Lane by virtue of overbearing and overshadowing to the 
detriment of residential amenity that would result from the location and scale 
of the proposed Plot 1.  Accordingly the proposal is contrary to Policy LP16 
(e) of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

5 Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 (h) requires all new 
development to provide sufficient private amenity space suitable to the type 
and amount of development proposed. The proposed dwelling at Plot 1 
would have an unacceptable level of usable private amenity space by virtue 
of the impacts from overshadowing created by existing trees. Accordingly 
the proposal is contrary to Policy LP16 (h) of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
 

 
 
 
Conditions for F/YR20/0371/F 
 
1 The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years 

from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.   
 

2 Approved Plans 
 
Reason for refusal for F/YR20/0372/LB 
 

Page 125



1 The works would result in the elimination of any curtilage to the Listed 
Building and the unacceptable loss of its historic setting contrary to Policies 
LP16 (a) and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 and the aims and 
objectives of the NPPF.   
 

 
 

 

Page 126



HARBOUR CTCOX'S
LANE

JOHNSON
WAY

RAVENSCROFT

Moxons

Passage

PARKERS

CLOSE

BLACK

HORSE LANE
El
Sub Sta

Dobbs Yard

5.2m
5.9m

6

6

2

3

71 1

1

2

7

2

4 1

8

1

2

2

7

9

7

2

4

1

6

1

1

3 2

2

1

1

2

2

1

2

9
8

3
8

6

2a

32

2b

16

20

12

49
109

22c
22b

61

26

10

12

99

24

15

7a

28

7b

64

65

54

6a
10

30

6a

60

Court

111

114
112

13a

130

136

129

132

13
b

107

125

128

101

121
122

144

103

133

126

105

LB

20
 to

 2
4

103a

101a

107a

1 to
3 Kent

Club

Paulvica

House

Porte
rs

Yard

Milki
ng

Hill H
ouse

Harbour Court

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Created on: 30/04/2020

1:1,250Scale = 

F/YR20/0365/F

±
Page 127



DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

SCALE DATE

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT

DRAWN 

CLIENT

L Bevens Associates Ltd
Architects
10 Cricketers Way
Chatteris
Cambridgeshire
PE16 6UR
Tel: 01354 693969
Fax: 01354 692426
Email: enquiries@lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk
Web: www.lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk

DRAWING PRELIMINARY

PLANNING

CONSTRUCTION

FILE COPY
STATUS

CHECKED

Chatteris, Cambridgeshire
Land south east of 133 High Street, 

Mr S Howard

LBMar. 20201:200 @ A2

Proposed Site Plan Proposals

CH20/LBA/536/FP-1-101

Shared Surface to be block paving
Charcon 'Europa' or equal and
approved. Colour to be Burnt Oker.

New 2m high brick wall to
detail.

Private drives with permeable block
paving Charcon 'Infilta' or equal and
approved. Colour to be Brindle.

1.8m high timber palisade fencing to
detail

Existing trees to be removed

Existing trees to be retained

Existing buildings to be removed
Indicative tree planting

DESCRIPTION KEY

Scale: 1:200

0m 2 4 6 8 10m 20m

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE
CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2020 ©.

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

Estate rail fence to detail

DP

LP20.69

ST
TP

WM

WM

C/B

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

1800 1500

5.5m SHARED SURFACE ROAD WITH 0.5m

SERVICE ZONES

TARMAC FOOTPATH
TO CONTINUE FROM
BLACK HORSE LANE

60
00

6000

1.5m FOOTPATH TO
CONTINUE FROM
BLACK HORSE LANE

50
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9

4

3

2

1

5

6

7

7

8

9

TARMAC BELLMOUTH
TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL
SPECIIFCATION

PRIVATE GARDEN RETAINED FOR
133 HIGH STREET

2.4m x 2
5m Visib

ility
 sp

lay

2.4m x 23m Visibility splay

10m

133

Existing brick
wall to boundary

Existing trees retained
for screening

Existing close
boarded timber
fence retained

Existing house

Existing Bungalow

7.9m

Moxon's P
assa

ge

Existing gate removed and
replaced with matching
fencing to boundary.

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

4

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

1

mono-pitch roof over

Existing brick
wall to boundary

Existing tarmac
footpath

Existing out-building
demolished.

133

133

8

Private gardens

Private gardens

Private gardens

New 2m high
brick boundary
wall to detail.

N
or

th

Existing trees retained
for screening

5.5m SHARED SURFACE ROAD WITH 0.5m

Existing out-building
demolished.

New 2m high
brick boundary
wall to detail.

Moxon's P
assa

ge

P
age 128



Plot 1 Plot 5 Plot 6 Plot 7 Plot 8 Plot 9

Sm
artblocks.co.uk ©

Sm
ar

tb
lo

ck
s.

co
.u

k 
©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sm
ar

tb
lo

ck
s.

co
.u

k 
©

Sm
ar

tb
lo

ck
s.

co
.u

k 
©

Sm
ar

tb
lo

ck
s.

co
.u

k 
©

Sm
artblocks.co.uk ©

Plot 1 Plot 2 Plot 3 Plot 4
Sm

ar
tb

lo
ck

s.
co

.u
k 

©

Sm
ar

tb
lo

ck
s.

co
.u

k 
©

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

SCALE DATE

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT

DRAWN 

CLIENT

L Bevens Associates Architects Ltd
The Doghouse
10 Cricketers Way
Chatteris
Cambridgeshire
PE16 6UR
Tel: 01354 693969
Mob: 07739 562818
Email: enquiries@lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk
Web: www.lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk

DRAWING PRELIMINARY

PLANNING

CONSTRUCTION

FILE COPY
STATUS

CHECKED

Chatteris, Cambridgeshire.
Land south east of 133 High Street,

Mr S Howard

LBMarch 20201:100 @ A1

Proposed Street Elevations

CH20/LBA/536/FP-1-107

Scale: 1:100

0m 1 2 3 4 5m 10m

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE
CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2020©.

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
F/YR20/0416/O 
 
Applicant:  Messrs J Humphrey & 
Spooner 
 

Agent: Swann Edwards Architecture 
Limited 

Land south east of The Poplars, Bevis Lane, Wisbech St Mary, Cambridgeshire 
 
Erect up to 2x dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of 
access) 
 
Reason for Committee: Number of letters of support received contrary to Officer 
recommendation 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

1.1. The application site is located outside the built form of the settlement of 
Wisbech St Mary. It comprises part of an agricultural field, and an area of land 
ancillary to the adjacent residential dwelling, used for the growing of fruit and 
vegetables.  

1.2. The proposal is made in outline for the construction of up to two dwellings on 
the land, one served from the existing vehicular access to the neighbouring 
dwelling and the second utilising the existing vehicular access point into the 
site. 

1.3. Permission has previously been refused and the subsequent appeal 
dismissed for the erection of a dwelling on part of the land. 

1.4. There is a level of local support for the proposal with a significant factor in that 
support being the indication that one of the dwellings is intended as a 
retirement home for one of the applicants, however the personal 
circumstances of the applicant are not material to the consideration of the 
application. 

1.5. The development would not be served by pedestrian links to the main core of 
the settlement and the services that are available there and is therefore 
considered to be unsustainable, reliant on the private car and a danger to 
pedestrian safety. 

1.6. There is insufficient evidence accompanying the application to demonstrate 
that the proposal will not result in harm to biodiversity through the loss of 
existing natural features providing suitable habitat for protected species.  

1.7. The scheme would be contrary to the locational policies of the Local Plan and 
would result in a detrimental impact on the appearance of the surrounding 
area through the loss of the verdant character identified by the Inspector. 

1.8. The application is consequently recommended for refusal. 
 
 

2. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

2.1. The application site is located on the outskirts of the settlement of Wisbech St 
Mary to the south of the dwelling known as The Poplars, and consists of two main 
parts. The first part is amenity land associated with the adjacent dwelling to the 
north west of the site mainly grassed with some fruit trees and vegetable garden 

Page 131

Agenda Item 11



features, and the second part is more open agricultural land, separated from the 
first part by a line of mature trees running east-west across the middle of the site.  
 

2.2. The southern part of the site boundary along its frontage with Bevis Lane has 
been changed substantially since the previous planning application, with the trees 
that previously formed this boundary cut down to stumps noted as being removed 
on the proposed plans. Those trees were noted in the appeal decision on the site 
as providing “a pleasant tree-lined approach to the village, and a verdant 
landscape character within generally open arable fields.” The northern part of the 
site boundary is formed from mature trees screening the amenity land from public 
views. 
 

2.3. The land is designated as flood zone 1, the zone of lowest flood risk. 
 

3. PROPOSAL 
 

3.1. The proposal is made in outline, and is for the construction of two dwellings on 
the land, with only matters of access for approval at this stage. 
 

3.2. Indicative site layout plans are provided with the application, showing removal of 
the hedgerow separating the two parts of the site, with one of the dwelling gaining 
access via the existing driveway leading to The Poplars, with a section of the 
hedgerow/trees forming the boundary of that property also being removed to 
facilitate access. The second dwelling would be served by a new private access 
direct from Bevis Lane, with the plan detailing the removal of the tree stumps 
across the front of the site. 

 
3.3. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docum
ents&keyVal=Q953CTHE0D800  

 
4. SITE PLANNING HISTORY 

 
19/0170/PREAPP Erect 1 dwelling Not favourable 

27/1/20 
18/0075/PREAPP Erection of 5 dwellings Not favourable 

11/6/18 
18/0032/PREAPP Erection of 4-bed detached dwelling Not favourable 

13/3/18 
F/YR17/1189/O Erection of a dwelling (outline 

application with all matters reserved) 
Refused 30/1/18 
Appeal dismissed 

 
5. CONSULTATIONS 

 
Parish Council:  

5.1. Recommend approval 
 

5.2. Ward Member Cllr Bligh 
Support. 
• Could be seen as outside the main settlement, however there are houses all 

along Bevis Lane and consider these are within the village. 
• Can’t see any negative impact from granting permission 
• Settlement is a growth village and must allow infill on the edges to stop the 

centre becoming too full. 
 

Page 132

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q953CTHE0D800
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q953CTHE0D800


FDC Environmental Health 
5.3. No objections 
 

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority:  
5.4. New highway crossover should be set out as per standard CCC specification, 

and the new private access should be sealed and drained away from the 
highway.  
Visibility splays of 2.4m by 215m should be detailed at both accesses in both 
directions. 
Vegetation along the site frontage should be shown as cut back to the highway 
boundary. 
The lack of footway provision is likely to result in occupants being dependent on 
private vehicles. Walking along a 60mph road is unsuitable for pedestrians. 
 
North Level IDB 

5.5. No comment 
  

5.6. Local Residents/Interested Parties: 
9 letters have been received from residents in the area, consisting of 3 stating 
no objection, 6 stating support and none objecting to the proposal 
 
The letters of support cite the following reasons: 
• Development along the lane would make it more part of the village 
• Site is close to the village and its amenities 
• There has always been access to the sites in question 
• There are houses to both sides of the proposed development 
• Applicants have always supported the village and its amenities 
• Further development may increase investment in local facilities 
• Additional residents along the lane may discourage fly tipping 
• Good for mutual security by having more residents on the lane 
• One of the applicants has lived in the village for his whole life, and is a third 

generation resident 
• The land is in flood zone 1 

 
Members should note that the personal circumstances of the applicant are not 
material to the consideration of the application.  
 
It is noted that 1 of the letters confirming no objection stated that this was on the 
basis that the proposed dwellings are not altered from the outline plan. 

 
6. STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development 
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local 
Plan (2014). 

 
7. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Para 2: NPPF is a material consideration 
Para 8: 3 strands of sustainability 
Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Page 133



Para 78: Housing should be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality 
of rural communities. 
Para 127: Well-designed development 
Para 130: Permission should be refused for development of poor design that 
fails to take opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area. 
Para 175: Harm to habitats and biodiversity. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
Determining a Planning Application 
 
Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4 – Housing 
LP12 – Rural Areas Development Policy 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
LP19 – The Natural Environment 
 

8. KEY ISSUES 
• Principle of Development  
• Visual Impact & Character 
• Appeal Decision 
• Highway Safety 
• Ecological Impacts 
• Other Matters 

 
9. BACKGROUND 

 
9.1. Outline planning permission was sought on part of the current site in 2017 for the 

development of the land by construction of a single dwelling. That application was 
refused on two grounds, namely that the development was out of keeping with its 
rural location and the loss of the frontage planting would result in unacceptable 
changes to the character of the area, and that the proposed dwelling would have 
to rely on private modes of transport to access goods and services due to the 
lack of any footpath links to the main settlement resulting in an unsustainable 
form of development. 
 

9.2. Following the refusal of planning permission, the decision was appealed with the 
Planning Inspectorate. The decision of the Planning Inspector in January of 2019 
was that the appeal be dismissed, finding harm to the character and appearance 
of the area by the felling of the trees along the site frontage, that the site failed to 
accord with policy LP12 as it did not lie adjacent to the developed footprint of the 
village, and that the proposal would conflict with sustainable transport aims due to 
the lack of a footway serving the site along Bevis Lane. 
 

9.3. Three pre-application enquiries have been made following the original refusal. 
Two of these were resolved prior to the receipt of the planning appeal decision, 
with the third sought after the receipt of that decision. The first and last enquiries 
sought the development of a single dwelling on the land, whilst the second 
related to the development of five dwellings. All three of the enquiries were 
indicated as not being favourable for development of the land for similar reasons 
as the refusal of the previous planning application. 

Page 134



 
10. ASSESSMENT 

 
Appeal Decision 

10.1. As noted in paragraph 9.2, the appeal decision relating to the refusal of 
permission for a single dwelling on the southern part of the site was dismissed, 
on three grounds, namely the harm to the character of the area from the cutting 
down of the frontage trees, the detachment of the site from the built up part of the 
settlement as defined in policy LP12, and the unsustainable nature of the site due 
to the lack of a footpath connecting it to the village.  
 

10.2. The appeal decision is a material consideration in relation to the current 
application, however it should be noted that the proposal differs in several key 
areas from that previous appeal. These are: 
 
1. The current application site now incorporates the land to the north west, that 

was previously a key consideration in the Planning Inspector’s decision to 
dismiss the appeal due to it separating the site from the developed footprint 
of the village. 

2. The trees that were noted by the Planning Inspector as making a 
contribution to the character and appearance of the area have subsequently 
been cut down to leave only stumps remaining. They are noted on the plans 
as being removed and there is no preservation order that would require their 
retention or replacement. 

3. The current scheme proposes the construction of two dwellings, not one. 
 

10.3. Notwithstanding those differences, the appeal decision noted that the site was 
located within a generally verdant landscape of open, arable fields with a 
pleasant, tree-lined approach to the village. It went on to conclude that the harm 
caused to this landscape and its character by the proposal was of sufficient scale 
to justify dismissal of the appeal. 
 

10.4. The appeal decision remains a material consideration, however the impacts of 
the current proposal differ in their detail and require assessment in their own 
right. 
 
Principle of Development  

10.5. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement hierarchy 
within the District, setting out the scale of development appropriate to each level 
of the hierarchy. Wisbech St Mary is a Growth Village, one of four such 
settlements within the hierarchy where development within the existing urban 
area or as small village extensions is expected to take place over the plan period. 
 

10.6. Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) addresses the matter of 
development within or adjacent to villages under Part A of that policy, noting that 
“development will be supported where it does not harm the wide open character 
of the countryside”, alongside a set of other criteria. These include the proposal 
not having an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the 
surrounding countryside and farmland, being of a scale and in a location that is in 
keeping with the core shape and form of the settlement, not harming its character 
and appearance, not extending linear features of the settlement, and retaining 
natural boundaries of the site. 
 

10.7. Policy LP12 part A (a) also requires that for development to be supported it must 
be in or adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the village. The policy 

Page 135



defines the developed footprint as “the continuous built form of the settlement, 
and excludes gardens, paddocks and other undeveloped land within the curtilage 
of buildings on the edge of the settlement where the land relates more to the 
surrounding countryside than to the built-up area of the settlement.” 
 

10.8. On that basis the side garden and driveway of The Poplars to the north is 
excluded from consideration as part of the continuous built form of the settlement. 
This is exacerbated by the lack of connection between the site and the settlement 
in terms of suitable infrastructure to allow future residents to walk safely to 
facilities within the settlement. The proposal therefore conflicts with policy LP12 
and as such the principle of the development is unacceptable. 
 
Visual Impact & Character 

10.9. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development proposals to 
deliver and protect high quality environments throughout the district. Proposals 
must demonstrate they make a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness 
and character of the area, enhancing their local setting and both responding to 
and improving the character of the local built environment whilst not adversely 
impacting on the street scene, settlement pattern or landscape character of the 
surrounding area. 
 

10.10. Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan requires that developments do not have an 
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside 
and farmland, are of a scale and in a location that is in keeping with the core 
shape and form of the settlement, do not extend linear features of the settlement 
or result in ribbon development, whilst retaining natural boundaries such as trees 
and hedgerows and respecting ecological and biodiversity features of the land.  
 

10.11. As noted at paragraphs 2.3 and 9.2 above, the trees along the southern part of 
the site frontage that were identified in the appeal decision as making a 
significant contribution to the character of the area have been cut down to 
stumps, which are noted on the submitted plans as being removed. This has had 
the effect of significantly opening up views across the open countryside in this 
area across the southern part of the site and changing its character from the tree 
lined approach to the village considered previously to one of open countryside 
views.  
 

10.12. Notwithstanding that loss, the site is still considered to be part of, and make a 
significant contribution to, the verdant character of the area identified by the 
Planning Inspector in the previous appeal decision. 
 

10.13. Those changes also give the line of mature trees that runs through the site in an 
east/west direction greater significance as a natural boundary feature that forms a 
key part of the countryside character in this location. The indicative plan showing 
removal of this hedgerow for a length of over 50m will have a significant 
detrimental impact on the character of the area and would also harm the 
biodiversity contribution of the site (see later). 
 

10.14. Furthermore, the proposal for the site includes for the construction of up to two 
new dwellings. This would result in a significantly greater impact on the character 
of the area than the previously refused one dwelling. 
 

10.15. On that basis, the proposal would fail to accord with the requirements of policy 
LP12, as it would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of 
the surrounding countryside and farmland.  

Page 136



 
10.16. The development of the site would also result in the extension of the built up 

frontage of the settlement along Bevis Lane, and would fail to be in keeping with 
the core shape and form of the settlement, extending development in a linear 
form along Bevis Lane resulting in ribbon development contrary to the 
requirements of paragraphs (d) and (e) of policy LP12. 
 
Highway Safety 

10.17. Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development to provide a 
well-designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving priority to the needs of 
pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired mobility and users of public transport. 
 

10.18. Policies LP12 and LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan require sites to show that they 
can be served by sustainable infrastructure provision. 
 

10.19. The application site is currently served by a single agricultural access into the 
southern half, which is an agricultural field. The proposal is for the northern half to 
gain access via the existing driveway to The Poplars.  
 

10.20. The comments of the Local Highways Authority are noted above, in particular that 
the existing plans fail to demonstrate an access of a suitable design and with 
adequate visibility splays. It is noted that amendments to the plans may be able 
to overcome these issues, however given the principle issues in relation to the 
proposal it is not considered appropriate to require amended plans unless it is 
likely that such plans would result in a recommendation of approval. Should 
members resolve to grant permission for the proposal, amendments to the plans 
should be required prior to issuing any decision.  
 

10.21. It is also noted that the Local Highways Authority advise that the site is not served 
by any pedestrian infrastructure connecting it to the settlement. This was a factor 
that contributed to the dismissal of the appeal on the site and this issue has not 
been overcome by the current proposal. 
 
Ecological Impacts 

10.22. Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) states that the Council will 
conserve, enhance and promote the biodiversity and geological interest of the 
natural environment throughout Fenland, protecting designated sites, refusing 
permission for developments that cause demonstrable harm to a protected 
habitat or species, and ensure opportunities are taken to incorporate beneficial 
features into new developments. 
 

10.23. The application is accompanied by a biodiversity checklist completed by the 
agent, which indicates that there is no suitable habitat on the site for protected 
species. This checklist includes statements that habitats such as hedgerows, 
woodland, trees and field margins will not be affected. This is clearly contrary to 
the information shown on the site plan. As a result the proposal is considered to 
be contrary to policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) as there is 
demonstrable harm (removal) to features capable of providing habitat to 
protected species without any evidence justifying their loss. 
 
Other Matters 

10.24. Several other matters were raised by the letters received in response to the 
application proposals.  
 

Page 137



10.25. The additional security and discouragement of fly tipping are noted, however the 
first is not sufficient to overcome the policy justification for refusal of the 
application and the second is anecdotal and not material to the decision. 

 
11. CONCLUSIONS 

 
11.1. The application site is detached from the existing built up edge of the settlement 

and would result in ribbon development along Bevis Lane. This was one of the 
reasons given for the dismissal of an earlier appeal at the site and has not been 
overcome by the current proposal.  
 

11.2. The lack of footway provision results in poor connection between the site and the 
facilities within the village of Wisbech St Mary and the proposal is therefore 
considered to constitute unsustainable development as it is reliant on the private 
car. 

 
11.3. Part of the application site is currently open agricultural fields flanked by a line of 

mature trees that would be removed to facilitate the development. These trees 
make a significant contribution to the character of the area and their loss would 
be detrimental to that character. The open nature of the views currently possible 
across part of the site would be lost should the development be allowed to go 
ahead. Overall, this would result in harm to the verdant character of the area 
identified previously by the Inspector, and would be contrary to the relevant 
policies of the development plan. 
 

11.4. The application is not accompanied by an ecological survey to confirm the 
presence or otherwise of protected species and their habitats on the site, despite 
several features of the site being indicated as suitable for providing such habitat.  
 

11.5. The conclusions of the previously dismissed appeal on part of the application site 
are still relevant to the current scheme. They identified harm to the character of 
the area and a lack of connectivity with the settlement of Wisbech St Mary and a   
conflict with the policies of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and the NPPF. The 
current scheme has failed to satisfactorily overcome those reasons for dismissing 
the appeal and consequently the application is not acceptable.  

 
12.    RECOMMENDATION 

 
REFUSAL, for the following reasons: 
 

1. Policy LP12(a) of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out a need for 
sites to be within or adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the 
village in order to be supported. It excludes gardens and other land 
within a building’s curtilage. The application site is separated from the 
existing developed footprint by such land and has poor connectivity with 
the settlement, and is therefore considered to be contrary to the 
requirements of policy LP12(a) of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). 

2. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires developments to 
respond to and improve the character of the local environment and 
enhance their setting. Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan also 
requires that developments do not have an adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of the surrounding countryside and farmland, 
are of a scale and in a location that is in keeping with the core shape 
and form of the settlement, not extend linear features of the settlement 
or result in ribbon development, whilst retaining natural boundaries such 

Page 138



as trees and hedgerows and respecting ecological and biodiversity 
features of the land. The proposal is for the construction of two new 
dwellings, and would result in the loss of a significant line of existing 
trees forming a natural boundary within the land, and also the loss of 
views over the existing farmland that make a significant contribution to 
the verdant character of the area. The location of the site is also not in 
keeping with the core shape of the village, extending the built form out 
into the countryside in a linear fashion along Bevis Lane, resulting in 
ribbon development. The scheme would therefore be contrary to the 
requirements of policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 
(2014). 

3. Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development to 
provide a well-designed, safe and convenient access for all, giving 
priority to the needs of pedestrians, cyclists, people with impaired 
mobility and users of public transport. The application site is not served 
by a pedestrian footway linking it to the village, with such infrastructure 
only available from the junction of Bevis Lane with High Road/Barton 
Road. It would therefore require occupiers to be reliant on private 
vehicles or would result in them walking along Bevis Lane, which is 
subject to the national speed limit. The proposal therefore would be in 
an unsustainable location in relation to the settlement and would fail to 
provide a safe and convenient access for pedestrians, contrary to policy 
LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). 

4. Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) states that the Council will 
refuse permission for sites that cause demonstrable harm to a protected 
habitat or species. The proposal involves the removal of a substantial 
number of mature trees/length of hedgerow running across the site, 
along with the development of an area of land comprising field margins. 
Both of these features provide suitable habitat for protected species 
however no ecological survey has been supplied alongside the 
application to demonstrate that protected species would not be harmed 
as a result of the works and the proposal would therefore be contrary to 
the requirements of policy LP19. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 139



Page 140



Site

Access

grass verge

grass verge

grass verge

grass verge

1
.
8

m
 
c
l
o

s
e

 
b

o
a

r
d

e
d

 
f
e

n
c
e

B      E      V      I      S               L      A      N      E

1.8m close boarded fence

1.2m post and rail fence

1.2m post and rail fence

C01

stump removed

stump removed

stump removed

stump removed

stump removed

stump removed

stump removed

tree

 removed

tree

 removed

tree

 removed

tree

 removed

pavioured

driveway

grass

lawn

double garage

gate

 removed

flagstone patio

hedge

 removed

stump removed

stump removed

Site

grass

lawn

stump removed

Access

flagstone patio

double garage

additional garden land

Drain

D
e

f

8

4

9

1

J
A

C

K

S

O

N

 
C

L
O

S

E

T

h

e

 

W

a

r

r

e

n

s

T

h

e

 

B

a

r

n

s

7

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

'S
 C

L
O

S
E

G

a

r

a

g

e

E

l

18

S

u

b

1

L

o

d

g

e

B

a

r

t

o

n

12a

3

P

o

p

l
a

r
s

T

h

e

BEVIS LANE

S

t

a

2

.

5

m

W      I      S      B      E      C      H               S      T M      A      R      Y

H

I

G

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

2

metres

0 4 6 8

metres

0 10 20 30 40

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited, Swann Edwards Architecture,
Black Barn, Fen Road, Guyhirn, Wisbech, Cambs. PE13 4AA

t 01945 450694 e info@swannedwards.co.uk w www.swannedwards.co.uk

Job No.

Drawn by

RevisionDwg No.

Date

Sheet Size

Job Title

Drawing Title

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited ©

General Notes
1. This drawing shall not be scaled, figured dimensions only to be used.
2. All dimensions are shown in 'mm' unless otherwise stated.
3. The contractor, sub-contractors and suppliers must verify all
dimensions on site prior to the commencement of any work.

4.This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant engineers
and specialist sub-contractors drawings and specifications.

5.Any discrepancies are to be brought to the designers attention.

Checked by

Status

Proposed Pair of Dwellings
Bevis Lane, Wisbech St Mary

Wisbech
For: Messrs Humphrey & Spooner

Outline Planning Drawing
Site Plan

March
2020

SE-1282

SS1001

A1

JL

E

JB

FOR COMMENT

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

The following information must be read in conjunection with the project Risk

register. This drawing highlights significant design related Health & Safety Risks

present during Construction phase, and Residual Risks which remain post

completion. Other Health & Safety Risks associated with Construction Activities

may be present, and must be identified by the Principal Contractor prior to

works commencing. Design Risks relating to specialist design items must be

identified by the relevant specialist designers/ consultants ad issued to the

Principal Designer.

Indicative Site Plan

Scale: 1:200

Location Plan

Scale: 1:1250

Revisions

A Mar
2020 Amended following clients comments

B Mar
2020 Amended following clients comments

C May
2020 Amended following planning comments

D May
2020 Amended following planning comments

E May
2020 Amended following planning comments

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE:  27th July 2020 
 
APPLICATION NO:  F/YR20/0416/O 
 
SITE LOCATION:   Land south east of The Poplars, Bevis Lane, Wisbech St 
Mary, Cambridgeshire 

UPDATE 

Following the publication of the committee report a revised indicative plan was 
received from the agent detailing the following. 
 

• Visibility splays added to the vehicular accesses 
• Vehicular access crossover 
• Replacement of the tree stumps along the site frontage with a new hedgerow 
• Retention of existing hedges and trees within the site 
• Installation of bird and bat boxes 
• Confirmation that the trees indicated as being removed at the access with The 

Poplars are to be removed regardless of the outcome of the application. 
 
The Agent states that they consider these changes “overcome the majority of the 
reasons listed for refusal with the exception of your in principle objection to the 
scheme.” 
They also state that they consider the site abuts the built form of the settlement, with 
the proposed development following the line of The Poplars and Jackson Close, and 
is therefore consistent with other development in the area. They note the site is 
located in flood zone 1 and that the proposal will allow one of the applicants to 
downsize and retire within the village.  
 
ASSESSMENT 
As noted in the main report, the personal circumstances of the applicant are not 
material to the consideration of the application. 
 
The inclusion of visibility splays to the accesses is noted, and comments of the Local 
Highways Authority have been sought. 
 
The replacement of the tree stumps with a new hedgerow is noted and should make 
a positive contribution to the biodiversity value of the site, however it will not address 
the character impact resulting from the scheme. 
 
The alterations to the indicative plan also fail to address the site’s detachment from 
the edge of the settlement, its clear extension of the linear features of that settlement 
(and resulting ribbon development), and its unsustainable location, as identified 
previously by the Inspector, in terms of its connection to the village. 
 
The inclusion of a new hedgerow and the retention of the existing trees on the site, 
alongside the proposed installation of bird and bat boxes are welcomed, however 
there is still no ecological survey of the land identifying whether or not the site is the 
habitat for protected species, and if so what mitigation is appropriate.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The recommendation remains for refusal  as per the main report, with the 
amendment of reason 4 as follows: 
 

Page 143



Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) states that the Council will refuse 
permission for sites that cause demonstrable harm to a protected habitat or species. 
The proposal involves the development of an area of land comprising field margins, 
which are known to provide suitable habitat for protected species however no 
ecological survey has been supplied alongside the application to demonstrate that 
protected species would not be harmed as a result of the works and the proposal 
would therefore be contrary to the requirements of policy LP19. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 144



 
 
 
F/YR20/0440/F 
 
Applicant:  Mr J Allen 
 
 

Agent :  Anglia Building Consultants 

22 Colvile Road, Wisbech, Cambridgeshire 
 
Conversion of dwelling to 2 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings 
 
Reason for Committee: Number of representations received contrary to the officer 
recommendation. 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
1.1. The application is for the subdivision of an existing, substantial dwelling 

in an established residential area within Wisbech, into two separate 
dwellings. The principle of this broadly accords with Policy LP3 of the 
Fenland Local Plan. 
 

1.2. The proposal involves minimal physical changes to the external 
appearance of the building, and would have no unacceptable amenity 
impacts on neighbouring or future occupiers of the development. 

 
1.3. Additional car parking is proposed to meet the requirements of 

Appendix A of the Fenland Local Plan, and while this will result in more 
vehicles accessing the site it will also improve the current visibility for 
the parking area at the property, and no objections have been received 
from the Highway Authority. 

 
1.4. Objections have been received from the Town Council and several 

nearby residents and landowners, however the impacts of the proposal 
are considered limited, and will not result in a significant detrimental 
impact on the area.  

 
1.5. The development is therefore considered to accord with the relevant 

policies of the Local Plan and it is recommended to grant planning 
permission. 
 

 
 

2. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

2.1. The application site is an existing detached two-storey dwelling located in a 
typical 19th or early 20th Century residential area on the eastern side of Wisbech. 
It is a traditionally styled property, with a central access door, ground floor bay 
windows and a symmetrical arrangement of windows at the first floor on the 
front elevation. 

 
2.2. The dwelling has historically been extended to the rear with a two-storey 

addition, constructed in a style to match the main building. The previous 

Page 145

Agenda Item 12



landscaped front and rear gardens have been removed, with the front garden 
having been replaced with a gravel finish to either side of a tiled entrance path 
to the property. The rear garden has been subdivided with a timber fence to 
form a car parking area and a small amenity area immediately adjacent to the 
house. 

 
2.3. The dwelling is located on the corner of Colvile Road and Trafford Road, 

fronting the former. A contemporary period dwelling neighbours the site on 
Colville Road to the east, while to the north of the site on Trafford Road are a 
pair of more recently constructed semi-detached dwellings which sit side on to 
the site. 

 
3. PROPOSAL 

 
3.1. The proposal is for the sub-division of the existing dwelling, creating two 

separate three-bedroom units which would both run front to back. This is to be 
achieved through the relocation of the main entrance door further back into the 
property to form a lobby, off which both units will take access. Further internal 
works will facilitate the sub-division, including creating a second staircase.  
 

3.2. There will be some minor external works to the rear and side elevations with 
existing openings being bricked up and a new opening created. An existing 
small lean to rear extension will also be removed as part of the proposal. 
 

3.3. The rear garden area is to be subdivided by the erection of a 1.8m timber fence 
to create separate amenity areas for each property, with access from the rear of 
the units to this. Two car parking spaces are proposed to serve each unit, 
accessing from Trafford Road, with Unit 1 having parallel spaces and Unit 2 
having tandem spaces. 
 

3.4. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at: 
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docu
ments&keyVal=QAZYTBHE01U00 

 
4. SITE PLANNING HISTORY 

 
F/YR20/0190/F Conversion of dwelling to 4 x 1-bed flats and 1 x 

2-storey 1-bed dwelling 
Refuse  
9/4/20 

F/YR19/1044/F Change of use of existing dwelling (C3) to 
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Sui 
Generis) for up to 14 persons 

Withdrawn 
10/1/20 

F/YR16/0757/F Erection of a 3-storey, 2-bed dwelling with 
integral car port 

Refused 
4/10/16 

 
5. CONSULTATIONS 

 
5.1. Wisbech Town Council:  

Objection on the basis that the proposal constitutes overdevelopment of the site. 
 

5.2. FDC Environmental Health:  
No objections 

 
5.3. Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority:  

No Highway objections, conditions requested to secure parking and visibility 
splay provision. 

Page 146

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QAZYTBHE01U00
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QAZYTBHE01U00


 
5.4. Local Residents/Interested Parties: 

14 letters of objection from residents of the locality have been received in 
relation to the proposal, identifying the following matters in respect of the 
scheme.  
• Will result in 6 bedrooms and therefore an HMO in a different guise 
• Impact on parking provision – access proposed reduces parking availability 

on Trafford Road 
• Impact on privacy within the adjacent garden 
• Work has already commenced 
• The property used to be a family house 
• Impact on pedestrians, particularly at school pick-up and drop off 
• Anti-social behaviour 
• Over-development of the site 
• Devaluation of property 
• Additional waste 
• May set a precedent 
 
The applicants have provided a response to the comments received in relation 
to the letters of objection stating the following: 
• They intend to live in one of the properties and rent/sell the other, not turn 

them into HMOs 
• Both proposed properties have 2 off-road parking spaces so there should be 

no on-road parking as a result of the proposal 
• The property has had a driveway crossing the path for the last 10 years with 

no issues, and all the other properties along Trafford Road with driveways 
also cross the pavement for access 

• Most of the hazards on Trafford Road are caused by irresponsible parking 
during school drop off and pick up. The road is quiet at other times 

• Recent works at the property have been refurbishments, including replacing 
skirting boards, carpets, re-plastering and decorating works 

• Selling the property as a 6-bedroom house would be difficult due to its 
location 

 
6. STATUTORY DUTY  
 
6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a 

planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development 
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local 
Plan (2014). 

 
7. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
Para 2: NPPF is a material consideration 
Para 8: 3 strands of sustainability 
Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Para 117: Promote effective use of land 
Para 118: Opportunities and benefits of the reuse of land 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
Determining a planning application 
 

Page 147



Fenland Local Plan 2014 
LP1 – A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
LP2 – Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents 
LP3 – Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
LP4 – Housing 
LP15 – Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in 
Fenland 
LP16 – Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District 
 

8. KEY ISSUES 
• Principle of Development  
• Visual Impact & Character 
• Residential Amenity 
• Highway Safety 
• Other Matters 

 
9. BACKGROUND 

 
9.1. There have been three applications on the site in recent history. The first of 

these was made in 2016 and was for the erection of a detached dwelling in the 
garden of the property, accessed from Trafford Road. This was refused for 
being out of character with the area, adverse amenity impacts and a lack of car 
parking.  
 

9.2. A further application was received in 2019 to change the use of the property to a 
House in Multiple Occupation for up to 14 persons, however this application was 
withdrawn shortly after it was submitted.  
 

9.3. Permission was then sought in early 2020 for the conversion of the dwelling to 
four single-bedroom flats and a single bedroom 2-storey dwelling, which was 
refused on the grounds of its impact on the character of the area due to 
intensification of use and parking provisions, inadequate visibility in relation to 
the parking area, and failing to provide sufficiently high levels of residential 
amenity. 
 

9.4. Pre-application advice was subsequently sought from the Local Planning 
Authority in relation to the current scheme following that refusal, along the lines 
of the application now submitted. The Local Planning Authority indicated in 
response to that application that the proposal had the potential to be acceptable 
in planning terms. 

 
10. ASSESSMENT 

 
Principle of Development  

10.1. Wisbech is classified as a Primary Market Town under Policy LP3 of the 
Fenland Local Plan (2014 ) where the majority of the development within the 
District is expected to take place over the plan period. The principle of 
residential development within an existing residential area of the town is 
therefore broadly acceptable. 
 
Visual Impact & Character 

10.2. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development proposals 
to deliver and protect high quality environments throughout the District. 
Proposals must demonstrate they make a positive contribution to the local 
distinctiveness and character of the area, enhancing their local setting and both 

Page 148



responding to and improving the character of the local built environment whilst 
not adversely impacting on the street scene, settlement pattern or landscape 
character of the surrounding area. 
 

10.3. The application proposes limited alterations to the exterior fabric of the existing 
building, mainly in the form of minor alterations to existing doors and 
fenestration to the side and rear. It is not considered that these will have any 
significant impact on the character and appearance of the area.  

 
10.4. The front entrance door to the dwelling, will be moved further back into the 

property to allow the necessary access arrangements to be provided. While this 
is considered to be an attractive feature of the property at present, this could be 
removed/repositioned now without any kind of planning control as a 
householder alteration. 

 
10.5. In addition to these alterations to the building fabric, the garden area of the 

property is to be subdivided and altered to provide space for an additional two 
parking spaces. In practical terms, this would result in the removal of a section 
of 1.8m close boarded fence along the Trafford Road frontage of the site that 
will then become an additional 2 parking spaces. This is considered to have a 
minimal impact on the street scene. 

 
10.6. Overall it is considered that the proposal will have a neutral impact on the local 

distinctiveness and character of the area, and is therefore there is no 
justification for the refusal of the scheme on this basis. 

 
Residential Amenity 

10.7. Policy LP2 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development proposals to 
promote high levels of residential amenity, and policy LP16 requires 
development proposals to demonstrate that they do not adversely impact on the 
amenity of neighbouring users whilst providing sufficient amenity space for the 
proposal, with the guideline for non-flat development being one third of the plot 
area. 
 

10.8. The existing property is a residential dwelling and the proposed work would see 
the dwelling split into two separate units. Residential amenity considerations 
include both the impact of the proposed use on adjacent properties, as well as 
the provision of residential amenity to the residents of the proposed dwellings. It 
is not considered that the creation of a second dwelling would in itself, intensify 
the use of the site sufficiently to harm amenity. 

 
10.9. With regard to the impacts on the adjacent properties, the main impact results 

from the proposed new first floor window in the rear elevation of the existing 
extension to the building. This window would be approximately 11 metres from 
the shared boundary with the dwelling to the rear, and could therefore result in 
increased overlooking to the rear garden of this property. However, a distance 
of 11m from a first floor window to a rear boundary is considered to be a 
reasonable, and fairly normal, distance which should result in a degree of 
overlooking which would not be so detrimental to residential amenity to justify a 
refusal. 

 
10.10. This window would also afford views over part of the neighbouring garden to the 

property on Colville Road. However this is considered to be a typical amenity 
relationship present with many dwellings in traditional street layouts such as 
this, and again would not result in a significant impact on amenity.  

Page 149



 
10.11. With regard to the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings, the 

conversion has been designed to avoid any unacceptable relationships between 
windows that could otherwise cause privacy impacts, and both units have been 
provided with modest but sufficient private amenity space for their occupants to 
satisfy the requirements of planning policy in that regard. 

 
Highway Safety 

10.12. Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires development to provide a 
well-designed, safe and convenient access for all, while Appendix A of the Local 
Plan sets out the parking standards associated with development proposals, 
noting that for properties of up to three bedrooms, two parking spaces are 
required, and for properties of four bedrooms or more, provision of three spaces 
is required. 
 

10.13. The application proposes an expansion of the existing parking arrangements 
serving the property, and would necessitate the extension of the dropped kerb 
along Trafford Road to allow for more vehicles to park off-road. These works 
would, however, also allow for greater pedestrian visibility and consequently, on-
balance, it is considered that, notwithstanding the objections received from local 
residents, the development would not adversely impact on road safety. This is a 
view echoed by the Highway Authority. 
 

10.14. Other comments received in respect of the highways impacts of the scheme 
relate to on-street car parking. The application proposes two spaces for each 
dwelling, which is in line with the standards set out in the Local Plan. Any cars 
which currently park on Trafford Road, and will be displaced as a result of the 
widening of the access will be relatively limited in number and unlikely to 
significantly impact on wider highway safety.   

 
Other Matters 

10.15. Several other matters have been raised in relation to the application from 
members of the public and these will be addressed below. 
 

10.16. The first of these that the proposal will result in a “House in Multiple Occupation 
under a different guise”. The proposal is for the creation of two distinct dwellings 
and the applicant has affirmed that this is their intention. The application can 
only be considered on the basis of what has been applied for. Planning 
legislation is such, however, that up to six people can ordinarily occupy a 
dwelling without the need for planning permission. 
 

10.17. Second, that work has already commenced within the property. There is no 
restriction preventing the applicant undertaking internal works prior to obtaining 
planning permission, or indeed undertaking works to their property. 

 
10.18. Other issues that the property used to be a family dwelling, anti-social behaviour 

and waste issues will arise from the proposal and devaluation of property are 
either unsubstantiated or not material planning issues. Particularly in terms of 
waste the plans indicate suitable bin storage areas. 

 
10.19. It has also been raised that the proposal may set a precedent for similar 

conversions in the future. Each planning application is judged on its own merits 
and therefore, it does not automatically follow that any dwelling in the area 
would also be granted permission for conversion into two separate units. 
 

Page 150



11. CONCLUSIONS 
 

11.1. The application is considered to have no adverse impact on the character or 
appearance of the area, residential amenity or highway safety and there are no 
other significant detrimental impacts. The proposal is therefore considered to be 
in accordance with the relevant policies of the development plan and there is no 
justification for refusal of the scheme contrary to those policies. 
 

 
12. RECOMMENDATION 

 
Grant permission, subject to conditions: 
 
1. The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years 
from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.   
 
2. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved the 
proposed on-site parking/turning area shall be laid out in accordance with the 
approved plans, surfaced in a bound material and drained within the site.  The 
parking/turning area, surfacing and drainage shall thereafter be retained as such 
in perpetuity (notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part A, Class F 
of  The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015, or any instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order). 
 
Reason 
In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 
3. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the visibility 
splays shown on the approved plan reference 20-1954-3-C shall be provided on 
both sides of the new vehicular access and shall be maintained thereafter 
 
Reason 
In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 
4. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved the 1.8m 
high timber fence separating the gardens of dwelling 1 and dwelling 2 shall be 
provided in accordance with the details on the approved plan reference 20-
1954-3-C, and the fence shall be retained as such in perpetuity. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the privacy of the occupiers of the dwellings in accordance 
with policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any Order or Statutory 
Instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order), planning permission shall be 
required for the following developments or alterations: 
 

i) the erection of freestanding curtilage buildings or structures including 
car ports, garages, sheds, greenhouses, pergolas, or raised decks (as 

Page 151



detailed in Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A and E); 
ii) the erection of house extensions including conservatories, garages, 

car ports or porches (as detailed in Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A and 
D); 
 

Reason 
To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the future 
extension and alteration of the development, in the interests of its architectural 
and visual integrity and its impact on the residential amenity of the surrounding 
properties in accordance with the requirements of Policy LP16 of the Fenland 
Local Plan 2014. 
 
6. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans and documents 

 
 
 

 

Page 152



COLVILE
ROAD

COLVILE
ROAD

TR
AF

FO
RD

PA
RK

TR
AFFO

RD
ROAD

TR
AFFO

RD
ROAD

CLARKSON
AVENUE

4.0m

4.3m

1
2

7

3

8

9

4

3

5
8

4

8

1

5

61

12

1a

38

20

24

78

19

77

79

28

72

42

16

59

10
8b

19

74

51

8a

21

32

75

34

21

86

33

22

22

LB

33a

58b

19d

59
a

19b

19c

78c

79c

W
hit

e
Hou

se

Sherwood

Medworth
Lodge

Medworth
House

CF

Def

ED &

Ward
 Bdy

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Created on: 28/05/2020

1:1,250Scale = 

F/YR20/0440/F ±
Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS 

The Council has received the following appeal decisions in the last months. All 
decisions can be viewed in full at https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/ using the 
relevant reference number quoted. 

 
Planning Application Reference: F/YR19/0576/F (Appeal reference: 
APP/D0515/W/20/3246313) 

  
 
Site/Proposal: Change of Use of building to single-storey 2-bed dwelling including erection 
of a single storey extension, Land Rear Of Sunset Station Road Wisbech St Mary 
 
Officer 
Recommendation: 

Refuse Decision 
Level: 
 

Delegated Appeal 
Decision:   

Dismissed 

Main Issues: 
 

• Character & appearance 
 

Summary of Decision: 
 
Character and appearance: Inspector noted that the proposed development would ‘be alien 
to the building’s utilitarian form, and would significantly change the intrinsic character of the 
building. Furthermore, the use of render over the entire building would further detract from 
the buildings simplicity and further exacerbate the unduly domestic appearance of the 
building. The proposal would therefore represent a discordant domestic form of development 
which would cause material harm to the character and appearance of the building and the 
surrounding countryside’. 
 
‘Even [if the Inspector was] to accept that the development would re-use a redundant 
building, it would not meet the additional requirement of paragraph 79 (c) of the Framework 
which also requires the re-use to enhance its immediate setting.’ 
 
In conclusion the Inspector considered that ‘the proposed alterations to the building to form a 
dwelling would harm the character and appearance of the area and would conflict with Policy 
LP12 of the Local Plan, the requirements of which are specified above. The development 
would also be in conflict with Policy LP16 of the Local Plan, and the Framework which seek, 
amongst other things, to ensure that developments enhance their immediate setting and 
make a positive contribution to the character of the area.’ 
 
Other matters: The Inspector acknowledged that there was a residential caravan within the 
site and that this was occupied however noted that this was subject to a condition to ensure 
that it was not occupied by any persons other than gypsies and travellers. Thus, the caravan 
was permitted taking into account the specific needs of the individuals involved and was not 
a determinative factor in the consideration of the appeal. Although it was accepted that the 
development would enable the appellant to remain at the site and support local services and 
facilities such as the school and would enable them tosupport their growing family, these 
matters were not sufficient to outweigh the harm identified.  
 
 
 

Page 157

Agenda Item 13

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/


Planning Application Reference: F/YR18/0345/FDL (Appeal reference: 
APP/D0515/W/20/3245685) 
 
Site/Proposal: Erection of up to 45no dwellings (outline application with all matters 
reserved) involving demolition of existing dwelling, Brewin Oaks, City Road, March 
Officer 
Recommendation: 

Grant Decision 
Level: 

 

Committee Appeal 
Decision:   

.Dismissed 

Main Issues: 

• Provision for affordable housing and infrastructure  
• Character and appearance  
• Neighbouring amenity 

 
Summary of Decision: 

 

Affordable Housing and Infrastructure: As the appeal was not accompanied by a Section 
106 agreement to deliver the necessary contributions required by policy, or a viability 
assessment to evidence why these could not be provided, the Inspector concluded that the 
necessary affordable housing and infrastructure would not be provided and as such the 
proposal was contrary to Policy. 

Character and Appearance: The Inspector considered that the quantum of development 
could be satisfactorily accommodated within the site with no adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the area. It was noted that the site formed a transition between areas of 
different character and that the scale of development would reflect some of the buildings in 
the vicinity. 

Neighbouring amenity: From the illustrative details the Inspector concluded that the 
relationships with adjacent properties could be acceptable, albeit noting that detailed 
relationships are more generally considered at the reserved matters stage. 

Other matters: The Inspector concluded that 45 dwellings would make a modest 
contribution to the housing supply and there would be some employment generated during 
constructon as well as the contribution future occupiers could make to the local economy. 

However these factors did not outweigh the lack of a mechanism to secure affordable 
housing and infrastructure.  

  

Page 158



 

 
Planning Application Reference: F/YR19/0828/F  (Appeal reference: 
APP/D0515/W/20/3245490  ) 
 
 
Site/Proposal: Erect 1 dwelling (2-storey 4-bed with garage) and 1.2 metre high post and 
rail fencing, Land West Of 31Crooked Bank, Wisbech 
 
Officer 
Recommendation: 

Refuse Decision 
Level: 
 

Delegated Appeal 
Decision:   

Dismissed 

Main Issues: 
• Suitable location for housing 
• Character and appearance 

 
Summary of Decision: 
 
Suitable location for housing: The site is located within Begdale. As this is not a 
settlement specified within Policy LP3 of the Local Plan the Inspector concluded it was an 
‘elsewhere’ location where dwellings should only be allowed with justification. As no such 
justification had been provided the development was contrary to the policies of the Local 
Plan. 
 
Under Paragraphs 78 and 79 of the NPPF the proposed dwelling would not be isolated, 
however given the limited services within Begdale and the lack of connectivity to other 
settlements it would be an unsustainable development resulting in a reliance on the private 
car, contrary to the NPPF. The economic and social benefits of this dwelling were 
considered to be modest and not to outweigh this harm. 
 
Character and appearance : The Inspector identified that the area has a “spacious, rual 
edge of settlement character”. The development would erode this space with an urbanising 
effect, harming the area and consequently being contrary to the policies of the Local Plan   
 
 
 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 F/YR19/0286F<br/>Land north and south of Grosvenor House, Grosvenor Road, Whittlesey.Erection of 2 x 2-storey buildings comprising of 1no retail unit, 7 x 1-bed and 2 x 2-bed flats with parking involving demolition of outbuilding and boundary wall.
	19-0286 (2)
	FDC Location Plan 19-0286
	Site plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Unit A Elevations and section
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Unit A Floorplans
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Unit B Floorplans elevations section  street scene
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	6 F/YR19/0761F<br/>Lattersey Field, Benwick Road, Whittlesey.Erect 4no industrial units (B1, B2, B8 use), security office and 3.0 metre high acoustic screen with associated parking and hardstanding areas including formation of swales, attenuation pond and associated drainage infrastructure (part retrospective)
	Officer Report - 19-0761 - final committee version (2)
	444085-FDC Location Plan-
	500179-Drawing-PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	11 Site Layout


	443220-Drawing-SECURITY OFFICE PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS
	443209-Drawing-UNIT 1 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS
	443207-Drawing-UNIT 2 PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
	468712-Drawing-UNIT 2 - ELEVATIONS AND SECTION
	Sheets and Views
	05 Unit 2 Elevations


	443205-Drawing-UNIT 3 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS
	443203-Drawing-UNIT 4 PROPOSED FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS
	443204-Drawing-UNIT 4 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
	Update 19-0761 Agenda Item 6

	7 F/YR20/0224O<br/>Land West Of 36, Peterborough Road, Whittlesey.Erection of 9no dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access and layout) including demolition of existing greenhouses (retrospective)
	Officer report 20-224 (committee) Draft 2
	479297-FDC Location Plan-
	482671-Revised Drawing-PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT

	8 F/YR20/0301/F<br/>Land South East Of 70, Fieldside, Coates. Erect 8 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings and 2.0 metre high brick wall
	20_0301_F - Committee report FINAL
	FDC  Location plan
	Site layout elevs and floor plans REV Z

	9 F/YR20/0335/O<br/>Land south and west of 4-5 Mill Hill Lane, March.Erect up to 2x dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access)
	20-0335
	FDC Location plan 20-0335
	Location plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Site plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	10 F/YR20/0365/F, F/YR20/0371/F,F/YR20/372/LB<br/>Land East Of 133, High Street, Chatteris.F/YR20/0365/F: Erect 9 x 2-storey dwellings comprising of 7 x 3-bed and 2 x 2-bed with garages and erect detached garage and 2.4 (approx) metre high wall to serve 133 High Street<br/><br/>F/YR20/0371/F: Demolition of a wall within a Conservation Area<br/><br/>F/YR20/0372/LB: Demolition of existing wall and rebuilding of 2.4 (max) metre all to a Listed Building <br/>
	F-YR20-0365-F - Committee report (1)
	Location plan
	site plan
	Sheets and Views
	Proposed Site Plan


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	Street Elevations



	11 F/YR20/0416/O<br/>Land south east of The Poplars, Bevis Lane, Wisbech St Mary.Erect up to 2x dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access)
	20-0416 report
	FDC Location plan 20-0416
	Indicative site plan
	Agenda Item 11 Update report 20_0416

	12 F/YR20/0440/F<br/>22 Colvile Road, Wisbech.Conversion of dwelling to 2 x 2-storey 3-bed dwellings
	20-0440 REPORT
	Location plan
	Site plan
	Elevations
	Floor plans

	13 Appeals Report

